MEETING AGENDA
TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN PLANNING BOARD
Via Zoom
November 19, 2020
7:30 PM

Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Approval of October Minutes

Return of Cash Performance Bond: Vamco Realty of Peekskill, 3090-3094 Route
9, Cold Spring TM#27.16-1-16

Old Business, Part |

Roland Heitmann & Jeanne-Marie Fleming, Angel Hill Road, Garrison (Site Visit
October 4*) TM#71.-3-15

(Applicant seeks approval of a site which, new construction of a single-family residence
to be served by an on-site subsurface sewage treatment system and private individual
well.)

Magazzino ltalian Art Foundation, 2700 Route 9, Cold Spring (Site Visits on March
8th, 2020 and July 5 2020) TM#38.-3-24.1
The Action is to approve:

1. Alot line adjustment such that the current configuration of applicant’s property
increases from 9.393 acres to 14.615 acres, while CF Diversified decreases a
corresponding amount of land 63.516 acres to 58.294 acres

And

2. Site plan and special use permit that will allow the expansion of existing museum
and art foundation facility by constructing a new building, parking and related facilities
on a recently acquired parcel to the south of the existing facility and the relocation of a
planned employee residential structure and related facilities on a parcel to be acquired
to the north of the existing facility. Approval of the northerly property addition is the
subject of a subdivision application being processed simultaneously with this Site Plan
and Special Use application

Andrew Kepler, 176 Moog Road, Garrison, New York (Site Visit September 13"}
TM#49.-3-48



(Applicants seek approval of a site, which includes the enlargement of an existing deck,
construction of a 3-season room and a formal court yard on their 21.8-acre property at
176 Moog Road, Garrison, New York)

Notice of Public Hearing

Joseph Pell Lombardi, 19 Fieldstone Ridge, Cold Spring NY TM#16.11-1-9,5,7
( Public Hearing)

(Applicant seeking subdivision approval to adjust the line dividing lands of Leach from
lands of Lombardi)

Board discussion

CRS International Warehouse/Office, 2761 Route 9 TM# 38.-3-64

(The applicant is seeking Site Plan approval for the construction of a 20,340 sf
“warehouse/office” structure, in order to expand the applicant’s current apparel
wholesale/distribution business currently located at 3027 Route 9 (at Jaycox Road). The
property involved in the application concerns the former MHCP self-storage site along
the west side of NYS Route 9, between Lane Gate Road and NYS Route 301, which
was never developed.)

Old Business, Part Il

Christopher Flagg & Heidi Snyder, 699 Old Albany Post Rd, Garrison, NY TM#61.-
3-6 (Site Visit Nov, 15"}

(Applicant is seeking barn-like addition consists of a Family Room, Bedroom with bath,
Garden tool storage and greenhouse connected to an existing 4-bedroom house via a
covered pergola. The addition totals 1,762 Square Feet on two levels.)

3622 Route 8 LLC, Cold Spring, New York TM#17.-1-44

(Site Visit Nov 15")

( Applicant seeks Site Plan Approval to remove an existing approximately 2,000 square
foot structure and 325 square foot accessory structure, and to construct two new
buildings (15,400 SF & 10,500 SF) to house contractor offices and storage)

William & Laura Cumming, 71 South Mountain Pass Spur, Garrison, New York
TM#82.-1-52,53

( The applicant is seeking section 175-11B (Dimensional Requirements)as a subdivision
Lot 1: Area from 10 acres to 4.296 acres, a variance of 5.704 acres. As to subdivision
Lot 2: Lot frontage from 300 feet to approximately 165.0 feet.



Riverview Industries, 3012 Route 9, Cold Spring TM#27.20-1-12.1
Applicant is seeking major site plan approval for a parking area for commercial truck
parking and storage. The applicant owns and operates a commercial truck repair and
auto body business on two parcels located across Route 9 and this is an extension of
that use. A wetland permit will be required for disturbance in the 100-foot local wetland
buffer. A floodplain Development Permit will be required for disturbance in the 100-year
floodplain.

New Business

Alice Curtis Desmond & Hamilton Fish Library, 472 Route 403, Garrison, NY

TM# 71.6-1-12&71.6-1-13

{Applicant seeks to install a ground mounted solar ribbon array integrated with the
landscape’s natural topography. We would also like to create a Discovery Path to
provide community members welcoming and ADA-accessible outdoor walkways and
opportunities to learn about habitats that occur naturally on the library’s property as well
as solar energy and design.)

***NOTE: All items may not be called. Items may not always be called in order ***



PHILIPSTOWN PLANNING BOARD
MEETING MINUTES
October 15th, 2020

The Philipstown Planning Board held its regular monthly meeting on Thursday, October 15th,
2020 Via Zoom

Present: Neal Zuckerman- Chair
Kim Conner
Dennis Gagnon
Neal Tomann
Peter Lewis
Laura O'Connell
Heidi Wendel
Ronald J. Gainer, PE, Town Englneer
Stephen Gaba, Counsel

Absent:

Chair Neal Zuckerman opened the meeting at 7:30 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roli call was taken by Mrs. Macintyre.

A. Minutes

The minutes of the October Regular meetlng were reviewed. The Board then approved the
minutes. PN

R e
AT 3

B. corres_.pt;n denc'em A

Chundu/Moth, Sky Line 6five, Cold Spring, New York TM#16.-1-23.13

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked Steve Gaba if there were any objections of return of escrow?

Steve Gaba stated that there are no objections and that the escrow can be returned.
Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to return escrow.

Peter Lewis made the motlon and Dennis Gagnon seconded the motion. The vote was as
follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Conneli: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Roland Heitmann & Jeanne-Marie Fleming, Angel Hill Road, Garrison TM#71.-3-15

Chairman Neal Zuckerman recused himself because he has some personal business with the
applicant related to a building he owns. Kim Conner will proceed as Acting Chair with the
application.

Kim Conner stated that the board performed a site visit, and the board is ready to discuss the
project.

Ron Gainer stated that the Board performed a site visit on October 4t". Ron Gainer presented
the Board a technical memorandum dated October 13" summarizing the site inspection
comments offered. After it was reviewed and accepted by the Board, it was then forwarded to
the applicant’s design engineer. Ron Gainer stated that there are a few issues that the Board
should be aware of. There are two Conservation Easements over portions of the property, one
held by Scenic Hudson and one held by Open Space Institute. It lies along a designated
ridgeline, so there are issues with that overlay district that have to be satisfied. The applicant is
aware of the issues and are addressing them in the application.

Glenn Watson stated that they appeared before the Conservation Board on October 13%, and
they are issuing a letter stating that they are satisfied with the application.

Roland Heitmann stated that he met Max Garfinkle on the site. They went through the site plan
and Max Garfinkle stated that everything looked good.

Ron Gainer stated that the Conservation Board has responded through a letter issued by Max
Garfinkle, and which has been distributed to the Planning Board. We are aware that the
Conservation Board has no issues with the Planning Board continuing with the application.

Roland Heitmann stated that, in terms of the easements, he has been in contact with both Open
Space and Scenic Hudson. Open Spaces have already responded with a letter, which he has
forwarded to Jason Snyder at Badey & Watson. They reviewed the site plan and stated that they
had no concerns but Ron Gainer just reminded me of the other conservation easement on the
property. That is all documented in my proposal in terms of the color and reflective surfaces.
Scenic Hudson has not issued a letter in time for this meeting, which concerns the corer of the
property where we are doing nothing and have no intentions to disturb. They said they will be
issuing a letter shortly, which | will forward to the Board.

Kim Conner asked if anyone from the Board had any questions or comments?

Heidi Wendel asked if any of the easements abut the area where there is going to be a new
driveway?

Roland Heitmann stated that the Scenic Hudson easement is nowhere near the driveway, and
the Open Space easement covers the entire property.

Kim Conner asked if there are any restrictions in the easement as to where you can build?
Roland Heitmann stated that there are no restrictions where they can build or restrictions to my
site plan.



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Ron Gainer stated that if the applicant or Board have no further questions at this time, the
engineer should respond to the comments raised on the memorandum, for the Boards review,
and then the project can subsequently move forward.

Kim Conner stated that the other question the Board had was about the maintenance
agreement for the road.

Ron Gainer stated that he did receive a copy of the roadway maintenance agreement from the
design engineer after | prepared the site inspection memorandum, but that document should be
filed with the entire board.

Glenn Watson stated that he would get them to the Board Secretary.

Ron Gainer stated that the referrals have gone out to Putnam County Planning and Garrison
Volunteer Fire Department. Because the site contains steep slopes, a special pemit is required
and that will require a public hearing.

Kim Conner stated that she thought she read that they didn’t need to do that because it was
such a small area.

Steve Gaba stated that he believes with a special permit you need a public hearing.
Ron Gainer stated that the question is whether they are disturbing regulated slopes.
Kim Conner stated that in the documents that that is no longer needed.

Roland Heitmann stated that he thought this was all resolved at the last meeting. We are not
disturbing any steep slopes.

Ron Gainer stated that if that is the case, the public hearing would be discretionary.

Heidi Wendel stated that there was a steep slope that she observed along the driveway and
wanted to know if anyone else noticed it.

Kim Conner read from the memo of Ron Gainer. The board should consider whether a bond
would be appropriate to cover possible damage to and restoration of the shared private roadway
from the site’s development, which could be released upon visual inspection of the roadway's
condition at the project's completion. Kim stated that the board has concemns that the heavy
equipment going up and down the road could make things worse.

Roland Heitmann stated that he has had conversations with the neighbors, and Heitmann
Builders will be taking over road maintenance for the entire road. If there is any damage
resulting from the construction, we will take care of it. We do not plan on taking any materials off
site, and plan on using everything on site so we won't be trucking in and out.

Ron Gainer stated that he just looked at the Site Plan drawings concerning the issue of the
special permit, and a revised slope analysis plan was submitted after the September meeting.
The steep slopes denoted has been revised per Code, so the only steep slopes being traversed
relate to the driveway construction itself and that is a permitted disturbance, so no special permit
required.



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Kim Conner stated that the next thing that the Board has to discuss whether to have a public
hearing. Kim Conner asked the Board if anyone has any comments about having a Public
Hearing on the application.

Heidi Wendel stated that she feels they should have a public Hearing.

Kim Conner asked if anyone else has a comment. Kim Conner asked if anyone wanted to make
a motion for a public hearing

Heidi Wendel stated she would make a motion
Kim Conner asked for a second? No other Board members made a second motion.

Kim Conner stated that we will not have a public hearing. Kim Conner stated that the Board
wants to see all the documentation and then the Board will approve the application.

Ron Gainer asked if the Board wants a resolution drawn up for the next meeting to have it ready
when all requested information is presented?

Kim Conner asked if the anyone wanted to make a motion to have the resolution drawn up for
the next meeting?

Dennis Gagnon made the motion, and Neal Tomann seconded the motion. The vote was as
follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Kim Conner: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Tony & Kim Ricci, 3315 Route 9, Cold Spring, New York TM#16.20-1-8

Ron Gainer stated that the applicant had made a site plan submittal for the September meeting,
but the information submitted was not clear on the building’s placement on the site and
setbacks, so the Board requested additional survey information. Procedural issues also remain
to be accomplished and, in the interim, the applicant did file an accurate site plan. Ron Gainer
stated that he has submitted a technical memorandum that summarizes the issues that remain.
There was a question raised at the September meeting as to whether two residential structures
could exist on the same lot within the HC Zone. Ron Gainer stated that he will leave that
question to Steve Gaba to respond to and, after that is resolved, the Board can consider
whether they want to make necessary referrals and whether a site visit is warranted.

Steve Gaba stated that at the September meeting they discussed they have a legal non-
conforming lot, at least to side-yard. They are increasing the degree of the non-conformity of
their building by putting on a second use in it, in this case a residential dwelling over a first-floor
commercial building. They will need a referral to the ZBA before they can proceed before this

4



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

board. They have a trailer on the property which constitutes a dwelling unit. Under the Town
Code you can have a two-family dwelling within the HC district, subject to a special Use permit
from the Planning Board. Steve Gaba stated that he doesn’t see having a second-floor
apartment over a commercial as the same thing as an accessary dwelling. You can have two
houses on a single lot as long as you meet setbacks and bulk requirements, but they do not
meet either. They also need to go to the ZBA for having two dwellings on a single lot. Steve
Gaba stated that the Planning Board should wait to do any referrals on the application until they
get the necessary variances from the ZBA.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to refer the applicant to the ZBA.

Kim Conner made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon; Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Magazzino Italian Art Foundation, 2700 Route 9, Cold Spring TM#38.-3-24.1

Glenn Watson said that Magazzino is intending to buy a piece of property from Cyberchron.
Glenn Watson showed on a map what portion of the property is owned now by Cyberchron and
what will be sold off to Magazzino. Glenn Watson showed a map of the whole Magazzino
property as it will appear when they purchase the property from Cyberchron. Everything on the
map to the west of the green line is wetland, and you can see on the plans nothing is being
proposed in that area. There is an area of the existing building that is in the wetland buffer, but
was there before Magazzino acquired it. The proposal is to build a new building, construct a new
access in and out from Vineyard Road as well as use the existing entry. We expect that traffic
will flow into the main lot of Magazzino which is already there, and the overflow will go to the
south though a new driveway into a lower parking lot to access the new building. We have
added elements of the drainage stormwater pollution prevention plan. We have done some
testing out there which will be adequate. We have not finished our plan for the stormwater
management. We are calling for some additional parking on the upper part of the property
where there will be a pathway to the existing parking lot. There will be some sidewalks coming
from the new building and cross in front of the parking lot so there will be some pedestrian traffic
between the new and the old building. The new septic area is a combined septic area. The area
is to the north of the parking lot and the east of the main parking lot, and will collect sewage
from the new building and from the three-bedroom residential structure we are proposing in the
northeast corner of the property. There is an area just south of the new parking lot that houses
four pygmy donkeys.

Miguel Quismondo iterated the plans for the site again.



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Ron Gainer stated that the project has been in front of the board for an extended period of time.
There is one zoning issue that the board has previously raised and it was referred to the
Planning Board’s Attorney in terms of whether the animals being kept on the property is
permitted. Ron Gainer stated that a SEQRA declaration remains to be accomplished.

Steve Gaba stated that he looked into keeping animals on the property and it would be
permitted accessory use with the museum use. We have crafted an amendment under the Town
Code in regards to “museums”. Under the Town Code multiple uses are allowed on a property
as long as it meets the bulk requirements of the code. Under the code, agricultural uses are
permitted in pretty much every zone. If keeping the donkeys is viewed as a separate agriculture
use, and because they meet all the bulk requirements, it would be permitted under the code. As
long as the keeping of animals is part of their application, they are fine. Steve Gaba stated that
he would make the applicant aware of Code §175-37, which imposes disclosure requirements in
regard to the extent of any agricultural use on a property which includes or is by a residential
use. They may need to add some notes to the application in regards to §175-37.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked if anyone on the Board had any questions or comments. The
Board did not, so the Chair asked if anyone from the public had any questions or comments.

Nat Prentice wanted to speak in favor of the Magazzino application and how they are
community oriented.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to close the public hearing.
Kim Conner made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Ron Gainer stated that there are still technical issues that need to be resolved. Ron Gainer
stated that he will work with Glenn Watson to get open issues addressed. The next step is to
consider a SEQRA declaration, and then eventually to consider a site plan approval and
subdivision approval.

Steve Gaba stated that he thinks a negative declaration would be appropriate for this project.
Steve Gaba stated that Ron Gainer should prepare it for a vote at the November meeting.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to have Ron Gainer prepare a Negative
Declaration for the November meeting

Peter Lewis made the motion, and Kim Conner seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Conneli: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion for preparation of an approval resolution for the
November meeting

Kim Conner made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

CRS International Warehouse/Office, 2761 Route 9, Cold Spring TM#38.-3-64

John Canning spoke in regards to the traffic study for the applicants. John Canning stated that
Ron Gainer had raised some questions regarding the traffic study. We have added some
information to the study and sent it back to the board. Revisions address the following:

1) We have modified sheet 10 of 11 in Glenn Watson packet to show which bushes on the east
side of route 9 south of the driveway that are being removed and the twin trunk tree on the
west side being removed. There is a trapezoid that's about 10 feet deep that runs along the
east side of the road and the west side of the road, north and south of the driveway that the
applicant is required to maintain.

2) One of the other questions was whether the data that we had previous collected was sort of
a once-off thing. The speed seemed low so we went back and we did a new traffic studies.
We found that the speed in the Southbound direction was identical, which was 49 MPH at
the 85% percentile. The Northbound direction it increased from 52 to 54 MPH. We revised
table three of the report and included it in our new memorandum, so it increased the required
sight distance traveling Northbound from 575 to 600 which is in the revised table three. It
went from 455 to 480 for the stopping site distance. The two distances are less than the 710
feet that will be provided.

3) We were also asked if we are familiar with the way drivers drove on that section of the road,
and having this driveway close to the intersection of First Street and the homes in the Trailer
Park across the street. We did go out and observe the total number of vehicles that entered
and exited during the busiest hour, and when you consider that the proposed application is
going to generate approximately 20 trips, you can see that there’s really not a lot of
interaction between them both.

7



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

John Canning provided a table of the sight distances and time delays of the trucks going in
and out of the driveway.

4) There was a question of the sight distance because we had two shrub obstructions, so we
went out and measured the current sight distance and it is 540 feet, which is not terrible and
it will be improved with the vegetative clearing.

5) The last question was what would the sight distance be for the 90 and then the 95
percentile speeds. The 901 percentile would be 510 feet; the 480 feet would increase to 510
feet in the northbound direction and the 95% percentile would increase to 525 feet where 710
feet will be provided. In the southbound direction the 85t percentile will increase from 425
feet to 465 feet for the 90t percentile, and then 95" percentile will increase to 480 feet,
where 840 feet will be provided in the southbound direction. Glenn Watson’s firm has been
coordinating with DOT to make sure the driveway meets their standards.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked if any Board members had any questions or comments.
Heidi Wendel asked if the observation was only one hour.
John Canning stated that yes, that is correct.

Heidi Wende! asked if it is typical to only observe for one hour when major safety issues have
been raised?

John Canning stated that traffic safety is sort of a random thing, so we go out and spend some
time in the field to get a sense of the intersection. It is reasonably low volume and well designed
and we saw people driving in and out of First Street, and don’t feel there is a problem at that
location.

Ron Gainer stated that the Board has accomplished all the necessary referrals with respect to
SEQRA. The Board has gone through a coordinated review. None of the agencies have raised
any objectives, so the Board can now acknowledge that they are lead agency and can make a
declaration of significance when the Board believes they have sufficient information to arrive at
a decision. There are technical issues that he has raised in his new memorandum.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman stated that he had some questions for Mr. Gainer. You stated a
special permit is required for the steep slope situation. Does that require any additional work,
public involvement, etc. since that has not been something we have been talking about to date?

Ron Gainer stated that the ordinance requires a special permit to be granted whenever such
disturbances are planned.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman stated that Ron mentioned under procedural matters, the Board
must find that the project - “and will not adversely affect neighboring properties”.

Ron Gainer stated that, based on the comments that we have heard related to the landscaping
being proposed and raised a few times during the public hearings to date, the applicant has
enhanced the landscaping in the rear and on the sides of the site. The applicant has attempted

8



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

to respond to these comments, and that is one final matter that | will review in more detail before
the next meeting.

Steve Gaba went over why the Board kept the public hearing open, which was due to some
concerns regarding the traffic study and other technical issues. He directed the Board to make
sure they focus on them before closing out the public hearing.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked if anyone from the public would like to speak on the
application?

Nancy Berner stated that in the beginning of the presentation they discussed the problem that
I'm most concerned about, which is these huge trucks that don’t make the tumn perfectly and
back up the traffic at the intersection of 301 and Route 9. | live just west of Route 301 and |
experience that all the time. | have already gotten to see what happens at Jaycox and Route 9
at their existing site. | understand that the traffic study looked at a lot of issues but, did it look at
that particular issue?

Chairman Neal Zuckerman stated that in the first few public hearings, we did spend a lot of time
talking about the size of the trucks, as well as the tuming radius. Chairman Neal Zuckerman
asked John Canning, the traffic study engineer, if he wanted to address Nancy Bermner's
question?

John Canning stated that they have worked with DOT, and we have designed the driveway to its
maximum width that they will allow. It is 30 feet wide and it has 33-foot curb returns on the radii,
which is much greater than many driveways along Route 9. We did a templet analysis for the
largest vehicles that would visit the site. We did analysis of the trucks going in from the north
and the south, and leaving going north and south, and we determined that they will be able to do
0.

Kim Conner asked when the DOT permit gets issued?

Ron Gainer stated that it usually becomes a condition of approval. Ron Gainer asked John
Canning to inform the Board of the status of any submittals you have made to DOT, and
whether any comments have been received from that agency?

John Canning stated that DOT will not issue a permit until you have local approval but, they will
review the material and let you know if you are on the right track. Jason Snyder in Glenn
Watson'’s office is handling that, so | don’t know how far they are in that process.

Neal Tomann asked Steve Gaba what happens if the Board approves the application and it just
doesn't work with respect to the Traffic issue?

Steve Gaba stated that if you grant them site plan approval and they have vested rights under it
because they make some improvements and reliance on the site plan, you don't have any
remedy by later saying that the Board wants to “reopen the site plan because what we had
approved doesn't work”.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to close the public hearing

Kim Conner made the motion, and Neal Toman seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

9



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman stated that the Board needs to discuss site lines, the size of the
trucks. | think with the size of this project it deserves a fulsome conversation as a Board. I think
that the Board should have a conversation about the issues at the November meeting.
Chairman Neal Zuckerman would like Steve Gaba and Ron Gainer to put together the main
issues that the Board has been debating and have them ready for a discussion with the Board.

Andrew Kepier, 176 Moog Road, Garrison, New York TM#49.-3-48

Glenn Watson sated that the property is about 17 acres on the top of Moog Road. Glenn
Watson stated that most of the landscaping follows the driveway to the left and when it gets
closer to the house it widens out to the left to provide a front lawn and continues to the back. It is
the white part on the map between the steep slopes. The original plans called for some
plantings on either side of the steep slope areas, they have been removed from this plan. The
new pian addresses the specific questioned raised when you and Ron Gainer came for the site
visit where we are intercepting and making some crossings of the driveway to catch the storm
water and relieve it. Glenn Watson stated that they were in front of the Conservation Board on
this plan and they have no concerns regarding the plan.

David Eaton stated that the concerns Ron Gainer had with the planting within slopes 20 percent
and steeper so, to address that | moved any trees, shrubs with in that swipe analysis and put
them in lesser slopes. The other major comments were about the drainage going down the
driveway that the engineers have addressed. It's a landscape improvement plan that you can
see with native mixed evergreen and deciduous plantings alongside the drive to provide
evergreen coverage through the winter months and also help mitigate views of neighboring
properties. We have improved the entrance to the house and the courtyard to the rear. There is
an existing gravel parking lot there, so we are proposing trees and a decorative water feature. In
the front of the house there is an existing wood deck and in place of that wood deck we are
proposing a stone deck and an expansion of the pool room.

Ron Gainer stated that major concerns of the Board with a steep slopes disturbance as
evidenced on both of these plans have now been resolved. They have addressed the drainage
issue that the Board had. They have addressed the erosion that was visible at the site walk
along the driveway.

Steve Gaba stated that the plans are pretty straight forward and the Board is ready to hear any
Board or public comments.

Kim Conner asked if Katrina Shindledecker could tell the Board about the Conservation
Easement.
10



Philipstown Pianning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Katrinia Shindledecker stated that the Conservation Easement allows one house, accessory
structures and gardens. We had previcus plans that we were able to review and didn't see
anything that was a significant concem. We have not been able to review the new plans in their
entirety. The easements allow for gardens. When | was listening to the Conservation Board
meeting this week, they had a similar question regarding chipping or blasting for the water
feature. They made it clear they will be going up and not down and staying away from steep
slopes on the property. If you have seen the driveway it is an erosion nightmare so we are
happy they are making sure the silt and the sediment washing off the driveway will no longer be
doing so.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked if there was any more questions or comments from the Board
or public. There were none.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to close the public hearing
Neal Tomann made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Ron Gainer stated that with the public hearing closed there is just the SEQRA declaration and
then an approval resolution to act on.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to direct Ron Gainer to prepare the SEQRA and
approval declarations.

Peter Lewis made the motion, and Neal Tomann seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Joseph Pell Lombardi, 19 Fieldstone Ridge, Cold Spring, New York  TM#16.11-1-9,7.5

Glenn Watson appeared on behalf of the applicant. There are two smali pieces of parcel one
owned by Joseph Pell Lombardi and one owned by his neighbor Mr. Leach. Glenn Watson
showed phots of the two properties as to how they are today and what they will look like after

11



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

the property has been divided. The panels show Mr. Leach’s property to be conveyed from Mr.
Leach to Mr. Lombardi to make his lot less non-conforming. Mr. Leach'’s property will remain
conforming. It is just a lot line adjustment, no intention to build anything more and there is no
interference with any septic or wells. Glenn Watson stated that in Ron Gainer's memorandum
he stated we were near some State land and so would require a public hearing. Glenn Watson
stated he was not sure what State lands that would be and he would like to know.

Ron Gainer stated that the public hearing is not driven by proximity to any NYS lands, rather the
subdivision ordinance mandates that a public hearing be held. Ron Gainer stated that the Board
has a technical memorandum from his office. This application was in front of the Board back in
February and was moved forward to the point of scheduling a public hearing and then was
withdrawn. If you go to the end of my memorandum, we can just summarize what was done
previously and we can quickly move this along. The project qualifies as a minor subdivision and
at this meeting you should qualify it a such. As to SEQRA and the current DEC regulations, lot
line adjustments represent a “Type II" action, which doesn’t require any further review. The
Board has to make referral to the Putnam County Department of Planning. They responded to
the earlier application, so that shouid be a simple matter. There are a few minor issues on the
plat that has been submitted in terms of required data that is not shown but, again since there
are no improvements proposed in the original application you previously waived the requirement
for certain technical data. | think it appropriate for the Board to consider that waiver again.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman for a motion to declare this a minor project.

Kim Conner made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:
Kim Conner. Aye

Dennis Gagnon: Aye

Peter Lewis: Aye

Laura O'Connell: Aye

Neal Tomann: Aye

Heidi Wendel: Aye

Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.
Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to declare this a “Type II” action.

Neal Tomann made the motion, and Dennis Gagnon seconded the motion. The vote was as
follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

12



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting
Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to refer to the Putnam County Planning Board.
Neal Tomann made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to waive minor site data including rock outcrops,
on-site soils, tree’s =8 inches DBH, on the location of wells and septic’s and within 200 feet.

Kim Conner made the motion, and Dennis Gagnon seconded the motion. The vote was as
follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.
Chairman Neal Zuckerman requested a motion to have a public hearing in November.
Neal Tomann made the motion, and Kim Conner seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Christopher Flagg & Heidi Snyder, 699 Old Albany Post Rd, Garrison, NY TM#61.-3-6

Chairman Neal Zuckerman stated that he will recuse himself as he is the neighbor of the
applicant. Neal Tomann will take over for the Chair.

Dennis Spence is representing the applicant of the project. David Spence has stated that the
applicants bought the property in 2011 and use it as a weekend home. Currently it is a small

13



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

three bedroom with one bath. They want to extend it to a family room, fourth bedroom with its
own bath, a small cold frame greenhouse and storage space to replace their original garden
shed. We decided to respect the original home’s footprint and porches and dormers in the form
of a traditional barn structure and connect it with a covered pergola. The house sits close to the
road, so the house’s footprint extends over the front yard setbacks, creating a non-conforming
situation. The lot is undersized for this Zone and therefore does not conform to the current
ordinances. They are currently in front of the Zoning Board and have been referred to the
Planning Board. David Spence stated that they have submitted the plans to the Hudson
Highland land Trust and have received a conceptual approval. We have to submit final paint
colors and materials and then we will get their final approval.

Neal Tomann asked David Spence to give a little background on the easement.

David Spence stated that there was an easement from the Hudson Highland Trust that was
created along Old Albany Post Road as a view corridor. It created some limitations on any
additions to the home. When we submitted the drawings, they have found that it was in
compliance with their easement restrictions.

Ron Gainer stated that the Board has a technical memorandum from his office. This is the initial
presentation from the applicant. There are a variety of issues the Zoning Board is currently
addressing. This project should be deemed a minor project. A short EAF form has been
provided. The referrals that may be appropriate concern the number of bedrooms on the
property. You should get confirmation from the Putnam County Department of Health that the
on-site utilities are sufficient to service additional occupancy proposed for the property.

Kim Conner stated that her concem is if the septic is adequate for any addition. Kim Conner
stated that is a comment for the ZBA.

Neal Tomann stated that he has an issue with the plans as it looks like a separate building
rather then an addition.

Ron Gainer stated that moving forward the Board will have standard technical issues to
~address, but my only current concern, which is in the memorandum and what Kim Conner has
touched on, is the additional bedroom and the adequacy of the existing system in place to
service the premises.

Neal Tomann asked for a motion to refer this to the Putnam County Department of Health.

Kim Conner made the motion, and Dennis Gagnon seconded the motion. The vote was as
follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Neal Tomann: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.
14



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting
Neal Tomann asked for a motion to make a referral to the Garrison Fire Department.
Peter Lewis made the motion, and Dennis Gagnon second the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman; Aye

Neal Tomann: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.
Neal Tomann asked for a motion to declare this a Type Il action pursuant to SEQRA.
Kim Conner made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Neal Tomann: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.
Neal Toman asked for a motion for a site visit on November 15t 2020 at 9:30 a.m.
Kim Conner made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Neal Tomann: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Steve Gaba asked the Board if they wanted to send a letter to the ZBA before the site visit or
after the site visit regarding their request for comments?

Kim Conner made a motion to have Steve Gaba write a letter to the ZBA letting them know the
Planning Board will respond to their request for comment after they have their site visit.

Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye

15



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Neal Tomann: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

David Spence asked if the comments from the Planning Board have any relevance to those two
specific issues that the Zoning Board is using as their metric to view the property?

Steve Gaba stated that the Zoning Board is not asking the Planning Board to tell the Zoning
Board how to process an application for a variance or a special permit. They are asking the
Planning board if they have any concerns. The Planning Board will do their site visit and send
their concerns and comments to the Zoning Board

3622 Route 9 LLC, Cold Spring, New York TM#17.-1-44

Adam Thyberg represented the applicant. The property is 4)2 acres currently and holds one
primary structure and an accessory structure, which has been used over the years as a
contractor and office space. There are three current access points to the site which we would
reduce to two. The existing structures would be removed, for the purpose of constructing two
new buildings. the service business use would remain as existing, providing for contractor office
space and storage. The Site plan proposes construction of one 15,400 SF building and one
10,500 SF building. The site would also provide outdoor storage with Town requirements. The
plan will meet all bulk regulations. A new well and septic will be shared between the two
buildings. Currently, stormwater is contemplated fo be managed through a combination of
infiltration and surface practices and soil testing is being scheduled. The site does sit within the
Clove Creek aquifer overlay area so, the applicant is seeking a special use related to materials
storage on-site. This will include salt that would be covered within the potential hoop house. In
addition to that the potential storage of fertilizer, pesticides and herbicides is planned on site.

Ron Gainer stated that the Board has a technical memorandum from his office. They are
proposing a contractor yard with major improvements. We have had conversations with the
applicants a few months ago relative to the compliance of the use with the underlying Zoning. It
is in a HC Zone and we directed him to go to the Code Enforcement officer for a determination.
The CEO more recently acknowledged that it met the definition of a service business and
indicated the applicant was permitted to move forward. It qualifies as a major project. As to
SEQRA, it is an unlisted action. There is going to have to be referrals to Putnam County
Planning, New York State DOT for the improvements planned to the site access, and Putnam
County Department of Health for the well and septic system. You will also want to make referral
to the Conservation Board seeing it's a contractor's yard, concerning the materials to be stored.

Steve Gaba stated that he doesn't believe that the approvals to be granted by DOT, DOH or the
Putnam County Planning Board referrals constitute an action under SEQRA by an agency so, |
don’t think that we have to declare ourselves lead agency. You can send out the notice of intent
to the other agencies to make sure but, again | don't think that is necessary.

16



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to declare this a major project.

Neal Tomann made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as
follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann; Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion to be lead agency for SEQRA. Ron Gainer asked
whether the Board was seeking to accomplish a coordinated SEQRA review, which would then
mean the referral would be a Notice of Intent to become Lead Agency. Neal Zuckerman
agreed.

Kim Conner made the motion, and Neal Tomann seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.
Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion for a referral to the Conservation Board.
Peter Lewis made the motion, and Neal Tomann seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion for a referral to the Putnam County Planning
Board.

Laura O'Connell made the motion, and Heidi Wendel seconded the motion. The vote was as
follows:

17



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.
Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion for a referral to DOT.
Kim Conner made the motion, and Neal Tomann seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion for a courtesy referral to the North Highland Fire
Department

Heidi Wendel made the motion, and Kim Conner seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes
Chairman Neal Zuckerman asked for a motion on a site visit on November 15" at 10:30 a.m.
Kim Conner made the motion, and Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O'Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

18



Philipstown Planning Board Minutes October 15, 2020 Meeting

Chairman Neal Zuckerman: Any opposed? Abstentions? Being none, motion passes.

Chairman Neal Zuckerman moved to close the meeting Peter Lewis seconded the motion. The
vote was as followed:

Kim Conner: Aye
Dennis Gagnon: Aye
Peter Lewis: Aye
Laura O’Connell: Aye
Neal Tomann: Aye
Heidi Wendel: Aye
Neal Zuckerman: Aye

The motion passed unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 10:00pm.

Date approved

Respectfully submitted by,

Kelly Macintyre

*These minutes were prepared for the Philipstown Planning Board and are subject to review,
comment, emendation and approval there upon.

19



3053 Route 9 | Cold spring, NY 10516 843.265.92(7 | 877 3.141593 (Toll Free®  84%.203.4428 {Fax)

November 4, 2020 £ %
BADEY & WATSON
Surveying & Enginesring, 2O,
Kim Conner, Vice-Chair ) i )

/

Town of Philisptown Planning Board
238 Main Street
Cold Spring, NY 10516

RE: Heitmann & Fleming — Site Plan Approval
Angels Hill, Garrison
Tax Map No. 71.-3-15

Dear Vice-Chair Conner and Members of the Planning Board:

This office has received and reviewed a Technical Memo issued by the Town’s Consulting
Engineer, dated October 13, 2020; regarding the captioned property. The plans and supporting
documentation have been revised accordingly. Please be advised of the following in review of
this material:

Roadway Access — The right-of-way maintenance obligations shared by each owner in this 3-lot
subdivision are outlined in the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions, filed in the Putnam
County Clerk’s office. As the applicant in this matter is a Putnam County licensed contractor,
and a Certificate of Occupancy can be conditioned upon restoration of the road surface, we
hereby request that the board forego a performance bond requirement.

Environmental Conditions/Lot Development ~ The earthwork (cut and fill} required for the
proposed site development has been quantified on the plan. Any excess soil shall be used to
reclaim the area in front of the house, where a driveway was cut in by the previous owner. The
solid rock shall be used to construct the site retaining walls. No earth material shall be hauled
off-site.

A partial full-height basement is planned. The final location/extents to be determined on-site,
with the intent to minimize rock removal, based on field conditions. The location/extents of
exposed ledge rock are illustrated on the site plan. For clarity, these areas have been hatched
on the 20-scale inset. They appear from our standpoint to be accurately represented.

The centerline of the proposed driveway is labeled with stationing, and profiled on the detail
sheet. The centerline profile of the driveway leading up to the detached garage has been
added to the plan to show the 3% landing at the apron. Also, please be advised that although a
driveway is rough-cut into the site, it is currently at a grade over the 14% maximum, and would
have to be re-aligned. Based on the location of the proposed septic system with respect to the
proposed house and existing driveway, using this existing driveway alignment to access the

www.Badey-Watson.com



first-floor level is not a viable option. The proposed driveway re-alignment/switchback offers
the best option of flatter driveway grades, access to both the house and detached garage, and
low visual impact.

The temporary soil stockpiles and construction staging areas are not proposed on regulated
steep terrain areas.

Referrals — A separate submission set was provided to the Town’s Consulting Engineer for
distribution to the Town Conservation Board and the Garrison Volunteer Fire Company. The
applicant has met on-site with the Natural Resource Review Officer, and it is understood that
his review memo was sent directly to the Board. We have not received correspondence, or
heard of any comments, from the fire department.

Town Overlay Districts — Similar to the Town’s scenic ridgeline and hillside protection
regulations, the two existing conservation easements over the property seek to maintain the
scenic beauty and rural character of the Town as viewed from the Hudson River Valley,
Appalachian Trail, Denning Hill and various other publicly accessible scenic overlooks.

The easements limit the use, number of structures, location of structures, and their exterior
appearance. The holders of these easements have both issued letters indicating that they have
reviewed the site plans, and have found the proposed development to be in conformance with
the purpose and restrictions therein. In the same light, we trust that the Board will find the site
plan conforming to similar standards as outlined in the steep terrain and ridgeline protection
regulations.

The plan set prepared by the applicant’s architect clearly demonstrate the proposed building
height, and compliance with the “hiliside protection” area height restrictions. Regarding the
“steep terrain” section of the ordinance, all proposed structures and associated disturbance has
been proposed on slopes less than 20%. The proposed limit of disturbance and tree clearing is
illustrated on the plan. The smail amount of additional tree cutting required for site
development will not significantly impact views from publicly accessible places as described
previously. The trees which must be cleared for construction of the septic system are very
small, and cannot be replanted based on required separation distances. There is no plan to re-
vegetate any of the cleared areas. Only the trees which must be cut, will be cut. The
surrounding landscape is heavily wooded, and there is no significant density of trees that could
be planted which would enhance screening as viewed from north, south, or east.

The proposed architectural plans and elevations previously mentioned identify the exterior
building materials/colors; these are common residential building materials, and there is no
potential glare associated with them. Please note that Open Space will be inspecting the site
following construction to ensure compliance with their easement, including the use of non-
reflective exterior surfaces.

November 4, 2020
Town of Philipstown Planning Board
Page 20f3

U:\B1-155B\WO_25352\RHO4NV20BP.dotx BADEY & WATSOM

Surveying 4 Engineering, 2




Stormwater Management — The proposed plans outline the total area of soil disturbance, and
total impervious area created as a result of this development. The limit of disturbance line is
illustrated on the plan, which also represents the limit of tree clearing. The proposed area of
soil disturbance is less than 1 acre; there is no Town or State stormwater pollution prevention
plan requirement. The impervious area associated with a construction activity does not
necessitate nor negate the need for preparing a SWPPP. A stone-lined swale and level-spreader
has been proposed at the now-existing driveway culvert; the culvert was installed to repair
damage to the road shoulder that occurred during one of the last rain storms.

Limits of Disturbance — A conservation easement restricting further site development and tree
cutting/clearing already exists over the entire property; a copy of that easement has been
inciuded herewith. The owner/applicant does not wish-to add restrictions on the use of the
property beyond what is already regulated under the Town Code, the two Conservation
Easements, and the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions.

Erosion & Sediment Controls — The site plan proposes temporary and permanent erosion and
sediment controls. The only area with soil suitable for subsurface infiltration is reserved for the
septic system,

Conservation Easements — Please find enclosed herewith the 2 conservation easements that
encumber this property. Also, included are letters from the holders of these easements, Scenic
Hudson and Open Space, confirming their review of the site plan and endorsing the proposed
development.

We trust that all comments with regard to the most recent memo have been addressed. Thank
you in advance for your continued review and consideration.

Yours truly,

BADEY & WATSON,
Surveging a ineering, P.C.
by

Jason R. Snyder
Project Engineer

enclosures
jrs
cc: Roland Heitmann (email)

Susan Roedriguez {email)

November 4, 2020
Town of Philipstown Planning Board
Page 3 of 3

UA\B1-155B\WO_25352\RHO4NV20BP dotx BADEY & WATSON

Surveying % Bngineering, B0




OPEN SPACE

\ INSTITUTE
\Hﬁ*’ LAND TRUST

VIA EMAIL ONLY

October 13, 2020

Roland Heitmann
Jeanne-Marie Fleming

7 Garrison Landing, Apt. B
Garrison, NY 10524

Re:  Notice of proposed structure on Lot 71.-3-15 of Angels Hill

Dear Roland and Jeanne-Marie:

Thank you for your email dated October 5, 2020, with the site plan prepared for
submission to the Town of Philipstown Planning Board. As you are aware, a
conservation easement dated May 27, 2004 and held by the Open Space Institute
encumbers much of your property. The purpose of this conservation easement is to
conserve the scenic, open and natural character of the property while providing for its
development. As such, the easement limits the number of structures on the easement
property to one (1) residence, accessory structures and one (1) guest house or caretaker
cottage, and also requires that the structures be sited and designed in a manner that
minimizes impacts to the viewshed of the Hudson River Valley. After reviewing the
plan documents, we have concluded that the proposed construction is in line with the
purpose and restrictions set forth by the conservation easement. As a reminder, Section
3.6 states that all roofing and exterior surfaces (except for glass) shall be non-reflective.
Please keep this in mind as you select colors and materials for roofing and siding.

Please do not hesitate to reach back out if you need further clarification or guidance as
you build your new home. Upon completion, please contact me directly to schedule a

time for OSI staff to document the new construction and update our records.

Best regards,

Wil 'red Nieves
Senior Land Steward

Cc: Jeff LeJava, Vice President and Associate General Counsel

OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE LAND TRUST, INC
1350 BROADWAY SUITE 201 NEW YORK, NY 10018 -« 71 212 2920-8200 + 212 244-3441 - OSINY.ORG



x

Qctober 16, 2020

Scanic Hudson, Inc.
One Civic Center Plaza
Suite 200
SCEN IC Poughkeepsie, NY
HUDSON 12601-3157
Tel: 845 473 4440

Fax: BA5 473 2648
ScenicHudson.org

Town of Phillipstown Planning Board
2 Cedar Street
Cold Spring, NY 10516

Re: Review of site plan for tax parcel 71.-3-15 in relation to ‘Kulleseid’ conservation
easement held by The Scenic Hudson Land Trust, Inc.

To whom it may concern,

This letter is to provide notice that Scenic Hudson has reviewed the site plan and architectural plan
for the proposed single family residence on tax parcel ID 71.-3-15 in Phillipstown, currently owned
by Roland Heitmann and Jeanne-Marie Fleming. The Scenic Hudson Land Trust, Inc. holds a
perpetual conservation easement executed on December 30, 1986 and recorded in the Putnam
County Clerk’s Office on February 25, 1987 at Liber 940 Page 54 over the northeast corner of tax
parcel 71.-3-15, as well as over portions of three adjacent parcels.

I have reviewed the plans for the property provided to me by Mr. Heitmann and have determined
that no elements of the proposed single-family residence or associated improvements fall within
the boundaries of the conservation easement held by The Scenic Hudson Land Trust on the

property.

Should you have additional questions or require additional information related to the conservation
easement please feel free to contact me at sturner@scenichudson.org or (845) 473-4440 ext. 269.

Sincerely,

JuT=

Sarah Turner
Conservation Easement Manager



TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
CODE ADMINISTRATOR

238 MAIN STREET
F.O. BOX 155
COLD SPRING, NY 10516

Greg Wunner, Code Euforcement Officer
(845) 265-5202

(845) 265-3929

(845) 265-2687 FAX

DATE: _§~U~ 2920

TO: Tavel 4 Watsold
B3

T 9
COLE -SLPR UG
M\ll oSl

REF:  AWGZLS pyit. gio

TAXMAP#_"2/ .75 /5

IN RESPONSE TO YOUR REQUEST FOR “NQ VIOLATION LETTER” ON ABOVE MENTIONED
PROPERTY PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT AFTER REVIEWING PROPERTY RECORDS THERE

WERE NO VIOLATION NOTED.

SINCERELY

GREG WUNW\-'

ZONING ADMINISTRATOR



5. No signs of any kind shall be displayed to the public view on any
residential lot except one professional sign, if appropriate, of not more that ONE foot
square and one sign of not more than FIVE square feet advertising the residential lot
and/or dwelling for sale.

6. No animals, livestock or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept
on any residential lot except dogs, cats or other domesticated household pets provided
further that such pets are not vicious, offensive, annoying or dangerous, or kept, bred or
maintained for commercial purposes. All such dogs, cats or other domesticated
household pets shall be kept within the confines of their owner's residential lot unless
they are properly leashed and shail be kept within the owner’s dwelling or garage during
the hours of darkness.

7. No residential lot shall be used or maintained as a dumping ground,
Rubbish, trash, garbage or other waste shall be kept in adequate sanitary containers
concealed from public view. No incinerators or other equipment for the disposal of such
material shall be permitted.

8. No gravel, sand, rock, soil, minerals or trees shall be removed from any
residential lot except for construction on the ground of the structures permitted hereunder
or for the proper grading and landscaping for such construction,

9. No owner or occupant of any residential lot shall hinder, dam, divert or
obstruct the flow of any brook, drainage easement, stream or other natural water course
on a “residential lot™.

, 10.  Each of the three (3) lot owners shall Cooperate to maintain the views of
the Hudson River including permitting the topping of trees so long as it does not interfere
with the reasonable enjoyment of their own lot. No cutting of trees shall be permitted
without seventy-two (72) hours notice to all lot owners and consent of same.

H. Al residential lots and the buildings, structures, driveways, and sanitary
facilities thereon or hereafter erected thereon and the use of the same shall conform to and
be subject to the appropriate building code, zoning laws and ordinances, public health
laws and other requirements and recommendations of any governmental body having
Jurisdiction thereof’

12. Al utilities installed to service the lots herein may be installed above
ground within this right of way to the point of intersection between the right of way and
the dividing line between Lots 1 and 2 as shown on the subdivision map. All utilities
installed elsewhere on any lot shall be installed underground.

13. Each residential lot shall be used for residential purposes only and no
dwelling, building or structure shall be erected, placed or maintained upon any said
residential lot other than one private dwelling house suitable for year-round occupancy
containing a central heating system and having no less than twenty-five hundred square
feet of enclosed centrally heated habitable space exclusive of a cellar, basement, garage,
porch, deck, patio and other structure(s) incidental to the dwelling house. This provision
shall not prohibit the construction of detached structures incidental to the dwelling house.

(a) No structure, building or dwelling shall be erected or placed on any
residential lot until the construction plans and specifications and a plot plan showing the
location of the proposed improvements have been approved by the Declarant as to the
compatibility of materials, their finish and color, harmony of external design with

T P e LT T8 e wF8 4w oL rompaae'a o wam i i g e L e e T r R i s v 5 e s e an e o



IName, Address, & Z1p)

£.0.80y 259
Croae R

Salatore Loccias

et WY 051

TYPE OR PRINT IN BLACK INK ONLY
GRANTOR/MORTGAGOR

,huggoioﬁm\ @ .Dcoﬁ._g\

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE

JJme C
‘]’
DE/ ALAT 101/
INSTRUMENT TYPE: DEED MORTGAGE SAT ASMT OTHER
¥ OF ]
PAGES
RECORDING FEES RESERVE FOR TIME STAMP
o e v |
RCD FEE Nm 0 L S5
o TR
STAT CHG 5.00 & T
REC MGMT 5.00 =
ey
CROSS REF o0 m MW
CERT/COPY .00 = @S
[ % I 5 [
—_— 0
20
OO
TOTAL 28.
DEED TRANSFER TAX

CONSIDERATION $

| RECEIVED |

PUTNAM COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE

recoroEp o (e (¥, /EF T

PUTNAM COUNTY CLERK

\ C) Tp-584 ()
REAL ESTATE $5.00
, 941 | Eaa ()
L] $25.00
TRANSFER TAX
PUTHAM COUNTY
MORTGAGE TAX
MTX AMOUNT
TOTAL TAX P
SERIAL NUMBER
AFFIDAVIT FILED ( )
16283

MORTGAGE/DEED TAX DISTRICTS:
‘TOWN OF CARMEL

TOWN OF KENT

TOWN OF PATTERSON
TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
TOWN OF PUTNAM VALLEY

TOWN OF SOUTHEAST
UNAPPORTIONED

MORTGAGE TYPESJ:

COMMERCIAL/VACANT LAND

1 - 2 FAMILY

UNDER $10,000

CREDIT UNION/PERSONAL MTG
3 - 6 UNITS

EXEMPT

ZmoOEp




DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS

DECLARATION made by w>r<>ﬁ0w._w.._,ocoou> residing at P. O. Box 374,
Mohegan Lake, New York hereinafter referred to as the “Declarant”; the Declarant is the
owner in fee simple of the following described property:

WHEREAS ALL that certain parcel of land situate in the Town of Philipstown,
County of Putnam and State of New York, shown on that certain “Subdivision Plat
prepared for Salvatore C. Cuccia...” which was filed in the Putnam County Clerk’s office
on May 27, 1988 as Map No. 2311.

WHEREAS the Declarant desires to restrict the use and enjoyment of said land

and has for such purposes, determined to impose on said premises certain covenants and
restrictions;

WHEREAS the Declarant also desires to create easements in favor of all of the
owners of lots shown on the aforesaid revised subdivision plat to use the areas designated
thereon as Right of Way and 1o limit and restrict the use thereof as hereinafter provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Declarant does hereby declare: (a) that the premises
shown on the aforesaid subdivision plat shall be held and conveyed subject to the
covenants and restrictions hereinafter set forth; and (b) that easements are hereby created
on portions hereinafier mentioned of such premises and the use and enjoyment of the arca
affected by said easements are limited and restricted all as hereinafter set forth.

1. All of the numbered lots shown on such subdivision Map shall be known
and hereinafter referred to as “residential lots” and none of such residential lots shall be
subdivided.

2. «Residential lots” shall be used for residential purposes only; each lot shall
be used by no more than one family and no dwelling or structure erected, placed or
maintained thereon shall be used for a hotel, boarding or lodging home or apartment
house or for any purpose except as a private dwelling for one family and uses incidental
thereto.

KN No trucks and other commercial vehicles, equipment, machinery, trailers,
mobile home, campers, motorcycles, motor bikes, snowmobiles or trail bikes shall be
permitted to be parked, stored or maintained overnight on any residential lot except in an
enclosed garage. Automobiles and the vehicles, equipment and machinery referred to in
the preceding sentence shall not be parked overnight on Right of Way. Unregistered
and/or unlicensed trucks, other commercial vehicles, equipment, machinery, trailers,
mobile homes, campers, motorcycles, motor bikes, snowmobiles, trailbikes and
automobiles shall not be permitted to be parked, stored or repaired on any part ofa
residential lot except if garaged and shall not be permitted to be parked, stored, repaired
or operated on Right of Way. Snowmobiles, motorcycles, motorbikes and trailbikes shall
not be operated in such a manner as to cause annoyance to residential lot owners.

4. No structure of a temporary character, trailer, basement, tent, shack,
garage, barn, outbuilding or similar adaptation for the temporary habitation of any
character shall be erected, placed, used or maintained upon any residential lot.




L S

W TUUIoULIL

existing or contemplated improvements and as to location with respect to topography and
the improvements® elevation. Declarant’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

()  The Declarant’s approval or disapproval as required in this
covenant shall be in writing. In the event the Declarant fails, in writing, to approve or
disapprove within 30 days after all of the necessary and required plans, specifications and
plot diagram have been submitted to him, approval will have been deemed obtained and
the related above covenant shall be deemed to have been fully complied with.

14. A building, dwelling or other structure erected or placed on any residential
lot shall be completed and a certificate of occupancy obtained within 18 months after the
start of actual construction.

15. It is understood and agreed that the Declarant reserves for himself, his
heirs, successors and assigns the right and privilege, but not the obligation, to transfer to
the Town of Philipstown, County of Putnam, State of New York, all right, title and
interest in the feel of the Right of Way for dedication by said Declarant, his heirs,
successors or assigns of Right of Way to the Town of Philipstown as a Town Road.

16.  The Declarant reserves for himself, his heirs, successors and assigns and
for the benefit of other property now owned or after acquired by him or them a permanent
perpetual easement and a right of way for ingress, egress and regress, drainage, utilities
and any other purpose consistent with land development and use within, on, above or
under the areas designated on said revised subdivision plat as Right of Way.

17. The Declarant reserves the right for himself, his heirs, successors and
assigns, and for the benefit of other property now owned or after acquired by him or
them, the right to grant permanent perpetual easements and rights of way within, or above
or under the areas designated on said revised Subdivision Plat as “Right of Way” for the
purposes of ingress, egress, regress, drainage, utilities and any other purpose consistent
with land development and use.

18.  That nothing herein contained shall be construed, nor shall there be any
obligation upon the Declarant, his successors, assigns or heirs to restrict in any manner
any other property now or after acquired by the Declarant other than the three lots shown
on the revised Subdivision Plat above referred to.

19.  Each of the owners of residential lots, their heirs, successors and assigns
are hereby granted a permanent perpetual easement and right of way for ingress, egress
and regress within the area designated on said revised Subdivision Plat as “Right of Way”
in its entirety subject to the restrictions and limitations specifically set forth within this
Declaration.

20. (a) The maintenance of “Right of Way”as shown on Map #2311(A)
shall be a joint or shared obligation of the 3 lot owners, Any owner who takes title to a lot
on or before December 31 of any year becomes responsible for his one-third share of the
succeeding year’s maintenance on January 1 of the succeeding year. The maintenance
obligation then continues in perpetuity and shall run with the land. Failure to pay the
maintenance charges within 30 days of the billing date shall permit the other lot owners to
file a lien against the property of those who are delinguent. Matters concerning the
maintenance of “Right of Way™ area shall be determined by a simple majority of
residential lot owners in good standing. Each residential lot entitles its owner or OWners
to one vote only and the person whose name first appears on the deed shall be entitled to

e et i O R

LreeTEEEL .o



the vote. A lot owner is in good standing only if he has paid his prior and current
maintenance charges. The Declarant will maintain the right of way herein until January 1,
1999 at his sole cost and expense, or until 1 (one) certificate of occupancy is issued,
whichever is sooner. After January 1, 1999, and until a certificate of occupancy has been
issued for each dwelling on each of the three residential lots, the owners who are eligible
for or receive certificates of occupancy for their dwellings shall be responsible for their
proportionate share of the succeeding year’s maintenance obligation.

(b)  Each of the three residential lot owners shall be responsible for
their proportionate share of each year’s snowplowing expense. As each lot is sold by
Declarant the purchaser becomes liable for one-third the cost of snowplowing. When the
first lot is sold the purchaser is responsible for 100% of the snowplowing, however, the
lot owner will not be responsible for plowing the “right of way” beyond the northern
boundary line of his lot. When the second lot is sold the two owners will be responsible
for 50% each of the snowplowing expense. When the third lot is sold each of the three
owners will contribute one third of the total cost to the snowplowing expense. The
Declarant is not responsible for any snowplowing expense unless he retains one of the
lots and constructs a residence on same.

(c) Each lot owner who constructs a residence on his lot shall be
responsible for damage to or change in the condition of the “Right of Way” during
construction. The individual lot owner shall, within sixty (60) days after the issuance of a
certificate of occupancy, repair and restore the “Right of Way” to its pre-construction
condition.

(d)  No lot owner shall pave any portion of the “Right of Way” without
the written consent of all of the lot owners.

21, All utility lines servicing the property shall be installed underground
except that overhead wires will be permitted along the “Right of Way” from the
intersection with Route 9 to a point at the boundary line between lots 1 and 2 on the filed
map. Each lot owner shall grant such easements as may be necessary for the installation
and maintenance of utility service.

22, Each residential lot owner and the successors, assigns and heirs of such
residential lot owner shall hereafter insert in every deed of conveyance, lease, mortgage
or contract relating to the sale, lease occupation or use of such residential lot and dwelling
the following clause:

“Subject to certain covenants, restrictions and agreements as imposed by a certain
Declaration by Salvatore Cuccia dated O - 1999 and recorded in the Putnam
County Clerk’s Office at Carmel, New York, and to any modifications thereof as may be
hereafter recorded.

23.  Each and every one of the covenants and restrictions in this Declaration
shall attach to and “run with the land” and shall bind and inure to the respective lot
owners, their successors, assigns, heirs, distributees, or estate representatives. The
covenants and restrictions herein may be enforced by the Declarant, his heirs, successors
or assigns, or other residential lot owners, all of whom have the right to use for and obtain
an injunction or other court order, prohibitive or mandatory, to prevent the breach of or to
compel compliance with the covenants and restrictions above set forth and the failure of
the Declarant, his assigns, successors or heirs to enforce any of the covenants and

B e AT R L R R R o e b —— it aemrnas e - A asamna



restrictions herein set forth shall in no event be deemed to be a waiver of the right to do
S0 as 1o any subsequent violation. The violation of these restrictions shall not affect nor
render invalid the lien of any mortgage made in good faith or for value.

24.  Iflitigation is required to enforce a violation of the covenants and
restrictions herein, the defendant(s) shall pay the reasonable attorney’s fees of the
plaintiff(s) provided that it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that the
defendant(s) has, in fact, violated the said covenants and restrictions. Nothing herein shall
preclude the court from awarding money or other damages to the plaintiff(s) in addition to
the attorney’s fees.

25.  Any notice required to be sent to any residential lot owner or to the
Declarant under the provisions of this declaration shall be deemed to have been properly
sent when delivered personally or when mailed certified, return-receipt postpaid to the
last known address of the person who appears as the residential lot owner on the records
of the Putnam County Clerk’s Office at Carmel, New York, at the time of such mailing,

26.  Invalidation of any of the provisions of this Declaration by judgment or
court order shall in no way affect any other provision of this Declaration, ali of which
shall remain in full force and effect.

27.  Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, it is not intended to and
this Declaration, shall not be deemed to affect or impair any existing covenant, restriction
or agreement of record affecting real property within the revised Subdivision Plat.

28. Whenever the word “Declarant” is used, it shall mean Salvatore Cuccia,
his heirs, successors or assigns.

29.  The covenants and restrictions herein shall all “run with the land” and be
binding upon future grantees, assignees and owners by whatever named called of the 3
lots designated on Map #2311.

30.  All of the lots herein are further subject to the terms of a Conservation
Easement dated December 30, 1986 between Lars L. Kulleseid as Grantor and Open Space
Institute as Grantee recorded February 25, 1987, in the Office of the Putnam County
Clerk, Division of Land Records, at Liber 940 Page 77.

ORE,CUCCIA
Ce

State of New York, County of Putnam

On the Qw. day of October , 1999 before me the undersigned, personally
appeared wm?ﬁo@.o:n&m personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity, and that by

his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the person upon behalf of which the

individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary mg \
N oﬁh - AMET GRANUZZO

y NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW
00 By 22Ty s RS

/057§

TSI 4 AT e e s e e e am e R e T Lo ET R T T e o e R R T TR 0K i a8 e s e



Hi+ |

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

CONSERVALIVE e ————

THIS CON mw%vanoz EASEMENT AGREEMENT is made and
entered intJogkhis FPEEday of / Aesalidr+ 1986, between LARS
1. KULLESEID, 014  Albany Post Road, Garrison, New York,
hereinafter called the wnGrantor", and SCENIC HUDSON, INC., 2
New York not-for-profit corporation with its principal office
at 9 vassar Street, poughkeepsie, New vork, hereinafter called
the "Grantee®.

WITNESSETH:

e s =

GRANTOR is the owner in fee of real property {the
rproperty”) consisting of approximately 1C.] acres in the Town
of Philipstown, putnam County, New York, more mmnnwncwmnH<
described in gchedule A attached heretos

The Property is located within the viewshed of the
Hudson River in the Hudson Eighlands, an area long noted for
its scenic beauty, is adjacent to the Appalachian frail and is
near parklands owned by the State of New York:

GRANTEE is a New York not-for-profit corporation
within the meaning of article 49, Title 3, of the En-
vironmental conservation Law of he State of New vyork (the
nconservation Law"); and

The parties desire to c¢onserve the Property bY
entering into a conservation Easemant Agreement pursuant to
the provisions of Article 49, pitle 3, of the conservation
Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the
foregoing, the mutual covenants contained herein, and Ten
($10.) Dollars and other good and valuable consideration paid
to the Grantor, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of Easement. Grantor grants to Grantee

Grant O REaSECT -
a mmanncmw congervation easement (the nconservation
Easement") over the Property which shall encumber the
Property-

1

03260




FRL B il it

Grantee, for its and the benefit of the public, the
right to view the Property im its scenic, wooded state, from
the Hudson River and the Appalachian Trail, as that state
exists on the date of this grant or in the future throuah
natural evolutionary processes (except as otherwise provided
herein) and uses otherwise consistent with the rights reserved
herein by Grantor. The present state of the Property 1is
avidenced by the aerial photograph furnished to the Grantee on
the date of execution of this Conservation Easement.

1.2 Grant of Easement to Construct, Maintain and
alachian Trall Spur. Grantor grants to Grantee or its
designee the r ght to make and maintain one ngpur™ trail
connecting a viewing point in the pProperty with the
Appalachian rrail. ‘The spur shall be of a similar character
to the Appalachian Trail. The spur and viewing point shall
be located as indicated on the map attached hereto as Schedule
B. Grantor grants to Grantee, its successors and assigns, and
its or their agents, the right during the three Yyears
beginning with the date of this Conservation Easement to cross
the Property and, while it is owned by Grantor, contiguous
land to make the spur. Access for maintenance subsequent to
the three-year period shall be directly from the Appalachian
Trail only. Grantor further grants to Grantee, its successors
and assigns and to the public the right of pedestrian access
to the Property to use the spur and viewing point, provided
that such access shall be directly from the appalachian Trail
only and shall be restricted to the spur and viewing point and
a corridor of ten feet on either side of the spur. Access
shall not be by use of motorized vehicles of any kind,
including, without limitation, trail bikes and snowmcbiles.

2. Reserved Rights. crantor reserves for himself, and
his successors 1n interest, all richts, with respect to the
Property, jncluding, without jimitation, the right of
exclusive use, possession and enjoyment of the Property and
the right to sell, transfer, 1lease, mortgage Of otherwise
encumber the Property, as ownex, subject to the restrictions
and covenants set forth in this conservation Easement.
Nothing herein shall be construed as a grant to the general
public of any right to enter upon any part of the Property
except as is specifically set forth hereinabove.




3. Restrictions Applicable to the Propert The

following restrictions apply to the Property:

3.1 Use. Wo commercial. industrial or
institutional use ST the Property shall be permitted, except
trail use as set forth hereinabove, and no change of any kind
to the present state of the Property shall be caused by the
Grantor that is jnconsistent with the provisions of this
Conservation Easement.

3.2 sale or_ Transfer. This Conservation Easement
shall not restrict or affect the rights of any owner of the
Property to subdivide, sell, lease, transfer, convey, mortgage
or otherwise encumber the Property. Nothing contained herein
shall restrict an owner of the Property in imposing further

restrictions upon conveyance or otherwise.

3.3 structures. No permanent or temporary
structure may be erected or maintained on the Property.

3.4 No Mobile Homes. Mobile homes or house
trailers are prohibited.

3.5 Chemicalis. No pesticide, herbicide or other
chemical treatment £for fand, vegetation or animals shall Dbe
used unless its use is necessary, safe for humans and will not
contaninate any source of drinking water.

No dumping or storing
of ashes, sawdust, non—comnposted organic waste, sewage or
garbage, scrap material, sediment discharge, oil and its by-
products, leached compounds, toxic fumes or any other
unsightly or offensive materials shall he allowed.

3,7 Timber. No cutting or removing of trees or
alteration of the natural habitat, terrain or soil cover shall
be permitted, except to create the spur trail, to remove
trees which are fallen, dead, dlseased or dangerous, or to
preserve views from the spur and other view points of the

Property located on 2 ridge line.




u.m zwswam. zomcmnnw.mnm<mwuwn~ m:nmmnmon
subsurface mining or drilling shall be permitted.

3.9 Roadways and Driveways. No new roadway or
driveway shall be constructed on the Property.

4. Additional Covenants:

4.1 Enforcement. Grantor and Grantee may enforce
this Conservation Easement in law or eguity pursuant to the
provisions of Article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law
against any or all owners of the Property. If there is a
violation of any of the provisions of this Conservation
Easement, Grantor or Grantee shall notify the party inm
violation, who shall promptly cure the violation by (a)
ceasing the violation or (b) rastoring the Property to the
condition before the violation, or {(c) both, as the case may
be. If the violation continues, Grantor or Grantee shall have
the right, but not the obligation, to cure it by direct action
and the owner shall reimburse Grantor or Grantee for all
expenses reasonably incurred to enforce the conservation
Basement and to cure the violation. Failure to enEorce any
restriction or covenant herein contained shall in no event be
deemed a waiver of a right to do so thereafter as to the same
violation or breach, or as to one occurring prier to or
gubsequent thereto. A third party enforcement right is hereby
granted to Open Space Institute, Inc., 122 East 42nd Street,
New York, New York.

4.2 Amendment. This Conservation Easement may be
amended upon the written consent of Grantee. Any such
amendment shall be consistent with the basic purpose of this
Conservation Easement and shall comply with Article 49, Title
3, of the Conservation Law.

4.3 Purther Acts. Each party shall perform any
further acts and execute and deliver any documents, including
amendments to this Conservation Easement which may be
reasonably necessary to carry cut the provisions of this
Conservation Easement or which are necessary to qualify this
instrument as a conservation easement under Article 49, Title
3, of the Congervation Law or any regulations promulgated

iy -




pursuant thereto.

4.4 Encumbrance b conservation Easement. aAny
subsequent conveyance neluding, W ou mitation, the
transfer, lease OT mortgage of the Property, shall be subject
to this Conservation fasement, and any deed or other
instrument evidencing of affecting such conveyance shall
contain languge substantially as follows: "This [conveyance,
lease, mortgage, easement, etc.] is subject to a Conservation
Fasement which runs with the land and which was granted to

scenic Hudson, InC., dated , 1986, and recorded ’
1986, in the office of the Clerk of Putnam County at
Liber of Deeds at Page ." fThe failure to include such

language shall not affect the validity or applicability of
this Conservation Easement to such property.

4.5 Assignment. This Conservation gasement may be
assigned by the Grantee, provided, however, that an assignment
may be made only to a not-for-profit corporation or otherwise
as provided in Article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law.

4.6 Taxes and Assessments. pach owner of the
Property oOr subdivided portion § all pay all taxes and
assessments lawfully assessed against the Property or portion
owned by such owner, who shall provide receipted tax bills to
the Grantee upon request.

4.7 Severability. rnvalidation of any provision
of this Conservation Easement, by court judgment, order,
statute, oOr otherwise, shall not affect any other MHOQHmwonmf
which shall be and remain in force and effect.

4.8 Bindin Effect. The provisions of this
conservation EBEasement S a1l run with the 1and and shall be
binding on each owner and any party entitled to possession or
use of the Property while such party is the owner OC entitled
to possession or use thereof. As used in this BSection 4.8,
the term owner shall include the owner of any beneficial
equity interest in the Property.

5. Qualified conservation Contribution Covenants:

=G




5.1 Continuity.- Grantee dyrges LusL  sw o s
assign this Conservation Easement only to an assignee which
agrees to continue to carry out the conservation purposes of
this Conservation Easement. This Conservation gasement may
only be assigned to an assignee which is a gquallfied
0nmm=wumﬂwo= as defined in section 170(h) of the Code and the
regulations thereunder. Any assignee other than a

mO4mn=am=an unit must be an entity able to enforce this
Conservation Easement, having purposes similar to those of the
Grantee which encompass those of this Conservation Easement.

5,2 Notice. Grantor agrees to give Grantee
written notice Lefore exercising any reserved right, the
exercise of which may have an adverse impact on the
conservation interests of this Conservation Easement.

5.3 Inspection. The Grantee and its duly
authorized representatives shall have the right to enter the
Property at reasonable times, in a reasonable manner and, when
practicable, after giving notice, to inspect for compliance
with the terms of this Conservation Easement.

5.4 Extinguishment. If and when the restrictions
contained in this Conservation Easement are extinguighed by
eminent domain taking or otherwise, Grantor and Grantee agree
to divide the proceeds in proportions equal to the fair market
value of their interests in the Property on the date of
execution of this conservation Easement, unless the laws of
New York provide that the Grantor is entitled to the entire
proceeds without regard to the terms of this conservation
Easement. Grantor and Grantee agree that the wvalue of the
Grantee's interest on the date of execution of this
Conservation Easenent shall egual the amount by which the fair
market value of the ©Property immediately prier to the
execution of this Conservation Easement 1is reduced by the
restrictions imposed by this Conservation gasement. Grantee
agrees to devote 1its share of the proceeds in a manner
consistent with the conservation purposes inherent in this
Conservation Easement.




instrument as of the day and yeacr irst above writtgn,
ars I.

RKulleseid

SCENIC HUDSON, INC.

a New York not-for—-profit
cor on

BY




STATE OF NEW YORR )}
58.:
COUNTY OF pgur ORI

On the wﬁ.ﬂ. day of thha&%hﬂv- 1986, before me
personally came Lars I. Rulleseid, to me known and known to me
to be the individual d&escribed in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and duly acknowledged to me that he
executed the same.

Lod A, Brum—

Notary Public

NEAL A. BROWN
Notary Public, State ol New York
Nao. 4615350 County
Quatitied In Wesichuster
no___.._:_.a-"u: Eapires March 8...-.&\ \

STATE OF NEW YORK )

55,1t
COUNTY OF Yot

on the [I°7 day of &tmes—pfur~., 1986, before

smanmoamHH%nma ebhﬂlfl}\~ noamxnozs.zroﬁcmwsmaam
duly sworn, did depofe and say that he, resides at Ppnvqw“
A Yortea, New York; that he is theCRmamas @F CENIC
HUDSON, INC., the corporation described in and which eXkcuted
the foregoing instrument; and that he signed his name thereto
by order of the board of directors of said corporation.

Notary/Public

GERAID E. ROSS
Notary Publiz, State of New York
ocaah %lo New Sork Cou
ew York
Commission Expires Masch wo.nmnmmu




File B81-185

W.0. 3767
December 30, 1986
G.J.W.

Description of Property
prepared for
Lars Kulleseid
(Overall Conservation Easement)

All that certain parcel of land situate in the Town of
Philipstown, County of Putnam and State of New York which is a
portion of those lands conveyed by William Prior to Lars
Kulleseid by a deed dated pecember 18, 1985 and recorded in the
Putnam County Clerk's Liber 877 of Deeds at Page 51 on December
23, 1985 that is bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the easterlymost corner of the premises
so conveyed by William Prier to Lars Kulleseid which point is
formed by the intersection of the southerly line of iands now or
formerly of J. McKeen Cattell with the line d@ividing the lands
of Kulleseid on the west from lands now or formerly of the tnited
States of America on the east and which point is distant the
following courses from the southeasterlymost corner of Lot No. 3
as shown on that certain map entitled n...Daniel J. Donovan...."
which was filed in the Putnam County Clerk's Office as Map No.
1648, first

N 18-08-41 E 302.50 feet
as measured along the said easterly line of Lot No. 3 and then
the following courses as measured along the said southerly 1line
of the lands now or formerly of James McKeen Cattell

N Bl-14~16 E 314.86 feet

N 83-53-41 E 219.47 feet and

§ 83-27-17 E 315.33 feet.

Thence from +the said point of beginning southwesterly along the
said westerly line of the said Dnited States of America lands

S 31-49-48 W 2043.10 feet

to a point. Thence through the said Kulleseid 1lands the
following courses:

N 21-00~-00 W 191.79 feet to a cross cut

N 13-06-12 W 236.42 feet to a drilled hole
N 12-07-50 E 189.20 feet to a drilled hole
N 31-12-29 E 202.90 feet to a crass cut

N 19-38-26 E 256.02 feet to a drilled hole
N 316-50-26 E 240.36 feet




TO & SPlKke 1n Tne oot oI a D1Ircn Tree
N 30-08-00 E 237.59 feet to a drilled hole and
N 44-56-13 E 177.86 feet

to a hole drilled
Thence still through
center of the said st

HEEAZ A B ZZ N2

in a rock in the center of a stone wall.
the said Kulleseid
the following courses:

one wall

76-20-00
62-50-00
83-30-00
65-00-00
68-15-00
65-30-00
74~00-00
70-30-00
73-40-00
71-60-00
65-30-00

(CRo R RoRo N Ru N RNl ]

44.74
42.62
15.00
20.00
105.00
32.00
60.00
83.00
110.00
51.00
54.00

to the point or place of beginning.

Prepared by,

BADEY & WATSON,

Land Surveyors

U.S. Route 9

Cold Spring, New York
(914) 265-9217

ar

10516

feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet

lands and along the

and

Aot A TS (e 2




oo _
SCHEDULE B




5. Exxnsty. .
REAL ESTATE FY)
FEB2 5 v mua
TRANSFER TAX [Ha
PUTEIMLARA
COURTY nb
PLFASE RECORD AND RETURN TO:
Judith M. LaBelle, FEsqg.
Berle, Kass & Case
45 Rockefeller Plaza
New York, New York 10111
OF
RECORDED AT THE REQUEST
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INS.
CO. OF NEW YORK
$ITLE NO.: gp/- A 0373
LE?79
4N\
W\O See £3 .A.J.AI:W
AT 5
PNt )
Lot 341

“Burn: P huljaotour

PUTNAM COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE -
RECEVED ON THE.S &ﬁ%.g
Al H 2. L1%) M. RECORDED IN

BOOK No..AY0...0rL2ee.de

(B rd 2= | €7 834

%4405,
Ainnng rwmmm_m.

B e . U e T



CONSERVATION EASEMENT

uﬂmum nozmmwcwaHoz EASEMENT, AGREEMENT is made and
entered intdethis .302% day of , 1986, between LARS
I. KUOLLESEID, 014 Aalbany Post Road, Garrison, New York,
hereinafter called the "Grantor™, and OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE,
INC., a Mew York not-for-profit corporation with its principal
office at 122 East 42nd Street, New York, New York,
hereinafter called the "Grantee".

WITNESSETH:

GRANTOR is the owner in fee of real property (the
"Property") consisting of wmuuounwamwmwwa\m-.Wmnnmm in the Town
of Philipstown, Putnam County, New York, more particularly
described in Schedule A attached hereto;

The Property-is located within the viewshed of the
Hudson River in the Hudson Highlands, an area long noted for
its scenic beauty, is adjacent to the Appalachian Trail and is
near parklands owned by the State of New York:

GRANTEE is a New York not-for-profit corporation
within the meaning of Article 49, Title 3, of the En-
vironmental Conseryation Law of the State of New York (the
"Conservation Law")}; and

The parties desire to provide £for limited
development of the Property consistent with minimizing the
visual impact of such development by entering into a
Canservation Easement Agreement pursuant to the provisions of
Article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing,
the mutual covenants contained herein, and Ten ($10.) Dollars
and other good and valuable consideration paid to the Grantor,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of Easement. Grantor grants to Grantee

a perpetual conservation easement {the "Conservation
Easement™) over the Property which shall encumber the
Property.

1

03261




- e e—— h - - -
Easement is to conserve the scenic, open and natural character

of the Property while providing for its development.

1.2 Implementaticn. This Conservation Easement
shall be implemented by 1limiting and restricting the
development, management and use of the Property in accordance
with the provisions of this Conservation Easement.

2. Reserved Rights. Grantor reserves for
himself, and his successors in interest, all rights, with
respect to the Property or any part thereof,. including,
without limitation, the right of exclusive use, possession and
enjoyment of the Property or any part thereof and the right to
sell, transfer, 1lease, mortgage or otherwise encumber the
Property or any part thereof, as owner, subject to the
restrictions and covenants set forth in this Conservation
Easement. Nothing herein shall 'be construed as a grant to the
general public of any right to enter upon any part of the
Property or any lot except as is specifically set forth
herein.

3. Restrictions Applicable to the Property. The
following restrictions apply to the Property:

3.1 subdivision and Development. Subdivision of
the Property shall include not more than eight {8) residential
lots. Tf the Grantor subdivides the property, the Grantorx
shall, in the deed of conveyance, apportion to the land
conveyed the number of residential lots that the subdivided
portion can have.

3.2 Use. No commercial, industrial or insti-

‘tutional use of the Property or any part thereof shall be

permitted, except that the following shall be allowed: (a)
agriculture and forestry uses in accordance with sound
conservation practices, and (b) professional, business or
artistic use, provided, however, that such use is not visible
or audible outside a residence or accessory structure and that
any traffic attributable to such use is not in excess of that
associated with normal residential use.

3.3 Sale or Transfer. This Conservation Easement
shall not restrict or affect the rights of any owner of the
Property or any part thereof to sell, lease, transfer, convey,
mortgage or otherwise encumber the Property or part thereof.

2




Nothing contained herein shall restrict an owner oI tnoe
Property or part thereof in imposing further restrictions upon
conveyance or otherwise,

3.4 Structures. Only one single-family resi-
dential dwelling, together with appropriate  accessory
structures (i.e. garage, shed), plus a guest house or
caretaker cottage, may be constructed on each residential lot.
Any structure shall be gited, constructed and landscaped so as
to be aesthetically compatible with the surroundings, and, to
the extent it is wvisible from the Hudson River, shall be
finished and maintained so that, insofar as practicable, it
blends in with the natural landscape of the Property.

3.5 No Mobile Homes. Mobile homes or house
trailers are prohibited.

3.6 Exterior Appearance.

(a) All roofing and exterior surfaces (except for
glass) shall be non-reflective.

(b} No signs shall be permitted except those of
professional quality and not more than three (3) square feet
in size which: (i) indicate, by one sign, the name of the
owner; (ii) mark a roadway; or (iii) are customarily used for
posting.

(c) Any antenna, satellite disk, outdoor fixture,
swimming pool or tennis court shall be as unobtrusive as
possible and shall be constructed and landscaped so as to be
aesthetically compatible with the surroundings, and, to the
extent it ig visible from the Hudson River, ghall be finished
and maintained so that, insofar as practicable, it blends in
with the natural landscape of the Property.

3.7 Chemicals. No pesticide, herbicide or
other chemical treatment for land, vegetation or animals shall
be used unless its use is necessary, safe for humans and will
not contaminate any source of drinking water.

3.8 Dumping and Storage. No dumping or storing
of ashes, sawdust, non—composted organic waste, sewage OrC
garbage, scrap material, sediment discharge, oil and its by-
products, leached compounds, toxic fumes or any other
unsightly or offensive materials shall be allowed.




3.3 Timber. 10 Tne excenc visiule FRFQ i [T
Hudson River, no cutting or removing of trees or other natural
landscaping shall be permitted, except: (i) to remove those
trees which are fallen, dead, diseased or dangerous; (ii) to
provide for the construction of structures, improvements,
roadways and driveways allowed under this Conservation
tasement; (iii} to create and maintain wviews of the Hudson
River from any residence; {iv) to maintain trails, reads and
existing open spaces; and, subject to the approval of Grantee,
{v) to create new open spaces and views.

u.chwnwn. zoasmnnw.mnmcmHmMn~usnmmomon
subsurface mining or arilling shall be permitted.

3.11 Roadways and Driveways. New roadways and
driveways may be constructed for ingress and egress to and
from permitted structures.

4. Additional Covenantsg:

4.1 Enforcement. Grantor and Grantee may enforce
this Conservation Easement in law or eqguity pursuant to the
provisions of Article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law
against any or all owners of the Property. If there is a
violation of any of the provisions of this Conservation
Easement, Grantor or Grantee shall notify the party in
violation, who shall promptly cure the violation by (a)
ceasing the wviolation or (b) restoring the Property to the
condition before the violation, or (c} both, as the case may
be. If the violation continues, Grantor or Grantee shall have
the right, but not the obligation, to cure it by direct action
and the owner shall reimburse Grantor or Grantee for all
expenses reasonably incurred to enforce the Conservation
Easement and to cure the viglation. Fajilure to enforce any
restriction or covenant herein contained shall in no event be
deemed a waiver of a right to do so thereafter as to the same
violation or breach, or as to one occurring prior to or
subseguent thereto.

4.2 Amendment., This Conservation Easement may be
amended wupon the written consent of Grantee. Any such
amendment shall be consistent with the basic purpose of this
Conservation Easement and shall comply with Article 4%, Title
3, of the Conservation Law. .




4,31 Further Acts. Each party shall perform any
further acts and execute and deliver any documents, including
amendments to this conservation Easement which may be
reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this
Conservation Easement oL which are necessary to qualify this
instrument as a conservation easement under Article 45, Title
3, of the conservation Law or any regulations promulgated
pursuant thereto.

4.4 Encumbrance b Conservation Easement. Any
subsequent conveyance including, without fimitation, the
transfer, lease or mortgage of the Property or any lot, shall
be subject to this conservation Easement, and any deed or
other instrument evidencing or effecting such conveyance shall
contain languge substantially as follows: “This [conveyance,
lease, mortgage, easement, etc.] is subject to a Conservation
fasement which runs with the land and which was granted to

Open Space Institute, Inc., dated ., 1986, and recorded
, 1986, in the office of the Clerk of Putnam County at
Liber of Deeds at Page .* The failure to include such

language shall not affect the validity or applicability of
this Conservation Easement to such property.

4.5 Assignment. This Conservation Easement may be
assigned by the Grantee, provided, however, that an assignment
may be made only to a not-for~profit corporation or otherwise
as provided in Article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law.

4.6 Taxes and Assessments. Each owner of the
Property or any part thereof shall pay all taxes and
assessments lawfully assessed against the Property or part
thereof owned by such owner, who shall provide receipted tax

bills to the Graniee upon request.

4.7 Severability. Invalidation of any provision
of this Conservation Easement, by court judgment, order,
statute, or otherwise, shall not affect any other provisions,
which shall be and remain in force and effect.

4.8 Bindin Bffect. The provisions of this
Conservation Easement shall run with the land and shall be
binding on each owner and any party entitled to possession or
use of the Property while such party is the owner or entitled
to possession or use thereof. as used in this Section 4.8,
the term owner shall include the owner of any beneficial
equity interest in the Property.




De PUALl1lIl80 LONSELVALLIWIL Wiilibb didb atrls wiry notivais o

5.1 Ceontinuity. Grantee agrees that it will
assign this Conservation Easement only to an assignee which
agrees to continue to carry out the conservation purposas of
this Conservation Easement. This Conservation Easement may
only be assigned to an assignee which is a gqualified
organization as defined in Section 170{h) of the Code and the
regulations thereunder. Any assignee other than a
governmental unit must be an entity able to enforce this
Conservation Easement, having purposes gimilar to those of the
Grantee which encompass those of this Conservation Easemank.

5.2 Notice. Grantor agrees to give Grantee
written notice Defore exercising any reserved right, the
exercise of which may have an adverse impact on the
conservation interests of this Conservation Easement.

5.3 Inspection. The Grantee and its duly
authorized representatives shall have the right to enter the
Property at reasonable times, in a reasonable manner and, when
practicable, after giving notice, to inspect for compliance
with the terms of this Conservation Easement.

5.4 Extinguishment. If and when the restrictioas
contained in this Conservation Easement are extinguished by
eminent domain taking or otherwise, Grantor and Grantee agree
to divide the proceeds in proportions equal to the fair market
value of their interests in the Property on the date of
execution of this Conservation Easement, unless the laws of
New York provide that the -Grantor is entitled to the entire
proceeds without regard to the terms of this Conservation
Easement. Grantor and Grantee agree that the value of the
Grantee's interest on the date of execution of this
Conservation Easement shall equal the amount by which the fair
market value of the Property immediately prior to the
execution of this Conservation Easement is reduced by the
restrictions imposed by this Conservation Easement. Grantee
agrees to devote its share of the proceeds in & manner
consistent with the conservation purposes inherent in this
Conservation Easement.




instrument as of the day ana yegp tirSe QIUVE o g
-

i
Tars 1. Rulleseid

OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE, INC.
a New York not-for-profit
corpgration

By N.?c.. o A

h Ure - Bernt o™




STATE OF NEW YORK )
58.1
COUNTY OF t¢w TURI

On the 3o it day of uwmnmselﬁﬁav. 1986, before me
personally came Lars I. Kulleseid, to me known and known to me
to be the individual described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and duly acknowledged to me that he
executed the same,

\m\hn(ﬁ B : w@&f

Notary Public

NEAL A. BROWN
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 4815150
Qualitied In Wesichestof County «h V

, 8.
STATE OF NEW YORK ) Cemmisaien Expires March 30,3

COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

On the 25th day of November, 1986, before mne
personally came Katharine Larsen, to me known, who, being by
me duly sworn, did depose and say that she resides at 439 East
51st Street, New York, New York; that she is the Vice~-
President of OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE, INC., the corporation
described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; and
that she signed her name thereto by order of the board of
directors of said corporation.

Notary Public

MARVEX CALDWELL
NOTRRY
Ay T ke

Erotm T 8, 1087




SCHEDULE A

e

All that certain parcel of land situyate in the Town of
Philipstown, County of Putnam and State of New York, which was
conveyed by William Prior to Lars Kulleseid by a deed dated
pecember 18, 1985 and recorded in the Putnam county Clerk's
ILiber 877 of Deeds at Page 51 on December 23, 1885, excepting
therefrom the land bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the eagterlymost corner of the premises
so conveyed by william Prior to Lars Kulleseid which point 1is
formed by the intersection of the southerly line of lands now or
formerly of J. McKeen cattell with the line dividing +he lands
of Kulleseid on the west from 1ands now or formerly of the United
states of America on the east and which point is distant the
following courses from the southeasterlymost corner of Lot No. 3
as shown on that certain map entitled "...Daniel J. ponovan...."
which was £iled in the Putnam County Clerk's Office as Map No.
1648, first

N 18:08-41 E 302.50 feet

as measured along the said easterly line of Lot No. 3 and then
the following courses as measured along the said southerly 1line
of the lands now oOr formerly of James McKeen Cattell

N 81-14-16 E 314.85 feet
N 83-53-41 E 219.47 feet and
§ 83-27-17 E 315.33 feet.

Thence from +the said point of beginning southwesterly along the
said westerly line of the said United States of Amexica lands

S 31-49-48 W 2043.10 feet

to a point. Thence through the said Kulleseid 1lands the
following courses:

N 21-00-00 W 191.79 fest to a cross cut

N 13-06-12 W 236.42 feet to a drilled hole -
N 12-07-50 E 189.20. fest to a drilled hole

N 31-12-29 E 202.90 feet to a cross cut

N 19-38-26 E 256.02 feet to a drilled hole

N 36-50-26 E 240.36 feet

-




N 30-08-00 E 237.59 feet to
N 44-56-13 E 177.86 feet

to a hole drilled in a rock

—— &}

e

a drilled hole and

Thence still through the said EKulleseid
the following courses:

center of the said stone wall

76-20~00
£§2-50-00
83-30-00
65~-00-00
68-15~00
6§5-30-00
74-00-00
70-30-00
73-40-00
71~-00-00
65-30-00

Z2ZZnBZ20nEY

B b b b b B b B b b

44.74
42.62
15.00
20.00
105.00
32.00
60.00
83.00
110.00
51.00
54.00

to the point or place of beginning.

feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet

in the center of a stone wall.
lands and along the

and

i g,

- s




PLEASE RECORD AND RETURN TO:

Neal A. Brown, Esd.

Greenfield Eisenberg Stein & Senior
99 Park Avenue - 10th Floor

New York, New York 10016

RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INS.
CcO. OF NEW YORK

TITLE NO,: DmuT\\qum

[ — A8

plo el €3
Bk | a0
pot 1 34! o

Town: Phili pstown

2

FEB 2 5 vaswn ]

PUTNAM COUNTY CLERK'S OSFICE - NSFER TAX o

m&é N awm,ﬂua oF. a4 1987 jﬁzz o
L H A2 MEr RECORDED IN LOUNLY
o o, Reope  LEe_goud

AT P AND EXAIAINED

CLERY

i rld 25 | g7 02

FITH40 ST
KINNIT HYN LAY




4 \ OPEN SPACE
[‘i j INSTITUTE
LAND TRUST

VIA EMAIL ONLY

October 13, 2020

Roland Heitmann
Jeanne-Marie Fleming

7 Garrison Landing, Apt. B
Garrison, NY 10524

Re:  Notice of proposed structure on Lot 71.-3-15 of Angels Hill

Dear Roland and Jeanne-Marie:

Thank you for your email dated October 5, 2020, with the site plan prepared for
submission to the Town of Philipstown Planning Board. As you are aware, a
conservation easement dated May 27, 2004 and held by the Open Space Institute
encumbers much of your property. The purpose of this conservation easement is to
conserve the scenic, open and natural character of the property while providing for its
development. As such, the easement limits the number of structures on the easement
property to one (1) residence, accessory structures and one (1) guest house or caretaker
cottage, and also requires that the structures be sited and designed in a manner that
minimizes impacts to the viewshed of the Hudson River Valley. After reviewing the
plan documents, we have concluded that the proposed construction is in line with the
purpose and restrictions set forth by the conservation easement. As a reminder, Section
3.6 states that all roofing and exterior surfaces (except for glass) shall be non-reflective.
Please keep this in mind as you select colors and materials for roofing and siding.

Please do not hesitate to reach back out if you need further clarification or guidance as
you build your new home. Upon completion, please contact me directly to schedule a

time for OSI staff to document the new construction and update our records.

Best regards,

Wilfred Nieves
Senior Land Steward

Cc: Jeff LeJava, Vice President and Associate General Counsel

OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE LAND TRUST, INC
1350 BROADWAY SUITE 201 « NEW YORK, NY 10018 - T 212 290-8200 ¢ 212 244-3441 - OSINY.ORG



0540°0054

4i+ !

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

THIS CON WATION EASEMENT  ACREEMENT is made and
entered intshﬁhis ¥ 3ay of 1986, between LARS
T. KULLESEID, 01d Albany Post Road, Garrison, New York,
hereinafter called the »Grantor”, and SCENIC HUDSON, INC., a
New York not-for-profit corporation with its principal office
at 9 Vassar Street, roughkeepsie, New York, hereinafter called
the "Grantee”.

WITNESSETH:

GRANTOR is the owner in fee of real property (the
nproperty”) consisting of approximately 16,1 acres in the Town
of Philipstown, Putnam County, New York, more particularly
described in Schedule A attached hereto;

The Property is located within the viewshed of the
Hudson River in the Eudson Highlands, an area long noted for
its ccenic beauty, is adjacent to the Appalachian Trail &nd is
near parklands owned by the State of New York:

GRANTEE is a Wew York not-for-profit corporation
within the meaning of Article 49, title 3, of the En-
vironmental Conservation Law of ~he State of New York (the
*conservation Law")}; and

The parties desire to conserve the Property by
entering inte a Conservation Easemaent Agreement pursuant to
the provisions of Article 40, Title 3, of the Conservation
Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the
foregoing, the mutual covenants contained herein, and Ten
($10.) Dollars and other good and valnable consideration paid
to the Grantor, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of Easement. Grantor grants to Grantee
a perpetual conservation easement {the "Congervation
Easement®) over the Property which shall encumber the
Property.

03260




0940 0055

1.1 Grant of Easement of View. Grantor grants to
Grantee, for its beneflt and the benefit of the public, the
right to view the Property in its scenic, wooded state, from
the Hudson River and the Appalachian Trail, as that state
exists on the date of this grant or in the future through
natural evolutionary processes (except as otherwise provided
herein) and uses otherwise consistent with the rights reserved
herein by Grantor. The present state of the Property |is
evidenced by the aerial photograph furnished to the Grantee on
the date of execution of this Conservation Easement.

1.2 Grant of Easement %to_Construct, Maintain and
Use Appalachian Prall Spur. Grantor grants to Grantee or its
designee the right to make and maintain one "spur" trail
connecting a viewing point in the Property with the
Appalachian Trail. The spur shall be of a similar character
to the Appalachian Trail. The spur and viewing point shall
be located as indicated on the map attached hereto as Schedule
B. Grantor grants to Grantee, its successors and assigns, and
its or their agents, the right during the three years
beginning with the date of this Conservation Easement to cross
the Property and, while it is owned by Grantor, contiguous
land to make the spur. Access for maintenance subsequent to
the three-ysar period shall be directly from the Appalachian
Trail only. Grantor further grants to Grantee, its successors
and assigns and to the public the right of pedestrian access
to the Property to use the spur and viewing point, provided
that such access shall be directly from the Appalachian Trail
only and shall be restricted to the spur and viewing point and
a corridor of ten feet on either side of the spur. Access
shall not be by use of motorized vehicles of any kind,
including, without limitation, trail bikes and snowmobiles.

2. Reserved Rights. Grantor reserves for himself, and
his successors in interest, all richts, with respect to the
Property, 1including, without 1limitation, the right of
exclusive use, possession and enjoyment of the Property and
the right to sell, transfer, lease, mortgage or otherwise
encumber the Property, as owner, subject to the restrictions
and covenants set forth in this Conservation Easement.
Nothing herein shall be construed as a grant to the general
public of any right to enter upon any part of the Property
except as is specifically set forth hereinabove.




" 0940 0056

3. Restrictions Applicable to the Property. The
following restrictions apply to the Property:

3.1 ose. No commercial., industrial or
institutional use 6F the Property shall be permitted, except
trail use as set forth hereinabove, and no change of any kind
to the present state of the Property shall be caused by the
Grantor that is inconsistent with the provisions of this
Conservation Easement.

3.2 Sale or Transfer. This Conservation Easement
shall not restrict or atfect the rights of any owner of the
Property to subdivide, sell, lease, transfer, convey, mortgage
or otherwise encumber the Property. Nothing contained herein
shall restrict an owner of the Property in imposing further
restrictions upon conveyance or otherwise.

3.3 Structures. No permanent or temporary
structure may be erected or maintained on the Property.

3.4 No Mobile Honmes. Mobile homes or house
trailers are prohibited.

3.5 Chemicals. ¥No pesticide, herbicide or other
chemical treatment for land, vegetation or animals shall be
used unless its use is necessary, safe for humans and will not
conteminate any source of drinking water.

3.6 Dumping and Storage. No dumping or storing
of ashes, sawvdust, non-composted organic waste, sewage oY
garbage, sc¢rap material, sediment discharge, oil and its by-
products, leached compounds, toxic fumes or any other
unsightly or offensive materials shall be allowed.

3.7 Timber, No cutting or removing of trees or
alteration of the natural habitat, terrain or scil cover shall
be permitted, except to create the spur trail, to remove
trees which are fallen, dead, diseased or dangerous, or to
preserve views from the spur and cother view points of the
Property located on a ridge line.



0940 0057

3.8 Mining. No quarry, gravel pit, surface or
subsurface mining or dr?lling shall be permitted.

3.9 Roadways and Driveways. No new roadway or
driveway shall be constructed on the Property.

4. Additional Covenants:

4.1 Enforcement. Grantor and Grantee may enforce
this Conservation Easement in law or eguity pursuant to the
provisions of Article 49, Title 3, of the Consarvation Law
against any or all owners of the Property. If there is a
violation of any of the provisions of ¢this Conservation
Easement, Grantor or Grantee shall notify the party in
violation, who shall promptly cure the violation by (a)
ceasing the violation or (b) restoring the Property to the
condition before the violation, or (c¢) both, as the case may
be. If the violation continues, Grantor or Grantee shall have
the right, but not the obligation, to cure it by direct action
and the owner shall reimburse Grantor or Grantee for all
expenses reasonably incurred to enforce the Conservation
Basement and to cure the violation. Pailure to enforce any
restriction or covenant herein contained shall in no event be
deemed 2 waiver of a right to do so thereafter as to the same
violation or breach, or as to one occurring prior to or
subsequent thereto. A third party enforcement right is hereby
granted to Open Space Institute, Inc., 122 Bast 42nd Btreet,
New York, New York.

4.2 Amendment. This Conservation Easement may be
amended upon the written consent of Grantee. any such
amendment shall be consistent with the basic purpose of this
Conservation Easement and shall comply with Article 49, Title
3, of the Conservation Law.

4.3 Further Acts. Bach party shall perform any
further acts and execute and deliver any documents, including
amendments to this Conservation Easement which may be
reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this
Conservation Easement or which are necessary to qualify this
instrument as a conservation easement under Article 49, Title
3, of the Conservation Law or any regulations promulgated

.




0040 0058

pursunant thereto.

4.4 Encumbrance b Conservation Easement. Any
subsequent conveyance nciuding, W ou mitation, the
transfer, lease oOr mortgage of the Property., shall be subject
to this conservation Easement, and any deed or other
instrument evidencing or effecting such conveyance shall
contaln languge substantially as follows: wphis [conveyance,
lease, mortgage, easement, etc.] is subject to a conservation
fasement which runs with the land and which was granted to
Scenic Hudson, Inc.., dated . 1986, and recorded .
1986, in the office of the Clerk of Putnam County at
Liber of Deeds at Page . The failure to include such
language shall not affect the validity or applicability of
this Conservation Easement to such property.

4.5 Assignment. This Conservation Easement may be
assigned by the Grantee. provided, however, +hat an assignment
may be made only to a not-for-profit corporation or otherwisge
as provided in Article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law.

4.6 Taxes and Assessments. gach owner of the
Property or gsubdivided portion shall pay all taxes and
assessments lawfully assessed against the Property or portion
owned by such owner, who shall provide receipted tax bills to
the Grantee upon request.

4.7 Severability. Invalidation of any provision
of this Conservation Easement, by court judgment, order,
statute, or otherwise, chall not affect any other provisions,
which shall be and remain in force and effect.

4.8 Bindin Effect. The provisions of this
conservation Easement shall run with the land and shall be
binding on each owner and any party entitled to possession or
use of the Property while such party is the owner Or entitled
to possession or Use thereof. As used in this Section 4.8,
the term owner shall include the owner of any beneficial
equity interest in the Property.

5. Qualified Conservation Contribution Covenants:

-5

—



0940 0059

5.1 Continuity. Grantee agrees that it will
assign this conservation Easement only to an assignee which
agrees to continue to carry out the conservation purposes of
this Conservation Easement. This Conservation Easement may
only be assigned to an assignee which is @& qualified
organization as defined in Section 170{h) of the Code and the
regulations thereunder. AnY assignee other than a

governmental unit must be an entity able to enforce this
Conservation Easement, having purposes similar to those of the
Crantee which encompass those of this conservation Easement.

5.2 Notice. Grantor agrees to give Grantee
written notice betfore exercising any reserved right, the
exercise of which may have an adverse impact on the
conservation interests of this Conservation Easement.

5.3 Inspection. The Grantee and its duly
authorized representatives shall have the right to enkter the
Property at reasonable times, in a reasonable manner and, vwhen
practicable, after giving notice, to jnspect for compliance
with the terms of this conservation Easement.

5.4 Extinguishment. 1f and when the restrictions
contained in this Conservation Easement ate extinguished by
eminent domain taking or otherwise, Grantor and Grantee agree
to divide the proceeds in proportions equal to the fair market
value of their interests in the Property on the date of
execution of this Conservation Easement, unless the laws of
New York provide that the Grantor is entitled to the entire
proceeds without regard to the terms of this Conservation
EBasement. Grantor and Grantee agree that the value of the
Crantee's interest on the date of execution of this
Conservation Easement shall equal the amount by which the fair
market value of the Property jmmediately prior to the
execution of this Conservation Easement is reduced by the
restrictions imposed by this conservation Easement. Grantee
agrees to devote its share of the proceeds in 2a manner
consistent with the conservation purposes inherent in this
Conservation Easement.




0040 0060
IN WITNESS WREREOF, the parties have executed thi
instrument as of the day and yeacg ir;zfabove w ittgn

L

ars I. Kulleseid

SCENIC HUDSON, INC.

a New York not-for-profit
cor on

BY,




0940 0061

STATE OF NEW YORK )
E5.:
COUNTY OF A€ JORK

on the i3613 day of DA{£4¢A£E>. 1986, before me
personally came Lars I. Rullegeid, to me known and known to me
to be the individual described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and duly acknowledged to me that he

frad A, Prom—

Notary Public

NEAL A. BROWN
Notary Public, Elate of New York
Ho. 4515350

i in Wealchuster County
cﬂﬂ'&"&.m March 30, 1!.{ 7

STATE OF NEW YORK )

55,
county oF Wbt

on the [ 2 day of &kmesefus~., 1986, before

me personally cam AN , to me known, who, being by me
duly sworn, did depoSe and say that he, resides at ;\.Q.Ea.&xm

Alass Ypida, New York; that he is theChmnana d P CENIC
RUDSON, INC., the corporation described in and which eXtcuted
the foregeing instrument; and that he signed his name thereto
by order of the board of directors of sald corporation.

LI

Notary/Public

GERAID E ROSS
Notary Public. Stote of New York
No. 31-25GC697
Qualfied In New York Coul&
Cotmmigsiom Expires Macch 30, 1987




| ) 5(&34“) (natﬂa Sebudecle A

File: L3K30DC6.DES Page: 1

P

File 81-155

Ww.0. 3767
December 30, 1986
G.J.H.

Description of Property
prepared for
Lars Kulleseid
{overall Conservation Easement)

All that certain parcel of 1land situate in the Town of
Philipstown, County of Putnam and State of New vork which is a
portion of those lands conveyed by William Prior to Lars
Kulleseid by a deed dated December 18, 1985 and recorded in the
putnam County Clerk's Liber 877 of Deeds at Page 51 on December
23, 1985 that is bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the easterlymost corner of the premises
so conveyed by Wwilliam prior to Lars Kulleseid which peoint is
formed by the intersection of the southerly line of iands now or
formeriy of J. MNcKeen cattell with the line dividing the lands
i of Kulleseid on the west from lands now or formerly of the gnited
states of BAmerica on the east and which point is distant the
following courses from the sountheasterlymost corner of Lot Ro. 3
as shown on that certain map entitled "...Daniel J. Donovan...,"
which was filed in the Putnam County Clerk's Office as Map No.
1648, first

N 18-08-41 E 302.50 feet

as measured along the gaid easterly line of Lot No. 3 and then
the following courses as measured along the said southerly line
of the lands now or formerly of James McKeen Cattell

N B1-14-16 E 314.86 feet
N B3-53~41 E 219.47 feet and
S 83-27-17 E 315.33 feet.

Thence from the said point of beginning southwesterly along the
said westerly line of the said United States of America lands

? S 31-49-48 W 2043.10 feet

to a point. Thence through the said Kulleseid lands the
following courses:

cross cut
drilled hole
drilleé hole
cross cut
drilled hole

N 21-00-00 W 181.79 feet to
N 13-06-12 W 236.42 feet to
N 12-07-50 E 189.20 feet to
N 31-12-29 E 202.90 feet to
N
N

pRpwa

19-38-26 B 256.02 feet to
36-50-26 E 240.36 feet



0940 0063

File: L3K30DC6.DES Page: 2

to a spike in the root of a birch tree
N 30-08-00 E 237.59 feet to a drilled hole and
N 44-56-13 E 177.86 feet

to a hole drilled in a rock in the center of a stone wall.
Thence still through the said FKulleseid lands and along the
center of the said stone wall the following courses:

N 76-20-00 E 44.74 feet
N 62-50-00 E 42.62 feet
S 83-30-00 E 15.00 feet
N 65-00-00 E 20.00 feet
N 68-15-00 E 105.00 feet
N 65-30-00 E 32.00 feet
N 74-00-00 E 60.00 feet
N 70-30-00 E B83.00 feet
N 73-40-00 E 110.00 feet
N 71-00-00 E 51.00 feet and
N 65-30-00 E 54.00 feet

to the point or place of beginning.

Prepared by,

BADEY & WATSON,

Land Surveyors

0.5. Route 9

Cold Spring, New York 10516
{914) 265-9217

g o b

— et T
b S il







0940 0065

3 EannsX....
REAL ESTATE FS)
FEB25 wsn gg
TRANSFER TAX [
W Jl
PLEASE RECORD ARD RETURN TO:
Judith M. LaBelle, Esq.
Berle, Kass & Case
45 Rockefeller Plaza
New York, Mew York 10111
T OF
RECORDED AT THE REQUES
PIRST AMERICAN TITLE INS.
co. OF NEW YORK
COTLE NO.: go)- £ 0373
5’79
ANO O
P"’ Set 53 R
™hat TSt
Lot - 3*4 !

—Bun: P hulpaton

PUTNAM CO K's nrnca
RECEIVED ON Q%OF
A\ 452 im.

BOOK No..AYQ..0r. L.

AT P FAND EXAMINED

eaizes

18, nd 2 | £7 8y

331440 5.y
AlNnD3 w?;ﬂﬂ




r
F!
i..-

0940 0066

£l

-

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

aTHIS CONS TION EMENT, AGREEMENT is made and
entered intf8ethis B0 day o , 1986, between LARS
I. ERULLESEID, 01d Albany Post Road, Garrison, New York,
hereinafter called the "Grantor”, and OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE,
INC., a New York not—for-profit corporation with its principal
office at 122 &East 42nd Street, New York, New York,
hereinafter called the "Grantee®.

WITNESSETH:

GRANTOR is the owner in fee of real property (the
nproperty”) consisting of approximately/{}.3acres in the Town
of Philipstown, Putnam County, New York, more particularly
described in Schedule A attached hereto;

The Property-is located within the viewshed of the
Hudson River in the Hudson Highlands, an area long noted for
its scenic beauty, is adjacent to the Appalachian Trail and is
near parklands owned by the State of New York;

GRANTEE is a New York not-for-profit corporation
within the meaning of Article 49, Title 3, of the En-
vironmental Conservation Law of the State of New York [(the
"ronservation Law"); and

The parties desire to provide for limited
development of the Property consistent with minimizing the
vissal impact of such development by entering into a
Conservation Easement Agreement pursuant to the provisions of
article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing,
the mutual covenants contained herein, and Ten {$10.) Dollars
and other good and valuable consideration paid to the Grantor,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of Easement. Grantor grants to Grantee

a perpetual conservation easement (the "conservation
Easement®™) over the Property which shall encunber the

Property.

03261

-




0940 0067

1.1 Purpose. The purpose of this Conservation
Easement is to conserve the scenic, open and natural character
of the Property while providing for its develcopment.

1.2 Implementation. Tohis Conservation Easement
shall be implemented by limiting and restricting the
gevelopment, management and use of the Property in accordance
with the provisions of this Conservation Easement.

2. Reserved Rights, Grantor reserves for
himself, and his successors 1in interest, all rights, with
respect to the Property or any part thereof,. including,
withont limitation, the right of exclusive use, possession and
enjoyment of the Property or any part thereof and the right to
sell, transfer, 1lease, mortgage or otherwise encumber the
Property or any part thereof, as owner, subject to the
restrictions and covenants set forth in this Conservation
Easement. Nothing herein shall be construed as a grant to the
general public of any right to enter upon any part of the
Property or any lot except as is specifically set forth
herein.

3. Restrictions Applicable to the Property. The
following restrictions apply to the Property:

3.2 Subdivision and Development. Subdivision of
the Property shall include not more than eight (8) residential
lots. If the Grantor subdivides the property, the Grantor
ghall, in the deed of conveyance, apportion to tha land
conveyed the number of residential lots that the subdivided
portion can have.

3.2 Use. No commercial, industrial or insti-
‘tutional use of the Property or any part thereof shall be
permitted, except that the following shall be allowed: (a)
agriculture and forestry uses in accordance with sound
conservation practices, and (b) professional, business or
artistic use, provided, however, that such use is not visible
or audible outside a residence or accessory structure and that
any traffic attributable to such use is not in excess of that
associated with normal residential use.

3.3 Sale or Transfer. This Conservation Easement
shall not restrict or affect the rights of any owner of the
Property or any part thereof to sell, lease, transfer, convey,
mortgage or otherwise encumber the Property or part therect.




. 0940 066‘8

Nothing contained herein shall restrict an owner of the
Property or part thereof in imposing further restrictions upon
conveyance or otherwise.

3.4 Structureg. Only one single~family resi-
dential dwelling, together with appropriate accessory
structures (i.e. garage, shed), plus a guest house Or
caretaker cottage, may be constructed on each residential lot.
Any structure shall be sited, constructed and landscaped so as
to be aesthetically compatible with the surroundings, and, to
the extent it is visible £from the Hudson River, shall be
finished and maintained so that, insofar as practicable, it
blends in with the natural landscape of the Property.

3.5 No Mobile Homes. Mobile homes or house
trailers are prohibited.

3.6 Exterior Appearance.

{a) All roofing ané exterior surfaces (except for
glass) shall be non~reflective.

(b} No signs shall be permitted except those of
professional gquality and not more than three (3) square feet
in size which: (i) indicate, by ome sign, the name of the
owner; [ii) mark a roadway; or {iii) sre customarily used for
posting.

{c} Any antenna, satellite disk, outdoor fixture,
swimming pool or tennis court shall be as unobtrusive as
possible and shall be constructed and landscaped so as to be
aesthetically compatible with the surroundings, and, to the
extent it iz visible from the Hudson River, shall be finished
and maintained so that, insofar as practicable, it blends in
with the natural landscape of the Property.

3.7 Chemicals. No pesticide, herbicide or
other chemical treatment For land, vegetation or animals shall
be used unless its use is necessary, cafe for humans and will
not contaminate any source of drinking water.

3.8 Dumping and Storage., No dumping or storing
of ashes, sawdust, non—-composted arganic waste, sewage O
garbage, scrap material, sediment discharge, oil and its by-
products, leached compounds, toxic <fumes Or any other
unsightly or offensive materials shall be allowed.



0940 0069

3.2 Timber. ma the extent visible from the
Hudson River, no cutting or removing of trees or other natural
landscaping shall be permitted, except: (i) to remove those
trees which are fallen, dead, diseased or dangerous; (ii) to
provide for the construction of structures, Iimprovements,
roadways and driveways allowed under this Conservation
Easement; (iii) to create and maintain views of the Hudson
River from any residence; {iv) to maintain trails, roads and
existing open spaces; and, subject to the approval of Grantee,
(v) to create new open spaces and views.

3.10 Mining. No gquarry, gravel pit, svrface or
subsurface mining or drilling shall be permitted. .

3.1)1 Roadways and Driveways. WNew roadways and

driveways may be constructed for ingress and egress to and
from permitted structures. .

4. Additional Covenants:

4.1 Enforcement. Grantor and Grantee may enforce
this Conservation Easement in law or equity pursuant to the
provisions of Article 49, Title 3, of the Conservation Law
against any or all owners of the Property. If there is a
violation of any of the provisions of this Conservation
Easement, Grantor or Grantee shall notify the party in
violation, who shall promptly ocure the violation by {a)
ceasing the violation or (b) restoring the Property to the
condition before the violation, or (c) both, as the case may
be. If the violation continues, Grantor or Grantee shall have
the right, but not the obligation, to cure it by direct action
and the owner shall reimburse Grantor or Grantee for all
expenses reasonably incurred to enforce the Conservation
Easement and to cure the violation. Failure to enforce any
restriction or covenant herein contained shall in no event be
deemed a waiver of a right to do so thereafter as to the same
violation or breach, or as to one occurring prior to or
subseguent thereto.

4.2 Amendment. This Conservation Easement may be
amended upon the written consent of Grantee. Any such
amendment shall be consistent with the basic purpose of this
Conservation Easement and shall comply with Article 49, Title
3, of the Conservation Law.




0940 0070

4.3 Further Acts. Each party shall perform any
further acts and execute and deliver any documents, including
amendments to this Conservation Easement which may be
reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this
Conservation Fasement or which are necessary to qualify this
instrument as a conservation easement under Article 49, Title
3, of the Conservation Law or any regulations promulgated
pursvant thereto.

4.4 Encumbrance by Conservation Easement. Any
subseguent conveyance includ%ng. without iimitation, the
transfer, lease or mortgage of the Property or any lot, shall
be subject to this Conservation Easement, and any deed or
other instrument evidencing or effecting such conveyance shall
contain languge substantially as follows: *thig ([conveyance,

lease, mortgage, easement, etc.] is subject to a Conservation
Easement which runs with the land and which was granted to

Open Space Institute, Inc., dated , 1986, and recorded
, 1986, in the office of the Clerk of Putnam County at
Liber of Deeds at Page ." The failure to include such

language shall not affect the walidity eor applicability of
this Conservation Easement to such property-

4.5 Asgignment. This Conservation Easement may be
assigned by the Grantee, provided, however, that an assignment
may be made only to a not-for-profit corporation or ‘otherwise
as provided in Article 49, pitle 3, of the Conservation Law.

4.6 Taxes and Assegsgments. Each owner of the
Property or any part thereof shall pay all taxes and
assessments lawfully assessed against the Property ox part
thereof owned by such owner, who shall provide receipted tax
bills to the Grantee upon request.

4.7 Severability. Invalidation of any provision
of this Conservation Easement, by court judgment, order,
statute, or otherwise, shall not aFfect any other provisions,
which shall be and remain in force and effect.

4.8 Binding Effect. The provisions of this
conservation Easement shall run with the land and shall be
binding on each owner and any party entitled to possession or
use of the Property while such party is the .owner or entitled
to possession or use thereof. As used in this Section 4.8,
the term owner shall include the owner of any beneficial
equity interest in the Property.

5



0940 0071

5. Qualified Conservation Contribution Covenants:

5.1 CQntinuit%. Grantee agrees that it will
assign this Conservation asement only to an assignee which
agrees to continue to carry out the conservation purposes of
this Conservation Easement. This Conservation Easement may
only be assigned to an assignee which is a gqualified
organization as defined in Section 170(h) of the Code and the
regulations thereunder. Any assignee other than a
governmental unit must be an entity able to enforce this
Conservation Easement, having purposes similar to those of the
Grantee which encompass those of this Conservation Easement.

5.2 Notice. Grantor agrees to give Grantee
written notice before exercising any reserved right, the
exercise of which may have an adverse impact on the
conservation interests of this Conservation Easement,

5.3 Inspection. The Grantee and its duly
authorized representatives shall have the right to enter the
Property at reasonable times, in a reasonable manner and, when
practicable, after giving notice, to inspect for compliance
with the terms of this Conservation Pasement.

5.4 Extinguishment. If and when the restricticas
contained in this Conservation Easement are extinguished by
epinent domain taking or otherwise, Grantor and Grantee agree
to divide the proceeds in proportions equal to the fair market
value of their interests in the Property on the date of
execution of this Conservation Easement, unless the laws of
New York provide that the -Grantor is entitled to the entire
proceeds without regard to the terms of this Conservation
Basenent. Grantor and Grantee agree that the value of the
Grantee's interest on the date of execution of this
Conservation Easement shall egual the amount by which the fair
market value of the Property immediately prior to the
execution of this Conservation Easement Iis reduced by the
restrictions imposed by this Conservation Easement. Grantee
agrees to devote its share of the proceeds in @a manner
consistent with the conservation purposes inherent in this
Conservation Easement.




"

.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have execut
instrument as of the day and ye2 ﬂj above wrjtten./
t

Tars 1. Kulleseid

OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE, INC.
a New York not-for-profit
corpgration A

BY G flac & e/

Ve - KU—»'M




0940 0073

STATE OF NEW YORK )
58,2
COUNTY OF Lew JURK

on the 3015: day of ni“-cfwwm, 1986, before me

personally came Lars 1. Rulleseid, to me known and known to me
to be the individual described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and duly acknowledged to me that he

executed the same.
. ™
X/L“ﬂA . 1')-1;9“1&._-
Notary Public

NEAL A BROWN
otary Public, Swte of New York
No.wdﬂsisﬁl B Gﬂmﬂ? 7
Cuaiitied In Wastchea
March 30, 8.
STATE OF NEW YORK ) Cemmissien Enpires

8S8.°%
CCONTY OF NEW YORK )

Oon the 25th day of November, 1986, before me
personally came Katharine Larsen, to me known, who, being by
me duly sworn, Jdid depose and say that she resides at 439 East
s1st Street, NYew York, New York; that she is the Vice-
President of OPEN SPACE INSTITUTE, INC., the corporation
described in and which executed the foreqoing instrument; and
that she signed her name thereto by order of the board of

directors of said corporation.
___A%#MM
Notary Public

Sinte of Now York
516

.ﬂ'ﬂ‘l




_FL"""’ | =

0940 0074

SCHEDULE A

All that certain parcel of land situate in the Town of
philipstown, County of Putnanm and State of New York, which was
conveyed by William Prior to Lars Kulleseid by a deed dated
pecember 18, 1985 and recorded in the Putnam County Clerk's
Liber 877 of Deeds at Page 51 on December 23, 1985, excepting
therefrom the land bounded and described as follows:

. — e — e mm————— — o ————— ———

Beginning at a point on the easterlymost corner of the premises
so conveyed by William Pricor to Lars Kulleseid which point is
formed by the intersection of the southerly line of lands now or
formerly of J. McKeen cattell with the line dividing the lands
pf Kulleseid on the west from lands now O formerly of the United
states of BAmerica on the east and which point ig distant the
following courses from the southeasterlymost coIner of Lot No. 3
as shown on that certain map entitled "...Daniel J. ponovan..«,"
which was £iled in the Putnam county Clerk's Office as Map No.

1648, first
N 18508-41 E 302.50 feet

as measured along the said easterly line of Lot No. 3 and then
the following courses as measured along the said southerly line
of the lands nowW or formerly of James McKeen Cattell

N B1-14-16 E 314.86 feet
N 83-53-41 E 219.47 feet and
S §3-27-17 E 315.33 feet.

Thence from the said point of beginning southwesterly along the
said westerly line of the said@ United States of America lands

S 31-49-48 W 2043.10 feet

to a point. Thence through the said Kulleseid lands the
following courses:

21-00-00 W 191.79 feet to a cross cut
13-06-12 W 236.42 feet to a drilled hole
12-07-50 E 189.20. feet to @ drilied hole
31-12-29 E 202.90 feet to a cross cut
19-38-26 E 256.02 feet to a drilled hole
36-50-26 E 240.36 feet

ZEZZHD




SCHEDULE A

to 2 spike in the -root of a birch tree.

0349 9075

N 30-08-00 E 237.59 feet to a drilled hole and
N 44-56-13 E 177.B6 feet

to a hole drilled in a rock in the center of a stone wall.

Thence still through the sajid Kulleseid
the following courses:

center of the said stonelyall

76-20-00
§2-50-00
83-30-00
65-00-00
6B=-15-00
65-30-00
74-00-00
70=-30-00
73-40-00
71-00-00
65-30-00

R EZEEEZ NG

E
E
E
E
E

MEHE M

44.74
42.62
15.00
20.00
105.00
32.00
60.00
B3.00
110.00
51.00
54.00

to the point or place of beginning..

feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet
feet

lands

and

and along the




0940 0076

PLEASE RECORD AND RETURN TO:

Neal A. Brown, Esq.

Greenfield Eisenberg Stein & Senior
99 park Avenue - 10th Floor

New York, Wew York 100616

RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INS.
CO. OF NEW YORK

TITLE NO.: f)of- (373

... L.

Plo =, 5§53
Bik- i a0
kot : 34-| S

Toweon: Philipstown

R
S EXEY....
REAL ESTATE ?
FEB2 5w
PUTNAM COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE - - A+

RECEIED O TESLS DAY oF-£.4. 19 87 TRANSEER 1%
prvie m::i""““‘emfb_ Yoy e m . COUNTY ]

ARD EXAUINED

&y nd- 25 1 Rggj

IT1440 S.W8I TP
AENTOT HY NG

e

|



RECORD & RETURN TO:
{Name, Addrems, & Zip)

PUTNAM COUNTY RECORDING AND ENDORSEMENT
{THIS PAQE FORMS PART OF THE INSTRUMENT)

" 180229

T PAGE

TYPE OR PRINT IN BLACK INK OMLY

| Sa\Watore [‘,U(jcia/

P.0.806y 359

Crose River BY o5ip

TRRRTOR7HORTARGOR ===

Salvatore. C Loce

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE

neC

DE/ptAT Ions
8AT ASMT e

RESERVE FOR TIME STAMP

-
e
Sc
=
>m

4
BaRtt]

tiiis

REL]

~<c
[

1D:IWY n1 L0668
1 34

25

CONSIDERATION $ O
] WECE JVED ]
] &) I re-see (b
r ' £5.00

REAL ESTATE |
1

941 | )

e, 1 s25.00

TRANSHER TAX ]
} L T ] l

PUTHAM COUNTY CLERX'S OFFICE

RECORDED ON _M /tg, AFESF
Likn 7T

INED .

AFPIDRVIT FILED ( )

16283

TOWN OF PRTTERSON
TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
TOWN OF PUTHAM VALLEY
TOWN OF BOUTHEAST
UNAPFORTIONED

eomm“c:u%acmr LAND
1 - 2 FAMILY
UNDER §1

0,

zwonoy

oog
CREDIT UNION/PERSONAL MTG
UNITS




1 BRI488P6O230

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS

DECLARATION made by SALVA‘I‘ORI{(:UCCL\ residing at P, 0. Box 374,
Mohegan Lake, New York hereinafter refemed to'tis the “Declarant™; the Declarant is the
owner in fee simple of the following described property:

WHEREAS ALL that certain parce] of land situate in the Tawn of Philipstown,
County of Putnam and State of New York, shown on that centain “Subdivision Plat
prepared for Salvatore C. Cuccin...” which was filed in the Putnam County Clerk’s office
on May 27, 1988 as Mep No. 2311.

WHEREAS the Declarant desires to restrict the use and enjoyment of said land
and has for such purposes, deterinined to impose on said premises certain covenants and

WHEREAS the Declarant alsc desires to create easements in favor of all of the
owners of lots shown on the aforesaid revised subdivision plat to use the areas designated
therecn as Right of Way and to limit and restrict the use thereof as hercinafter provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Declarant does hereby declare: (z) that the premises
shown on the aforesaid subdivision plat shail be held and conveyed subject to the
covenants and restrictions hercinafier set forth; and (b) that easements are hereby created
on portions hereinafter mentioned of such premises and the use and eajoyment of the area
affected by said easements are limited and restricted all 25 hereinafier se¢ forth,

L All of the numbered lots shown om such subdivision Map shall be lnown
end hereinafier referred 10 as “residential Jots™ and none of such residential lots shall be

2. “Residential lots™ shall be used for residential purposes only; eack: lot shall
be used by no more than one family and no dwelling or structure erected, placed or
maintained thercon shall be used for a hotel, boarding or lodging home or apartment
house or for any purpose except &s a private dwelling for one family and uses incidents!
thereto.

3. No trucks and other commercial vehicles, equipnent, machinery, trailers,
mobile bome, campers, motorcycles, molor bikes, snowmobiles or trail bikes shall be
penmitted to be parked, stored or maintained overnight on any residential kot except in &n
enclosed garage. Automobiles and the vohicles, equipment and machinery referred to in
the preceding sentence shell not be parked ovesnight on Right of Way. Umegistered
and/or unlicensed trucks, other commercial vehicles, equipment, machinery, trailers,
mobile homes, campers, metorcycles, motor bikes, snowmobiles, trailbikes and
sutomobiles shall not be permitted to be parked, stored or repaired on any part of a
residential lot except if garaged und shell not be permitted 1o be parked, stored, repaired
or operated on Right of Way. Snowmobiles, mototeycles, motorbikes and trailbikes shall
uot be operated in such a manner as to cause snnoyance to residential lof owners.

4. No structure of & temporary cheracter, trailer, basement, tent, shack,
parage, bam, outbuilding or similar adaptation for the temporary habitation of any
character shall be erected, placed, used or maintsined upon any residential lot.




2 BK1u88P0231

5, No signs of any kind shail be displayed to the public view on any
Tesidential lot except one professional sign, if appropriate, of not more that ONE foot
squarc and one sign of not more than FIVE square feet advertising the residential lot
and/or dwelling for sale,

6, No animals, livestock or poultry of any kind shail be raised, bred or kept
on any residential lot except dogs, cats or other domesticated household pets provided
further that such pets are not vicious, offensive, annoying or dangerous, or kept, bred or
maintained for cormercial purposes. All such dogs, cats or other domesticated
household pets shali be kept within the confines of their owner’s residential lot unless
they are properly leashed and shall be kept within the owner's dwelling or garage during
the hours of darkness.

7. No residential lot shall be used or mainteined as a dumping ground.
Rubbish,hsh,gubagemoiherwasteshaﬂbekeptinadequuemﬁmyoonmim
concealed from public view. No incinerators or other equipment for the disposal of such
material shall be permitted,

8. NogmveLsand,rock,soiLmim[sormeeremowdﬁmnw
residentisl lot except for construction on the ground of the stroctures permitted hereunder
or for the proper grading and landscaping for such construction.

9. No owner or occupant of any residential lot shall hinder, dam, divert or
obstruct the flow of any brook, drainage easement, stream or other natural water course
on a “residential lot". .

10.  Eachof the three (3) lot owners shall cooperate to maintain the views of
the Hudson River including permitting the topping of trees 5o Jong s it does not interfere
with the reascnable enjoyment of their own lot. No cutting of trees shall be permitted
without seventy-two (72) hours notice to akt lot owners and consent of same.

11. Ailresidmﬁallutsmdﬂubuildhgs.mmdﬁveways,mdﬂnim
facilities thereon or hereafter erected thereon and the vsc of the seme shalf conform to and
besubjmmmeapmopﬁmbuﬂdingcode,mhwsmﬂordhmmes,wblicmm
Inwsandoﬂmreqnimnmumdwomnmenﬂmimsofmywmmmmlbodyhavhg
Jurisdiction thereof,

12, All utilities installed to service the lots herein may be installed shove
guundwiﬂﬁn&isﬁgbtnfwaymlhepoiﬂofinwﬁonbumthedghtofwaym\d
the dividing liue between Lots | and 2 as shown on the subdivision map. All utilitics
installed elsewhere on any lot shall be installed underground.

13.  Each residentia] lot shall be used for residential purposes only aad no
dwelling, building of structure shall be erected, placed or maintained upon any ssid
residential lot other than one private dwelling house suitable for year-round occupancy
containing & central heating system and having 0 less than tweaty-five bundred square
feet of enclosed centrally heated habitable space exclusive of a cellar, basement, garage,
porch, deck, patio and other structure(s) incidental 1o the dwelling bouse. This provision
shall not prohibit the construction of delanhedm:nnesincidcmalloﬂledwelling house.

(8}  No structure, building or dwelling shafl be erccted or placed on any
residential lot until the construction plans and specifications and a plot plan showing the
lmﬁonofﬂmpmposedhnprovmm!shavebemlppmvedbyithechmmasmlbc
compatibility of materials, their finish and color, harmony of extemal design with



B1u88p023s

existing or contemplated improvements and .
the i K . usmlouuonwithmpeclwtopow hy and
o cats’ elevation. Declarant's spproval shall not be unreasonably withhzld.
(b)  The Deslarant's approval or disapproval as required in this
covenant shall be in writing, In the event the PIDVE 18 Peuired
& N Declarant fuils, in writing, to approve or
1sapprove within 30 days after all of the neceasary and required 4
lot di . . required plans, specifications and
fhe d;agram have been submitted to hitn, approval will bave been desmed obtsined and
"aT:abowcﬁye{Imtshullpedwnedwhnvebunﬁﬂlymmpliedwiﬂl.
: - Abuilding, dwelling or other structure erected or placed on any residentiul
ot shall be completed and a certificate of occupancy obiained within 18 months afier the
start of uctual construction.
15, Itis understood and agreed that the Declarant reserves for himself, his
heirs, successors and essigns the right and privilege, but not the obligation, to transfer o
EhnTowlnofPhllipmwn,CountyofPutnm,SmofNewYork.alln‘ghl,ﬁtlemd
interest in the feel of the Right of Way for dedicaion by said Declarant, his heirs,
suecessors or assigns of Right of Way o the Town of Philipstown as a Town Road,

16,  The Declarant reserves for himself, his heirs, successors and assigns and
for the benefit of other property now cwned or after acquired by him or them a permanent
perpetual easement and a right of way for ingress, egress and regress, drainage, ufilities
and any other purpose consistent with land development and use within, on, above or
under the arees designated on said revised subdivision plat as Right of Way.

17.  The Declaramt reserves the right for himself, s heirs, successors and
assigns, and for the: benefit of other property now owned or after sequired by him o
them, the right to grant permanent pespetual easements end rights of way within, or above
or under the aress designated on said revised Subdivision Plat as “Right of Way™ for the
purposes of ingress, egress, regress, drainage, wlilifics anid any other purpose consistent
with land development and use.

18.  That nothing hercin contained shall be construcd, nor shatl there be any
obligation npon the Declarant, his successors, assigns of heirs to resttict in any manner
myoﬂnmpmymworaﬂuwgﬁmdbyﬂwDedamloﬂmﬂ:m&eﬂmlm;hnwn
on the revised Subdivision Plat above referred to.

19.  Each of the owness of zesidentin] Jots, Gheir heirs, successors and assigns
are hercby granted a permanent perpetual eascrent end right of way for ingress, egress
and regress within the arcz designated on said revised Subdivision Plat as “Right of Way™
iniumﬁMywhjedmthetuuieﬁmmdﬁnﬁuimsspedMymfm&withinﬂﬁs
Declaration,

20. () The maintenance of “Right of Way"es shown on Map #2313(A)
sbaﬂbeajnintorshuvdoblipﬁonofﬁnl!hthnyawmwhoukﬁﬁﬂeloalot
onorbeimeccembuMofmyymbwomumsiﬂefwhisom—th&dshneofme
smdhgyw‘smﬁnmmlmylofﬂnsmwﬁngym.mmm
nbligaﬁonlhmcomhmhpupmﬁlymdshﬂmwithﬁelﬂﬂjﬂmiﬂpaythe
maintenance charges within 30 days of the bilking date shall permit the other lot owners to
file & licn against the propesty of those who are delinguent. Matters concerning the
maintepance of “Right of Way™ area shall be determined by & ximple mejority of
pesidential lot owners in good standing. Each residential lot entitles its owner or owners
1o one vote only and the person whost nawe first appears on the decd shall be entitled to




K1488r60233

(®)  Each of the three resideatial Jot owners shall be i

their proportionate share of each vegr owing expense i
year’s snowplowing . As each lot is soid

Declarant the purchaser becomes liable for one-third B

0 the cost of snowplowing. When the
first lot is so.ld the purchaser is responsible for 100% of the snowplowing, however, the
LOJ ::;:ryer will not be responsible for plowing the “right of way™ beyond the northern

fOTSO%e?.chofthemwploMngexpmse.Whmth:thi:dlolissoldeachoflh:ﬂlree
ownerswnllnontribmemmﬂ:irdoﬂhemmmtothesnowplowingexpmu.m

mismmponsibleformymowplowingexpmsemﬂesshemmimmofﬂw
lots and constructs a residence on same.

) Ench lot owner who constructs a residence on his fot shall be
mPOﬂﬁblefotdmmtoorchanseinﬂlecmﬂiﬁooflhe"R.ighlofWay"dmiug
eonstruction.mindividudIMumnerslnll,wilhiuM(GO)daysaﬂertheiumnoeofa
w;l:meofmmey.mmdmmemofww"mimmmm
condition,

(d)  No kot owner shall pave any portion of the “Right of Way™ without
the written consent of all of the Iot owners.

21. Aﬂnﬁlitylhﬁmvicingihepmpeﬂyshallbeinshlledmduwmd
mumthmovemeadwhliIbepenniueddmmc“RigMofWay"ﬁomﬂw
imﬁwﬁmkomgmnpomﬂlh:bmmduylimbmeenlmslandZonlheﬁlcd
map. Each lot owner shall grant such easements as may be necessary for the installation
and mainténance of utility service.

22, B&chresidmﬁullmowwundﬂnmsms.migmandhcilsofsuch
reﬁdmﬁdlmowmshﬂlbueaﬂetinminevuy&:edofmeymlmmme
oreonuu-trclntingmihcsak.luxmuwaﬁmwmofmwdmﬁallotmddwelling
the following clause:

“Subjectmwuinwvmma,mmicﬁummdwasimposedbysmmin
Declartion by Salvatore Cucein dated €<% & | 1999 and recorded in the Putnam
County Cleric’s Office at Carmel], New York, and to any modifications thereof as may be
hereafter recorded. )

23.  Each and every one of the covenants and restrictions in this Declaration
Mmmandﬁunwithﬂmwmdnuﬁndmdimwﬁempeeﬁvelm
owners, their successors, assigns, heirs, distributees, or estate representatives. The
m&ﬂmﬁﬁmhﬁnwhmﬂuﬁbyﬂc%lmﬁsh&u,smm
or assigns, or olher residential lot owners, all of whom have the right to use for and obtain
an injunction or other court order, probibitive or mandatory, to prevent the breach of or to
compe} compliance with the covenants aud restrictions above set forth and the fajlure of
the Declerant, his assigns, successors or heirs to enforce any of the covenants and




AS e e UG N R,
"1y 88R60234

restricti i .
0 1 1o 1 Derein set forthshallin 10 event be doemed to be s waiver of therightto do
render invyrwqu o uent violation. The violation of these restrictions shall not affect nor

24, I g morgage made i good fith o for vale.
restrictions herein l::é:‘;_‘smqulmdloanfmewolmmofﬂnwymmm
PlRIntfRS) provi et fendani(s) shall pay the reasonable attorney's fees of the
defendani(s has, i fact, violte e et soemn o comapeient furisdicon ht he

, in fact, violated the seid Covenants and testrictions. Nothing herein shal
waludcthcwun&omawntdingmmeyoruﬂmdmugcsmﬂwpwnﬁﬂts)inaddhimm
the attorney’s fees,

25.  Any notice required 1o be sent to any residential lot owner or to the
Declarant under the provisions of this decleration shall be deemed to have been properly
sent when delivered personally ot when mailed cenified, return-receipt postpaid 1o the
last known address of the person who appears as the residential lot ownet on the records
of the Putnam County Clesk’s Office at Carmcl, New York, st the time of such mailing.

26.  Invalidation of any of the provisjons of this Declaration by judgment or
court order shall in no way affect any other provision of this Declartion, alt of which
shall reroain in full force and effect.

27.  Amything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, it is not intended to and
this Declaration, shall not be desmed 1o affcct o impair any existing covenant, restriction
or agreement of record affecting real property within the revised Subdivision Flat.

28.  Whencver the word “Declarant” is used, it shall mean Salvatore Cuceis,
his heirs, successors or assigns.

29.  The covenants and restrictions herein shall all “run with the Jand” and be
binding upon futare grantees, assignees and owners by whatever named called of the 3
Tots designsted on Map #2311, )

30.  All of the Iots herein arc forther subject to the tenms of a Coaservation
Easemeni dated December 30, 1986 between Lars I. Kulleseid as Grantor and Open Space
Institute as Gramtee recorded February 25 , 1987, in the Office of the Putnam County
Clerk, Division of Land Records, et Liber 940 Page 77.

State of New York, County of Pulnam )
Onthe & day of October, 1999 before me the undersigned, personally

w&hmﬁcwciapemﬂykmwnmmcmpmwdlbmeonlhehsisof
satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed 1o the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that be executed the same in his capacity, and that by
his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the person upon behalf of which the
jndividual acted, executed the instrument.




Qctober 13®, 2020

Neal Zuckerman, Chairman

Town of Philipstown Planning Board
PO Box 155

Philipstown, NY 10516

RE: Kepler Residential Site Plan & Hietmann-Fleming Residential Site Plan Referrals
Dear Chairman Zuckerman,

This letter is offered in response to the referrals sent to Chairman Galezo’s attention regarding the
opportunity to comment on the above mentioned properties. As of the October 137 Conservation Board
meeting and along with site visits to the properties by myself / members of the CB, we have no comments
on the proposed projects that you will be reviewing.

Please feel free to contact myself with any questions or concerns.

On Behalf of the Philipstown Conservation Board,

Max Garfinkle
Natural Resources Review Officer

cc: Kelly Mclntyre
Greg Wunner, CEO
Ronald J. Gainer, PE, Town Engineer
Philipstown Conservation Board



t A
v 1y W

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Nancy Berner
Chair
James Cross
Vice Chair
Thomas Campanile
Teeasurer
Rudolph Rauch li]
Secretary

Jetfrey Bunael
Svamus Caryoll
Michael Clarke
Christopher Davis
lrvine Flinn
Phoche Ceer
James Hartford
Pascale Hutx
Henry L. Kingsley
Danicd Kramer
Lars Kabkeseid
Douglas Land
Claudio Marrollo
FEdwin McGowan
James Modlin
Thaddeus Pitney
Frederic Rich
William Schuster
Bentr Strong,
Anne Symmes
Bonnie Turner
Glennon Watson
Lissa Young

STAFF
Michelle Smith
Kaltrina Shindledecher
fonathan Leitner
Ashley Rauch
Julia Rogers
Mona Smith
Nicele Wooten

privted on 100%. wowekd paper

PO. Box 226
20 Nazareth Way
Garrison, NY 10524

prhone: 845.424.3358
October 23, 2020 5. Igas T e

info@hhit.org
www hhitorg

Mr. Andrew Kepler and Mr. Carlos Picon
176 Moog Road
Garrison, NY 10524

Re: Updated Site and Architectural Plans for 176 Moog Road, Garrison, NY
Dear Andrew and Carlos,

On September 21, 2020, the Hudson Highlands Land Trust, Inc. {HHLT)
received notice on your behalf by David Eaton of David Eaton Associates, LLC,
indicating that your proposed landscape, structure, and site improvements for
your conserved Property at 176 Moog Road in Garrison, NY had been updated
since HHLT's letter dated June 19, 2020. Mr. Eaton directed me, via telephone
to the plans submitted to the Town of Philipstown Planning Board in advance
of their September 17, 2020 meeting. Mr, Eaton provided further details via
email on September 29, 2020. During a site visit on October 8, 2020, 1
measured the footprint of the Existing House. Thank you, Andrew, for taking
the time to join me and for helping me with the measurements. Then, on
October 14, 2020, I learned of further plan revisions submitted to the Town of
Philipstown Planning Board in advance of their October 15, 2020 meeting. Mr.
Eaton answered questions via phone and email regarding the current plans on
October 14, 2020.

The Hudson Highlands Land Trust, Inc. has reviewed the most recent Plans
submitted for compliance with the terms of the Conservation Easement
(dated and recorded on November 20, 2009 at the Putnam County Clerk’s
office in Liber 1842 on Page 245). The project documents reviewed by HHLT
include the:
A. Conservation Easement (see Attachment A for selected pertinent
Conservation Easement terms / restrictions);
B. Baseline Documentation Report; and
C. Documents from Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering, P.C.
a. Site Plan prepared for Andrew Kepier and Carlos Picon E & SC Plan,
dated 06/29/2020, and last revised 10/01/2020, by Badey &
Watson Surveying & Engineering, P.C.,
b. Site Plan prepared for Andrew Kepler and Carlos Picon Existing
Conditions, dated 06/29/2020 and last revised 10/01/2020, by
Badey & Watson Surveying & Engineering, P.C., and
C. Letter to Neil Zuckerman, from Badey & Watson Surveying and
Engineering, P.C., dated October 1, 2020.
D. Documents from David Eaton Associates, LLC (as confirmed by David
Eaton on October 14, 2020):
a. the Demolition Plan dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the
Planning Board on 09/03/2020,
b. Site Plan dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the Planning Board
on 09/03/2020,

L0EDy,
"-

%
. OP

‘o o, :
%% o
et



HHLT to Mr. Kepler and Mr. Picon PAGE 1 0of 4
October 23, 2020

c. the Enlarged Plan dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the Planning Board on
09/03/2020,

d. the Grading and Drainage Plan Courtyard and Deck dated 05/01/2020 and
issued to the Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

e. the Lighting Plan dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the Planning Board on
05/03/2020,

f. the Planting Pian- Key Plan dated 07/12/2020 and issued to the Planning
Board on 09/03/2020,

g. Planting Plan - North Garden dated 07/12/2020, last revised 09/30/2020 and
issued to the Planning Board on 09/30/2020,

h. Planting Plan - Drive Entrance I dated 07/12/2020, last revised on
09/30/2020, and issued to the Planning Board on 09/30/2020, Planting Plan ~
Drive Entrance II dated 07/12/2020, last revised 09/30/2020, and issued to
the Planning Board on 09/30/2020,

i. Proposed Sections, Section Location Plan dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the
Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

j. Proposed Sections, Section A'-A” & B’ - B” dated 05/01/2020 and issued to
the Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

K. Proposed Sections, Section C'-C” & D’ ~ D” dated 05/01/2020 and issued to
the Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

l.  Proposed Sections Section E’-E” & F’-F” dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the
Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

m. Proposed Sections Section G’-G” Planted Earth Berm dated 05/01/2020 and
issued to the Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

n. Proposed Building Extensions Garage and Front & Rear MH Entrances dated
05/01/2020 and issued to the Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

0. Proposed Building Extensions Pool Room dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the
Planning Board on 09/03/2020,

p. Proposed Details Reflection Pool dated 05/01/2020 and issued to the Planning
Board on 09/30/2020,

q. Proposed Details Walls and Paving dated 05/01/2020, last revised
09/30/2020, and issued to the Planning Board on 09/30/2020,

Collectively, items in C and D above shall hereinafter be referred to as “the Plans”.

The Plans propose site and architectural alterations in four categories: {1) addition of a
garden and associated accessory improvements, (2) tree and shrub plantings, (3) expansion
and re-surfacing of the driveway, and (4) extension and modification of the Existing House.

1. Addition of Garden and Associated Accessory Improvements.
As presented in the Plans, the proposed garden improvements align with the terms
of the Conservation Easement. Thank you for updating the Plans to include
information on grading, lighting, and garden wail heights.

2. Tree and Shrub Plantings.
As presented in the Plans, the proposed tree and shrub plantings align with the
terms of the Conservation Easement. As I noted in my June 19, 2020 letter, we are
excited to the see the large quantity of additional trees and shrubs that you plan to



HHLT to Mr. Kepler and Mr. Picon PAGE 2 of 4
October 23, 2020

add to your Property, and am pleased to see the that many are considered native to
the region,

Please note, the Planting Plan - North Garden shows a (54’-0 2" length x 21'-11
7/8" width x 5’ height) berm is planned for the north-northeast section of the
Property. The berm is to be planted with mixed evergreen shrubs and trees to screen
the neighbor's house. Thank you for updated the Plans to reflect the size of the
berm. Mr. Eaton indicated that the berm would be created from soil excavated for
the garden, and that if need be appropriate erosion control / soil stabilization would
be added to the berm while the trees and shrubs establish.

3. Expansion of Driveway.
As presented in the Plans, the expansion of the driveway aligns with the terms of the
Conservation Easement, Thank you for updating the plans to reflect the grading
necessary for this project.

Additionally, the Plans indicate that the driveway will be re-crowned, resurfaced, and
the drainage will be modified. This maintenance and modification are permitted
within the Conservation Easement, and the intention furthers the Conservation
Purpose by reducing erosion and sedimentation from the driveway.

4. Extension and Modification of the Existing House
The conceptual drawings indicate that the extensions and modifications
outlined below (in points 4A and 4B) will match the exterior of the Existing
House. The conceptual drawings align with Section 3.6.2 of the Conservation
Easement as it relates to exterior appearances. Please ensure your plans
continue to adhere to this clause.

Section 3.3.1 of the Conservation Easement states: “Renovation, repair and
replacement of the Existing House (as permitted under the Zoning Ordinance) at the
existing location on substantially the same building footprint and with equivalent or
lesser roof ridgeline height are permitted”. When the Conservation Easement was
donated and at the time of this review, the Existing House footprint is/was 5,225.25
square feet.

A. Garage. The garage on the eastern side of the Existing House is attached to the
residence via an entry way. Thus, the Existing House footprint noted above
includes the attached garage. The Plans indicate that the garage will be expanded
by 449 square feet, and the entry way will be expanded by 200.8 square feet,
Thus, the proposed garage and entry way expansions constitute an increase in
the footprint of 12.5%. However, this expansion covers areas that are already
impervious surfaces, and will not increase the visibility of the Existing House from
public vantage points, and therefore has a negligible impact on the conservation
values of the Property.

|

Porch and Pool Room. The Plans propose enclosing and extending the existing
porch to the south by 5’ 1,75” to expand the pool room. The porch was not
included in the Existing House footprint because it is uncovered. Enclosing and
covering the area would thus be considered adding it to the house footprint.
Extending and enclosing the porch constitutes an increase of 1,180 square feet,




HHLT to Mr. Kepler and Mr. Picon PAGE 3 of 4
October 23, 2020

which would result in a 22.5% increase in the current House footprint, The
enclosed room will continue to be supported by wooden stilts (with no new
foundation or additional impervious surface). Given that this addition does not
increase the impervious surface on the Property and will not increase the visibility
of the Existing House from public vantage points, the addition will have a
negligible impact on the Property’s conservation values.

Together, the garage, entryway, and porch / pool room expansions total an
addition of 1,629 square feet, a 35% increase in the Existing House footprint.
This would not be considered on “substantially the same building footprint.”
However, our review of the extension and modification to the Existing House
did not find anything that significantly impacts the Property’s conservation
values. As a result, per Section 4.16 of the Conservation Easement, HHLT is
willing to provide a one-time waiver of the Section 3.3.1 footprint limitation
and approve the Plans as presented.

Note: Future requests to further expand the footprint of the Existing House,
including the elevated pool room and attached garage may impact the
conservation values of the Property, wouid likely not align with the terms of
the Conservation Easement, and thus denied.

Please notify HHLT if any unforeseen tree / vegetation clearing will be necessary for the
above improvements. Further, if either the site or architecturai plans change, please make
sure to send a copy of revised documents to HHLT with sufficient time for our review and
consideration.

Additionally, when the work is finished, HHLT will need to complete a current condition
report to bring our records to date with the updated square footage of the Existing House
and a complete list of the improvements on the Property. This report will include
descriptions of the Property, photos, and maps to facilitate our continued stewardship of the
Conservation Easement in perpetuity. Please contact HHLT when the project is complete so
that we can schedule a site visit and prepare the current condition report.

As always, we appreciate you and your contractors working with HHLT and keeping us
involved in the discussion. Feel free to call or write for clarification on anything in this letter
or if you have questions about the Conservation Easement.

Sincerely,
Julia Rogers

Stewardship Coordinator
(717) 881-4518



HHLT to Mr. Kepler and Mr. Picon Page 1 of 2
Attachment A: Selected Pertinent Conservation Easement Terms

Attachment A: Selected Pertinent Conservation Easement Terms
We reviewed the following excerpts of the Conservation Easement (dated and recorded on November
20, 2009 at the Putnam County Clerk’s office in Liber 1842 on Page 245):

[Note: The information below is for ease of reference, please see the Conservation Easement for
additional details. Other sections of the Conservation Easement may be applicable.].

Section 1.1. Purpose. The purposes of this Conservation Easement is to conserve the rural, scenic,
ecological, and open space character of the Property, protect the natural resources of the Property,
and to limit development of the Property, as specified herein.

Section 2.1. Gardens. Subject to the purpose of this Conservation Easement set forth in Section 1.1
hereof and the Restrictions Applicable to the Property described in Section 3 below, gardens, and all
activities customary to create or maintain a garden, including environmentally correct composting, are
expressly permitted,

Section 2.2, Landscaping. Subject to the purpose of this Conservation Easement set forth in Section
1.1 hereof and the Restrictions Applicable to the Property described in Section 3 below, the Property
may be landscaped for scenic effect and beautification, including, without limitation, the removal and
eradication of non-native invasive plant species.

Section 3.1. Use. The Property, as far as practical, shall be left in its condition as of the date hereof
and shall not be used for any purpose except as a single-family residence in accordance with this
Conservation Easement. The Property may be used for one single-family residential dwelling and the
following permitted accessory uses: (a) Customary home occupation that is compatible with the rural
character of the Property; and (b) agricultural activities to the extent allowed under the Zoning
Ordinance. The above-allowed accessory uses shall not generate traffic in excess of that customarily
associated with reasonable residential use.

Section 3.3. Permitted Structures. No building or other improvement shall hereafter be placed upon
the Property, except for (a) replacement of Existing Improvements and (b) accessory structures
(“accessory structures” shall mean incidental related structures, including structures for animal
protection purposes, a tennis court, and a guest house, in each case to the extent permitted under the
Zoning Ordinance.

Section 3.3.1. Renovation, repair, and replacement of the Existing House (as permitted under the
Zoning Ordinance) at the existing location on substantially the same building footprint and with
equivalent or lesser roof ridgeline height are permitted.

Section 3.3.4. Temporary accessory structures (that are consistent with the purpose of this
Conservation Easement and permitted under the Zoning Ordinance), such as a woodshed or gazebo,
may be erected and maintained on the Property.

Section 3.4. Utilities. The installation of wells, water lines, septic systems, electric and other utility
distribution lines shall be permitted in connection with the structures allowed on the Property,

Section 3.5. Grading. Any structure or improvement shall be designed to relate to existing slopes and
contours. Any grading shall blend into the natural topography of the Property and be limited to the
minimum necessary for a trail, driveway, foundation, septic, or other improvement made in
compliance with this Conservation Easement.

Section 3.6.2. The roofing and exterior surfaces of any structure on the Property shall be of such color
and material, and maintained in such a manner, as shall minimize the visibility of such surfaces (for



HHLT to Mr. Kepler and Mr. Picon Page 2 of 2
Attachment A: Selected Pertinent Conservation Easement Terms

example, through the use of muted tones and non-reflective materials) and make them compatible
with the general character of the surrounding landscapes.

Section 3.6.4. Any light fixtures shall be located, aimed or shielded so as to minimize stray light
trespassing across property boundaries. All newly installed outdoor lighting fixtures shall be fully
shielded or be designed or provided with sharp cut-off capability, so as to minimize up-light, spill-light,
and glare. Outdoor floodlighting by flood light projection above the horizontal plane is prohibited, The
installation of any new mercury vapor light fixture, other than the replacement of the existing vapor
light fixture or lamp, for use as outdoor lighting is prohibited. Searchlights, faser source lights, and
any similar high-intensity lights are not permitted.

Section 3.7, Walls and Fences. Any wail that is not part of a building and any fence, except for
customary and unobtrusive fencing for a garden or orchard, for protection against deer or other
predators, or as required by iaw, shall not exceed five feet in height above ground level, and shall be
composed mainly of wood or stone. Stone walls shall not be removed, except as required in the
construction of permitted structures. Deer fencing required to protect landscaping is permitted,
provided that, in the reasonable opinion of Grantee, it does not materially adversely affect the
availability of habitat that is valuable for the protection of biodiversity,

Section 3.8. Roads, Driveways, Trails and Drainage. Existing driveways and trails, any new
driveway to the single-family residence and accessory structures, and any hiking trails within the
property boundaries, may be maintained, improved and/or relocated. Trails and drainage ways may
be located anywhere on the Property, provided that they are constructed and located in a manner that
is consistent with the purpose of this Conservation Easement, minimizes erosion and impact on
landscape quality. Use of motorized vehicles is prohibited on any portion of the Property except the
driveway to the permitted single-family dwelling and any other permitted structures, in connection
with the maintenance of the Property or any other activities permitted by this Conservation Easement.

Section 3.12. Water Resources. No activity or practice is permitted on the Property if it may or will
negatively impact, pollute, damage or destroy water resources on or adjoining the Property.

Section 3.13. Tree Clearing. No trees or other natural landscaping shall be cut or removed
except...(c) subject to notice and approval by Grantee as provided in Section 4.5 and 4.6, to provide
for the construction of structures or improvements allowed under this Conservation Easement,
including to create or maintain gardens or landscaping in the vicinity of permitted structures.

Section 4.16. Waiver. Grantee may, on a case-by-case basis, waive any provision of this
Conservation Easement that it deems to be non-essential to fulfilling the Conservation Easement’s
conservation purposes. Such waivers may not be granted with respect to the number of residences
that may be built. Such individual waivers will not affect the future applicability of any waived
provision as applied to other situations, and any provision waived in an individual case shall continue
in full force and effect for other cases. Any such waiver shall comply with Artic 49, Title 3 of the
Conservation Law and Code Section 170(h). Grantee shall, if requested by an owner of the Property or
portion of the Property, issue a certificate of compliance indicating that an alteration of the Property
undertaken pursuant to this Section was undertaken pursuant to an approved waiver of a provision or
provisions of this Conservation Easement.



INS/ITE

ENGINEERING, SURVEYING &
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, PC.

Novemnber 5, 2020
Town of Philipstown Planning Board
34 Kemble Avenue
Cold Spring, NY
10516

RE: 3622 Route 9
Cold Spring, NY
Tax Map No. 17.-1-44

Dear Chairman Zuckerman and Members of the Board:

Please find enclosed thirteen (13) copies of the following drawings and documents in support of an
application for Special Use and Site Plan Approval for the above referenced project:

¢ Site Plan Drawing Set (7 sheets), revised November 5, 2020.

In response to technical comments received from Ron Gainer, PE, dated October 13, 2020, we offer the
following responses:

General Comments

1. The comment regarding referral to the Conservation Board is acknowledged.

2. The comment regarding potential referrals to other outside agencies is acknowledged.

Plans

1. The following items have been addressed:

a. A Location Plan is provided, and a Vicinity Map has been added to sheet EX-1, as requested.

b. Attribution for the site topography and soils has been added to sheet SP-2.

€. Soil types have been added to the existing conditions plan. Based upon field observation, rock
outcrops do not exist on the site. The applicant requests a waiver of the requirement for the
location of all trees 28”, as it is only the outer perimeter of the site that is to be left undisturbed.

d. The design of proposed drainage facilities has been developed to include all structure rims, pipe
runs and stormwater practices. The design is based on some early preliminary testing and will be
updated and refined with new testing. Calculations for the sizing of the stormwater system, to
show compliance with Town of Philipstown and NYSDEC regulations, will be provided in the
SWPPP, which will be provided with a future submission following further testing.

2. A Site Disturbance table has been added to sheet SP-3, which includes the new impervious coverage,
and total site disturbance area. A SWPPP will be included with a future submission.

3. AUse Table is provided on sheet SP-1, which accounts for the principal and accessory uses and the
anticipated number of employees. It has been revised to include the number of potential tenants and
commercial trips.

4. The plans have been further developed to include more detail as to the proposed improvements.

5. The plans have been more thoroughiy dimensioned.

3 Garrett Place, Carmel, New York 10512 (845) 225-9690 Fax (845) 225-9717
www.insite-eng.com

Z:\E118156100 Downey-Philipstown\Correspondence\202011001 20pb.doc



Letter to Town of Philipstown Planning Board Page 2 of 2
RE: 3622 Route 9, Cold Spring November 5, 2020

6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

18.

17.

The requested information is provided:

a. The estimated humber of employees is included in the Use Table on sheet SP-1.
b.  The number of required parking spaces is provided in the Parking Requirements summary on

sheet SP-1.

c. Sheet SP-2 has been revised to include the anticipated water and wastewater usage fable.

Sheet SP-1 has been revised to include the labels and quantities of the specified plant material.
Quantity, species, size and root details are specified in the plant schedule. Planting details and notes
are included on sheet D-1.

A sidewalk has been shown along the front of proposed building 1. It is contemplated that the east
facing fagade of building 1 and the west facing fagade of building 2 would have overhead doors for
tenant access. Sidewalks along these facades would be unnecessary and would encumber access to
the overhead doors.

The buildings are yet to be designed, but will generally will be of neutral color palette. As shown, the
buildings will be screened to the adjacent residential lot with a dense planting of evergreen trees,
which will supplement the existing tree line to remain. Final landscaping locations to be staked by
Insite in the field. Removal of existing trees will be as needed and existing vegetative buffers will be
left intact where possible.

A Site Disturbance table has been added to sheet SP-3, which includes the new impervious coverage,
and total site disturbance area. A SWPPP will be included with a future submission.

The asphalt types have been delineated on sheet SP-1.

A lighting schedule and notes are provided on sheet SP-1. The lighting notes indicate that all fixtures
are to be fully cut off and compliant with dark sky guidelines. Operationally the lights will only be used
during regular business hours and will run on motion sensors after hours for security purposes.

Though the 500’ check zone associated with NYSDEC wetland WP-17 touches a portion of the
subject property, based upon fieid observation and available mapping, there does not appear to be
any wetlands within 100" of the property. The closest point that, based on field observation, could
potentially contain wetlands would be to the south and west of the driveway entrance to the contractor
yard across Route 9, the closest point of which appears to be over 150 feet away from the
southwestern corner of the subject property.

The standard Town of Philipstown Site Plan Notes have been added to sheet EX-1.

The location of all outdoor storage areas, sidewalks, ramps, curbs, landscaping, and fences are
shown on sheet SP-1 and the associated details are shown on sheet D-1. Exterior refuse enclosure
locations have been added to the plans.

Further detail as to the building architecture and materials will be provided with a future submission.

A proposed freestanding wooden grouped identification sign is shown on sheet SP-1. It is designed to
conform to the size, material, and setback requirements laid out in §175-39.

100120pb.doc

Insite Engineering, Surveying & Landscape Architecture, P.C.



Letter to Town of Philipstown Planning Board Page 3 of 2
RE: 3622 Route 9, Cold Spring November 5, 2020

We look forward to discussing the project with the Board at the October 15 meeting. Should you have any
questions or comments regarding this information, please feel free to contact our office.

NG, SUZEEYING & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, P.C.

Very truly yours,

INSITE ENGINE

Enclosures
cc. Larry Downey, via email
Ron Gainer, PE (Mail w/ Enclosures)

Insite File No. 18156.100

100120pb.doc Insite Engineering, Surveying & Landscape Architecture, P.C.



3063 Route 9 | Cold Spring, NY 10516 | 845.265,9217 | 877.3.141593 (Toll Free) | 845.265.4428 (Fax)

BADEY & WATSON

Surveying & Engineering, P.C.

VA A\

November 5, 2020

Neal Zuckerman, Chairman
Philipstown Planning Board
Town Hall, 238 Main Street
Cold Spring, NY 10516

RE: Application of Laura ). and William R. Cumming
Dear Mr. Zuckerman and Members of the Planning Board:

You will remember that Mr. & Ms. Cumming applied for approval to combine and re-subdivide their parcels at the end
of South Mountain Pass Spur. They did this so that each of the two adjusted lots would contain one of the two houses
that presently exist on their original parcel. We recognized that the subdivision was not eligible for approval due to
insufficient area on adjusted Lot A and insufficient frontage on adjusted Lot B and asked for your denial so that variances
could be sought.

The Appeal for the variances was submitted to the Zoning Board Appeals (ZBA). The ZBA conducted a Public Hearing
on the Appeal and voted to grant the variances during its October 2020 meeting. We have requested that Mr. Rodd,
the ZBA attorney advise Mr. Gaba so that he would be able to confirm the vote. We expect to have the actual variance
for submission to you shortly after the ZBA's November meeting.

We respectfully request that the Cummings’ application be returned to the Planning Board Agenda for its November
2020 meeting, at which time we are hopeful that a Public Hearing will be scheduled.

In furtherance of that request, we submit herewith 13 copies of our “Minor Subdivision Plat ... for William R. & Laura J.
Cumming ...." dated May 6, 2020, and last revised on November 4, 2020,

As always, thank you for your attention to this application and concern for the community.
Yours truly,

BADEY & WATSON,
Surveying & Engineering, F.C.

Glennon . Wa
845.265.9217 x214

gwatson(@badey-watson.com

cc: William & Laura Cumming
File L:\88- | 98BWYO_25 126\For Panning\2020-11-05_To_Planning_BoardNZOSNV20DE_SubmitsRevised Plans.docx

v L.S.

www.Badey-Watson.com

Certified Women Business Enterprise (\WRE) by New York State, New York City and the Port Authority of NY & NJ



3063 Route 9 | Cold Spring, NY 10516 | 845.265.9217 | 877.3.141593 {Toll Free) | 845.265.4428 (Fax)

November 5, 2020 Wi‘:@

Neal Zuckerman, Chairman BADEY & WAT$ON

Philipstown Planning Board ! el
Town Hall, 238 Main Street Surveying & Engineering PG

Cold Spring, NY 10516

RE: Application of Riverview Industries — Submission of Revised Plans
Dear Mr. Zuckerman and Members of the Planning Board:

As directed, we have met with the Conservation Board to present Riverview Industries’ (Reichard) plans. The referral
resulted in several revisions to the plans, |3 copies of which are submitted herewith. They include: Existing Conditions
Map; Site Plan; Erosion Control Plan; and Planting Plan, all dated December 5, 2019, last revised November 5, 2020.

Significant changes to the plans include:

» The parking area was widened and made less deep to minimize any further disturbance to the wetlands.

¢ An oil separator has been added to the plan near the northeast corner of the property, in the vicinity of the
culvert leading stormwater under Route 9.

* The parking area was regraded to direct drainage toward the northeast and through the oil separator.

* Areas for storage of scrap iron, pallets, etc. have been specified.

* A wall has been specified across the rear of the parking area to prevent the parking surface material and the
activities occurring on the parking area from migrating into the wetland,

In addition to the plan modifications, it has been agreed that Riverview Industries would cooperate with Inspector
Garfinkel to develop a landscape plan for the restoration of the wetlands beyond the wall at the rear of the parking area.

Finally, the Conservation Board has stated that, upon submission of suitably revised plans, it will be ready to issue a
Wetands Permit following the Planning Board’s SEQRA determination.

We respectfully request that the matter be returned to the Planning Board Agenda for its November 2020 meeting, at
which time we are hopeful that a Public Hearing will be scheduled. As always, thank you for your attention to this
application and concern for the community.

Yours truly,
BADEY & WATSON,
Surveying & Engineering, P.C.

Glennon |. Wa
845.265.9217 x2 14

gwatson@badey-watson.com

cc: Kevin Reichard
Luke Hilpert, Esquire
File UABI-100B\WYO_2420112020-11-05  For_Planning_Board\NZO5SNV20DE_SubmitsRevised Plans.docx

H] L.S.

www.Badey-Watson.com

Certified Women Business Enterprise {WBE) by New York State, New York City and the Port Authority of NY & NT



Hollis Laidlaw & Simon P.C.

Attorneys at Law
55 Smith Avenue | Mount Kisco, NY 10549

(914) 666-5600
October 20, 2020

Via Hand Delivery
Hon. Richard Shea, Supervisor Neal Zuckerman, Chair
and Members of the Town Board and Members of the Planning Board
Town of Philipstown Town of Philipstown
Old VFW Hall 2 Cedar Street
34 Kemble Ave. Cold Spring, NY 10516
Cold Spring, NY 10516

Re:  Garrison Golf Club Planned Development District/Hudson Valley
Shakespeare Festival
Dear Supervisor Shea and Members of the Town Board, and Chairperson Zuckerman and Members

of the Planning Board:

Qur law firm represents Garrison Properties, LL.C (GPLLC) and Hudson Valley
Shakespeare Festival Inc. (HVSF) with regard to their combined request for an amendment to
Section 175-7A and Section 175-61A of the Code of the Town of Philipstown to permit uses not
presently permitted in the Garrison Golf Club Planned Development District (GGCPDD) and
Rural Conservation District (RC). The amendments are sought to allow HVSF to relocate its
renowned Shakespeare Festival after the conclusion of a highly successful thirty plus year lease
agreement with Boscobel House and Gardens, also in Philipstown, to 53 +/- of the 200 +/- actes
which currently comprise the GGCPDD so as to allow HVSF to fulfill its commitment to setve as a
year-round cultural resource, environmental steward and a community partner to the Town of

Philipstown.



Qctober 20, 2020
Page 2

Christopher Davis, a longtime resident and staunch supporter of the quality of life in the
Town of Philipstown, was the catalyst for the creation of the GGCPDD when, in 1999, he
purchased the 300 acre parcel out of which the 200 acre GGC PDD was carved so as to thwart the
plans to turn those 300 acres into an expansive condominium development. It continues to be Mr.
Davis’s goal to act as a steward for the property so as to thwart unwelcome development by
fostering a use of the property that would be environmentally and financially sustainable, ensure the

property remained accessible to the public, and serve as an asset to the community.

21 yeats after Mr. Davis assumed that stewardship role, he saw the obvious synergies
between HVSFs long-term vision and The Gatrison’s site and hospitality business. The success of
Philipstown’s two latgest employers would be strengthened by their coming together, giving Mr.
Davis the assusance that the goals he had when he purchased the property would go on indefinitely
and offer public, community access to this extraordinary location. Out clients believe that what you
ate about to review will allow them to continue to safeguard, expand upon, and enhance Mr. Davis’

stewardship.

Through the generosity of Christopher Davis, HVSF will be gifted those 53+/- actes {the
Gifted Area). To complete that gift, a subdivision of the GPLLC property, a text amendment to the
GGCPDD and RC, an amendment of the property’s existing Special Permit and a site plan approval

are all required from your respective Boards.

In support of our request, submitted herewith are ten (10) copies for the Town Board and

thirteen (13) copies for the Planning Board of the following, in addition to this letter:



October 20, 2020

Page 3

Town Board

Peation for Zoning Change

Master Plan (See Planning Board Submission below})
Civil Site Plan Set

EAF Part 1 & Part 2

Planning Board
Application — Site Plan
Application — Subdivision

Application — Special Permit
EAF Part 1 & Part 2
Master Plan

Q
Q
Q
(s}
o

Presentation Set

Landscape Plan

Overview

Enlarged Views, as necessary
Detail Sheets, as necessary

Civil Site Plan Set (Initial Submission — 16 Sheets)

o

0O 00000

Q

Title Sheet (Sheet 1 of 16)

Subdivision (Sheet 2 of 16)

Existing Conditions (Sheet 3 of 16)

Constraints (Sheet 4 of 16)

Removals (Sheet 5 of 16)

Site Plan Overview (Sheet 6 of 16)

Grading and Drainage (Sheets 7, 8,9, 10 and 11 of 16)

Erosion & Sedimentation Control (Sheets 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16 of 16)

& Dlans to foflow with subsequent submissions

Q

0 00 O0O©O

Drainage Profiles (# of sheets to be determined)

Driveway Profiles (# of sheets to be determined)

Details, as necessary (# of sheets to be determined)
Subdivision Plat (1 sheet) - Separate Document for Filing
Pre-Development Drainage Analysis (1 sheet, Part of SWPPP)
Post-Development Drainage Analysis (1 sheet, Part of SWPPP)

As our submissions will show, HVSF’s long-term plan for its new home includes:



October 20, 2020
Page 4

an open-air theater with seating, as at Boscobel, for approximately 530

patrons, with accompanying front- and back-of-house facilities;

. an indoor theater with seating for approximately 225 pawrons along with

rehearsal space;

a continuation of the existing restaurant/ event use;

. an implementation of the already approved hotel use in the GGCPDD;

artist housing;

. an outdoor pavilion at the site of the existing golf pro shop that will be

available for both HVSF use and community events;

. box office/welcome center;

picnic lawns;

gardens;

! producr.ion/ rehearsal facihity;

administrative headquarters;

. additional parking spaces for cars, shuttle vans and busses.

These amendments will necessitate the repurposing of the 18-hole golf course to a 9_hole

course and the relocation of the pro shop, the cart barn, and golf-course patking.

For M. Davis’s gift to be realized, a subdivision of the GGCPDD /RC property is also

required as per the proposed subdivision plan submitted herewith.



October 20, 2020
Page 5

We recognize that this is a significant application, and we are awate of and respectful of the
need for you to review these applications fully, faily, and transparenty. None of the approvals can
be achieved without a final determination by the Lead Agency under SEQRA, which, in 2005 when
the GGCPDD was created, was the Town Board. In order to demonstrate how these applications
match up favorably with the Town’s 2005 Findings Statement for the GCCPDD as required by
SEQRA by either eliminating or properly mitigating any adverse environmental impacts, Table of
Comparison and Analysis is attached to the required Environmental Assessment Form (EAF)

referenced above for your ease of reference.

We are confident and hopeful that we can demonstrate ta whichever of your Boards is
determined to serve as the Lead Agency that, to the maximum extent practicable, any perceived
adverse environmental effects that might be identified in the approval process will be minimized or

avoided.

With these submissions, Mr. Davis, the Gartison, and HVSF are hoping to begin the
collaboration to further their combined stewardship of this extraordinary property within the Town

of Philipstown.

I hope that the totality of these submissions will be helpful to your Boards in identifying the
important issues to be discussed and analyzed and in setting the roadmap for the futute direction of
those discussions and analyses, especially for the commencement of the SEQRA process and a

determination as to what type of action this will be under SEQRA.



October 20, 2020
Page 6

GPLLC and HVSF and their development team stand ready to meet at any time and answer
any and all questions your Boards may bave if you feel additional information is required prior to any

formally scheduled Board meetings.

That said, T respectfully request that our application be scheduled for the Town Board’s
November 5™ agenda. We do so with the hope that the Town Board would refer the matter to the
Planning Board for its November 19" agenda for the Planning Board to begin its review and comment
pesiod and to determine as well its Lead Agency role under SEQRA, with the possibility that the
Planning Board would approve a motion at that November 19* meeting to circulate its intent to setve

as such Lead Agency to all interested and involved agencies.

In closing, I thank you for your attention to this lengthy submission.

Respgctfully submitted,

P. Daniel Hollis III

Enc.



STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF PUTNAM

In the Matter of the Application of

Garrison Properties, LL.C and Hudson Valley
Shakespeare Festival, Inc,
PETITION

For an Amendment to the
Zoning Ordinance of the

TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
PUTNAM COUNTY, NEW YORK

On behalf of Gatrison Properties, LL.C, 2 domestic Limited Liability Company duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, the ownert of the vast majority of
the 200.3 +/- acres of land (The Subject Property) on the Westetly side of Albany Post Road (US
Route # 9) in the Town of Philipstown, County of Putnam and State of New York and the
prospective donor of +/- 50 acres of the Subject Property to the Hudson Valley Shakespeare
Festival Inc., a 501(c)(3) New York Not for Profit Corporation, the prospective donee of the
aforementioned +/- 50 actes of the Subject Property, the undersigned hereby respectfully petition
the Town Board of the Town of Philipstown pursnant to Section 175-69 of the Town of
Philipstown Code to amend the Zoning Otrdinance of the Town of Philipstown, to permit the
requested additional uses upon the Subject Property hereinafter defined in the Rural Conservation
District (RC) and Gatrison Golf Club Planned Development District (GGCPDD) as the same are
cutrently designated and defined in said Town of Philipstown Zoning Ordinance (“Zoning

Ordinance™)



The Subject Property consists of ten tax parcels of land consisting in the aggregate of 200.3 actes

located on the westerly side of US Rte. 9 and are more specifically designated on the Town of

Philipstown Tax Assessment Map, including the record owner, as:

*  60.-1-59.2 124.912 acres
* 60.-1-59.3 17.131 acres

* 60.-1-63 1.228 acres

*  60.-1-69 8.866 acres

* 60.-1-70 0.103 acres

*  60.-2-26.71 29.782 acres
«  60.-2-27 0.4006 acres

*+ 60.-2-29.1 7.027 acres

*  60.-2-29.2 9.669 actes

* Public Roads 1.166 acres

Garrison Properties, 11.C
Garrison Propetties, LLC
Gartison Properties, LLC
Garrison Properties, LLC
Garrison Properties-, LLC
Garrison Properties, LLC
Vestry of St. Philips Church
Garrison Properties, LLC
Gatrison Properties, LL.C

Public Roads

and will represent one hundred percent (1 00%) of the property in the GGCPDD District to

be affected by the proposed amendments.

The requested amendments would expand the as of right Permitted Uses in the RC and

GGCPDD Districts to include:



an open-air theater with seating for approximately 530 patrons;
. an indoor theater with seating for approximately 225 patrons along with
rehearsal space;
. a continuation of the existing restaurant/event use;
an implementation of the already approved hotel use in the GGCFDD;
artist housing;
- an outdoot pavilion at the site of the existing golf pro shop that will be
available for both HVSF use and community events;
. box office/welcome center;
theater concession structure;
. picnic lawns;
gardens;
. production/rehearsal facility;
. administrative headquarters;

. additional parking spaces for cars, shuttle vans and busses.

The proposed amendment to the Zoning Ordinance and Schedules is appropriate, since the
Subject Propetty is the only parcel of land within the Philipstown designated as being within the

“GGCPDD District.”

The proposed amendments are also appropriate because they will permit the desired upgrade
in the utility, character and appearance of the Subject Property and create a permanent home for

the Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival in Philipstown so as to allow Hudson Valley Shakespeare

—3_



Festival Inc. to fulfill its commitment to serve as a year-round cultural resource, environmental
steward and community partner without any dettiment to any other patcels of land within the Town
of Philipstown as the operation of the Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival within the Town of
Philipstown at a different location for multiple decades has not been detrimental to the health, safety
and welfare of the Town of Philipstown or to its citizens and, to the contrary, has improved the
overall aesthetic and economic health of the Town of Philipstown and its citizens. It is respectfully
requested that the Town Board, by appropriate Resolution, refer this Petition to the Planning Board
as required by the above-referenced Section 175-69 of the Town of Philipstown Code and to the
Putnam County Department of Planning and Development as required by Sections 239-1 and 239-
m of the New York State General Municipal Law and to then fix the time and place of a Public
Hearing on the proposed amendment and cause notice thereof to be given in accordance with the

requirements of the Town of Philipstown Town Code.

Further, pursuant to your Town Code, notice will be provided a suitable time ptior to any

Public Hearing to all owners of property within 500 feet of the petimeter of the Subject Property.

Dated: October 22, 2020
Cold Spring, New York

GARRISO RTIES, LLC.

By:

Frank Allemann, Vice President & General Manager

HUDSON V. 'Y SHAKESPEARE FESTIVAL Inc.




STATE OF NEW YORK }ss
COUNTY OF PUTNAM

On October 22nd, 2020 before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Frank
Allemann, personally known to me ot proved to me on the basis of satisfactoty evidence to be the
individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he
executed the same in his capacity and that by his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the

petson upon behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

?‘ tary Publi GLENNON J. WATSON
Notary Public, State of New York
STATE OF NEW YORK  }ss Mo 4resion

COUNTY OF PUTNAM Qualified in Putnam Coun
Commission Expires March 30,

On October 22nd, 2020 before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Kate Liberman,
personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual
whose name is subsctibed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the

same in her capacity and that by her signatute on the instrument, the individual, or the petson upon

-

GLENNON 4. WATSON
Notary Public, State of New York
N No, 4755184
Qualified in Putnam Coun

Commission Expires March 30, %

behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public



TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN

PUTNAM COUNTY, NEW YOREK

APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF SUBDIVISION PLAT Tax Map No. 60.-1-59.2 & 59.3

The undersigned hereby make application to the P anning Board of the Town of Phiiipstoun
under Part-One Subdivision Regulations for one of the folowing (chect one}:

For Office Use Only

Zor apvroval o 3 Prelimipary Plat; 1. Application #
Zor agproval of a Final Blat; 2. Fee

X Zor approval of a Kinor Supdivision as a Final Blat; or 3. Rec'd by
Zor revision ol a creviously Filsd Blat. 1. Date

Identification of Applicant and Owner:

a. Applicant (name) Garrison Properties LLC Tel. (845) 424-3604

address P.O. Box 34_@, 20 I15US Route 9
Garrison, NY 10524

b. Owner of property if not same as Applicant:
(name) SAME AS APPLICANT Tel.

address

Attachments: Each of the fol owing, when applicable, shal> be attached to and are made
a part ol this Apolication ichect the tems attachzd :

A- 1 ATTIgavit of Ownershis, sxacuted ey the individual, oz
1 partnershic, that is the cwner of groperty i nof same 2

. A-2 BZ%M3avit ol Qunezshin, executed 5y z cargoration that s the cwnar of
property 17 onst same as the apolisant,

tcation exsouted oy the Applicant :f the Agplizant i3 g
3 g



[1

I11.

IV,

Attachments: {cont.)

52

Appendix B-2 certification executed by the owner of property if the owner is a
partnership, corporation, association or business trust

> Appendix C Disclosure Statement under Sec. 809 of the General Municipal law.
& Appendix D Identification of Property and Proposal.

P4 Appendix E Identification of Plans and Documents.

X EAF - Environmental Assessment Form

X Application Checklist

] Request for a Waiver of Subdivision Requlations

Authorization: The Applicant and Owner hereby grant to the Planning Board, the Town
Board and Superintendent of Highways, and their authorized agents, permission to enter
upon the property that is the subject of this Application for the purpose of inspection and
enforcement of the Subdivision Requlations, including the taking of tests and materials
samples:

Endorsements:

a. Applicant/Owner Gayrisan Properties LLC

Date 10/22/2020 Signed

by Frank (Chip) Allemann

b. Owner of Property if not same as Applicant
N.A:

Date Signed

Page 2 of 2



APPENDI X B-2: CERTIFICATE CONCERNING OWNERSHIP OF OWNER

1. 1If owner or applicant is a general or limited partnership, attach this notarized
certification listing names and addresses of all partners and participants.
If a partner is a partnership, corporation, association or business trust,
provide the information required by this section for such partner,

2. 1If owner or applicant is a corporation, association or business trust
attach this notarized certification listing position, name and addresses of all
officers, directors and all shareholders owning (whether beneficially or
equitable) five {5%) percent or more of any class of such party's stock.

Certificate of Frank (Chip) Allemann, Vice President & General Manager

Position Name Address % Ownership
Sole Member ChFiStOPher Davis t/o Garrison Froperties, LLC, 2015 Raute 9, Garrison, NY 10524 100%
Vice President & General Manager Frank (Chlp) Allerann clo Garrison Properties, LLC, 2015 Route 9, Garrison, NY 0524 ZERO

The undersigned (corporate officer) hereby certifies that the information hereinabove
set forth is true and correct.

Gartifdm Properties LLL.C

Signed
Sworn before me this Frank (Chip) Allemann, Vice President & General Manager
22nd day of  October , 20 20

Ay

/ Notary Puﬁ/ic

SON
GLENNON J. WATSEL ork
lic, State of New
Notary PuE"S a7=R194

™ sa‘.iﬂéd in Fuinam Cm.n:)‘.ty 2629
o alssion Sxpires March 30, &3

APPENDIX B-2



APPENDIX C

TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN NEW YORK

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING APPLICATION OR PETITION

A, Identification of Application or Petition:
l. T0: O Philipstown Town Board
X Philipstown Planning Board
O Zoning Board of Appeals
] Zoning Administration Officer/Building Inspector
2. NAME OF APPLICANT: Garrison Properties LLC
3. RESIDENCE: 2015 US Route 9, Garrison NY 10524
4.  DATE: 10/22/2020

5. NATURE OF APPLICATION OR PETITION: Application for approval to subdivide property into 4 lots.

B. Nature and Extent of Interest of any State Officer or Municipal Officer or
Employee in this Application ([Set Forth in detail].

None

C. Statement that no State Officer or Municipal Officer or Employee has an
interest in this Application.

The undersigned Applicant or Petitioner certifies by signature on this Dis-
closure Statement that, with the exception of the information contained in
Paragraph B, above in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 8G9
of the General Municipal Law, no State officer or any officer or employee of the
Town of Philipstown or of any municipality of which the Town is a part has
any interest in the person, partnership or association making the above ap-
plication, petition or request.

Properties LLC

Date : 10/22/2020 Signed

oS

Frank (Chip} Allemann, Vice President & General Manager

(Note: See reverse for the provisions of Sec. 809)

APPENDIX C-1



This informaton is provided especially for those who may be making appli-
cation without assistance of counsel, so that they will be fully advised as to
the purpese and requirements of this statute.

SEC. 809. DISCLOSURE IN CERTAIN APPLICATIONS

1. Every application, petition or request submitted for a variance, amend-
ment, change of zoning, approval of a plat, exemption from a plat or official map
license or permit, pursuant to the provisions of any ordinance, local law, rule or
regulation constituting the zoning and planning regulations of z municipality shall
state the name, residence and the nature and extent of the interest of any state
officer or any officer or employee of such municipality of which such municipality
is a part, in the person, partnership or association making such application,
petition or request (hereinafter called the applicant} to the extent known to such

applicant.

2. For the purpose of this section an officer or employee shall be deemed to
have an interest in the applicant when he, his spouse, or their brothers, sisters,
parents, children, grandchildren, or the spouse of any of them

{a) is the applicant, or

(b) is an officer, director, partner or employee of the applicant, or

(c) legally or beneficially owns or controls stock of a corporate appli
cant or is a member of a partnership or association applicant, or

{d) is a party to an agreement with such on applicant, express or implied,
whereby he may receive any payment, or other benefit, whether or not
for services rendered, dependent or contingent upon the favorable
approval of such application, petition or request.

3. Ownership of less than five per cent of the stock of a corporation
whose stock is listed on the New York or American Steck Exchanges shall not

constitute an interest for the purposes of this section.

4. R person who knowingly and intentionally violates this section shall
be guilty of a misdemeanor.

AZTENLIX

-2



APPENDIX D: IDENTIFICATION OF PROPERTY AND PROPOSAL

D-1.

(o]

[+

Property

Total acres 142

Does application cover all contiguous land of the owner? None

If no, explain any excluded area

Own as additiona parcels searated by public reads and one condguaus feouching) residendl property (TM60.-1-60) chat is aot part af the profect and is ully devaloped.

Tax Map: Sheet  60. Block |  Parcel{s) 59.2&59.3

Last deed: Date 6/19/1999 Liber 1473 __ Page _ 30

Date 6/19/1999 Liber 1473 Page _ 44

Location:

Zoning District(s) Rural Conservation (RC) & Garrison Golf Club PDD

Property abuts (street or roads)
U.S. Route 9, Snake Hill Road and Philipse Brook Road

Municipal Districts encompassing all or part of property:

School: Garrison UFSD
Fire Protection: Garrison Fire District
Other: Garrison Ambulance Corp

[ices plat proposs a new street or grivate way connecting directly Intc any State
Highway or County Road?  No Zf yes, glive name ang routs 3

Does plat Znvo.ve drainage lines coanecting directly nto any channel lines
estab’ished by the County of Putnan? No

Does plat Inciude any land within 500 feet of any abutting municipality, the
boundary of any existing or proposed County or State park or recreation area,
the right-of-way of any existing or proposed County or State highway, the
existing or proposed right-of-way or stream channe. owned by the County and for
which chamnel Zinzs have been estaclished, or the foundary of County v State land
on which a public bullding or Institution is established? Yes

If yes, specify

Property had frontage along US Route 9, a State Highway

Give name and address of all property owners within 500 feet of the
perimeter boundary of the proposed plat (as indicated in the current

Town Tax Assessor's records): SEE ATTACHED LIST

BPPENDIX D-1



D-3.

D-4.

Proposa.:

(AN

e

Cote

i

£y dwellings,

(o}

Number of Proposed Lots: 4 o numger already occuplagd
any: |

Length of Progvosed strests or private ways :n Flat: Zero  f::t,
Does App_lcant sropose to dsdicate to pusiic use all of the strzets shown on ths

proposed piat? No ffonzt, describe

by

None Shown

Approximate acreage of _and proposed as open space for par<s and playground:
Zero acres.

Does app_icant propose to dedizate to gupliiz use all o

in

the ogen staze chown sn

the proposed clat? No ., i not, cescripe
It is intended thac the subdivided parcels will be sparsely daveloped within ded | 3 of the DD as described in an application submited

simultaneausly herewith. VWhile che fands will remain private, public accass for recraaticnal, eductional and ardstic purposes are planned.

made to the County of Putnam or State of New York for approval of proposed
water supply? No . LE yes, give date and descripe

Some of the wells are already in place and operational. Others will be permitted
as the PDD project develops

I How Is sewage disposa. to be provided? Individual Subsurface Sewage Treatment Sys_tems
Has any application been made to the County of Putnam or State of New York for
sewage discharge or approval of a sewage d:sposal system? _No ., ilyes, girz
date and describpe
Some septic systems, including the primary system are already in place and
operational. Others will be permitted as the PDD project develops

i Does proposed piat inciude any wet.ands and/or water courses as defined by the
State of New Yor or an applicable Local law? Yes , if yes, describe
Yes, approximately 1.5 acres of wetlands and 4.0 acres of water surface exist on the
site, All are regulated and ali are shown on the Constraints Map in the plan set.

Procedures:

a. Does apelicant :in the casas of pre-ininazy glatsi provese to suemit a Iinal supdivision

tlat te cover entire preliminazy uiat or to Zile same in sections?
X entire;
i sections,

¢. [oes appllcant Intend to regquest any svceczal autherization Zov the olat under any ths

foilowing? Yes IIyes, steciiy,

Sec 281 of Town Law (cluster;
Halver of Subdivision Zegulatisn 3s:. 3

iltsrnate road standards

LI3TYTIN



D-3. Encumbrances: If property is subject to any of the following encumbrances,

describe or attach copies:

a. easements Easements benefiting the Fire Company for "Dry Hydrants” exist on the

property and are shown on the map set.

b. deed restrictions on use and development None

L)

mortgages None

i, liens None

_eases None

[1+]

I, other Noneﬂ

D-6. Minor Plat: If request s made for acceptance of an app_ication for final, appreval of
ninor supdivision tlat, complets the Iollowing:

]
d2viazd? Yes

L")

a. Does piat Incorporats all 5o the tract Irom which lots are provesed to t

b. Does the plat map show al’l natural water courses, ponds, swamps, f.ood plains or
other land subject to potentia. Zlocding within the olat and any sther land supiect ts
potentia. f_ooding within the plat and any dranage onto the plat from any existing
State Highway, County Road or Town Street? Yes

AFEZHITIX I=-3



APPENDIX E: IDENTIFICATION OF PLANS AMD DCCUMENTS

E-1. Surveyor and Designer(s) Responsible for Plans:

a. Surveyor (nanme) BADEY & WATSON, Surveying & Engineering, P.C.

Address 3063 Route 9
Cold Spring, NY 10516 Tel. (845) 265-9217 x214

N. Y. License No. = 48167 (Glennon J. Watson, LS.)

b. Engineer {name)
Rddress

Tel. o i

N. Y. License No.

¢, Other (nane) BADEY & WATSON, Surveying & Engineering PC
Address 3063 Route 9 o

~_Cold Spring, NY 10516 Tel. 914-265-9217

N. Y. License, if any 103021 (Margaret Smith McManus, PE)

E-2. Maps and Plans:

a. Title and Date of Proposed Plat Map: Subdivision Plat prepared for Garrison
Properties LLC, October 22, 2020 (Now it is sheet 2 of the overall plan set.)

No. of Sheets: 16 Total Set

b. Title and Date of Proposed Profiles and Construction Pians:Site & Subdivision Plan Set ...
Garrison Properties, LLC and Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival, Inc., October 2020, printed October 21, 2020

No. of Sheets; 16 Total Set

(w]

. Title, Date and Preparer of other maps and plans: "Hudson Valley Shakespeare
The Garrison Master Concept Plan...." November 5, 2020, Nelson Byrd Woltz Landscape Architects.

E-3. Other: Give titles, dates and preparer of repcrts and documents accompanying
application: (such as results of soils test and reports on drainage, sewage
disposal and water supply):

Environmental Assessment Form, Parts | & 2, October 22, 2020, by Jan Johannessen, AICP,
Keltard Sessions Consulting.

£-4. Attorney (if any):

a. (name} P. Daniel -Holiis, Ill, Esquire, Hollis Laidlaw & Simon P.C.
Address 55 Smith Street
. Mount Kisco, NY 10549 Tel. (914) 666-5600 (Ext. 312)

APFZNIIY =



Applicant Garrison Properties LLC

Project Name oo e e ety

Bpplicant's Representaiive  Glennon | Watson, LS (Badey & Watson)
Tax Map ID # 60.-1-59.2 & 59.3

Date October 22,2020

PHILIPSTOWN PLANNING BOARD
SUBMISSION CHECKLIST
SUBDIVISION APPLICATIONS

Far all sugdivision apolizations, the Zsollswing requizements are agpoicat_e pelore aspllizatisn
2%

A. Land may not be subdivided if the app.icatlon will result in the following except with
Planning Board Approval}

7 or more .ots .ocated in a Business or Industrial zone

2 or more _ots {of 10 acres or less } which have frontage on a
state highway or county road located in a Res. Zone

3 or more _ots each of which contains 10 acres or _ess

The creation of a street, highway or r.o.w for vehit.es

B. Zand nay not be divided so as to create rights-of-way for power, gas or te_ephone _ines
. Approved subdivision plats may not be revised
D. Subdivision piat requiring approval may not be used in connection with the conveyance

of rea_ property in the Town, or filed with the County Clerx's office unti_ approved.

Preliminary Sketch Plans

“gcation of the olat in the meighborhood X

“ayout of iots, strests and existing comfours at 17' Intervals X
Zocation of watercourses X

Zocation of water bodies X

~ocation of wetlands X

Zacation ¢ mator natural Zaature

Yy 4l e vad P

X

wm



Minor Subdivision Plat Applications

1

Typicaliy, a viat of lots to which access s given Ly ogen deve.opment azea orivate right-ol-way 5z easements e.igib.e Zor
consideration as a miner o.at.

;. Genera_ Submission Requlrements 1 8its conditions and land &vaiuations:
.. Bpplication on proper forms X i, 3zisting conteours not exceading 3-Ioot intervals
¢. Forms property signed X 3. Mzeting DOT standazas Zarmaps of 1% = 280
i. BApp:ication Fee X .. Hhppropriate benchmarx
1. Final Piat Mar {3 blue or otiack-line grints: Y. Zxisting permansnt ouiliings and structuzes
3. Stale of 1" = 45! oz 33 put 1. Zxzisting watercourses, water podles and strsans
not less than 1" = 100' . Location amd linits of .4=t"an=:is
. No less than 20" % 20" ne 4. ocation amd limits of potential Iloca
more than 36" x 48" hazard areas
s 3lack waterpreol inx on good cisth or film Tocation ol dzalnage dlschargs golnts
t, Construction P.ans {see Checxlist VI) Iren any skreet or oropsrty
¢. Zvidence that:
3. sewer & water supply approved by PCDH 7. Property Ownership Information
c. street or drainage connactions to state .. Name and address of owner
or county roads suomitted . Same and address o apgiicant :f diffsrent
i Connection appiication made fron owner
o NYSPE; wgtland/watercourse I, Perinster poundary of tract and azsa
nod:fications approved to be p_otted
" Ifnajer cuts or Iills, grading olan i, 1igcrex. Location o prep. .ines 200
3. Five {3} plue or plack line prints feet from tract
i. Design computations and data for drainage . 3oth street r-g-w Lines oI any street
or gentra: water and sanitary sewer systens aputting tract
3. Separate map for _ots accessed by open 5. lames of owners 5l property acuitong tract
deve_opment right-of-way or easement . Proposed _ots and lot numbers and area
of each Lokt
1. Title and Zocation informatiom: i, Progosed sireet and/or r-o-w Including widths
Sca:e oI mot Zess than 1" = 17 Zeet X . Location & dimensions of existing &
.. Proposed layout of lots, streets X proposed easements
and lmprovements 11, Existing monuments
3. Future subdivisions on contigucus lang 11, Bny nunicigal or taxat:ion d:strict toundary
1. Title of the plat X 17. iny channel and puilding _inss
: WnLiie : Lo . _
3 [upi_cate in Putnan Lo, 13, Reserved areas for watercourses or wet_and
¢, Date, Town, etc. conservation
;3. Date X i County X
z.  Town . North point X . - .
N ;; S P i Y. Deve_opment Proposa’ Information:
. Scae X I GState X
¢, Location map at scale of 1" = 1000 or X {. Foroeach lot near watsriourses, £odiss, wetiangs,
2000 feet flood hazard area, proposed fioor elevation
. ¥Vicinity nap showing: property X 3% -owest foson
Zinesfstreets within 3307
3. stase ol 1" = 4820 or 330
. ad‘acent owner ident!fizatisn X

i, Index map if plat Is divided Inteo sectlons
ool is e,
3. showing lots, ot ®'s, streets, strest names
o, de.ineaticn of areas '

., szale af 1" = 4070 ar
wizepes

PP --:.

I X X |



Town of Philipstown

238 Main Street
Cold Spring New York 10516

PLANNING BOARD
SITE PLAN APPLICATION PACKAGE

MAJOR PROJECT

PI'Oj ect Name: Garrison Golf Club PDD/ Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

Date: Oclober 20 2020




Town of Philipstown
Planning Board
238 Main Street, PO Box 153
Cold Spring, NY 10516

Office (845) 265- Fax (845) 265-2687

Application for Planning Board
Special Use & Site Plan Approval

Primarily 60.-1-59.2, 60.-1-59.3,
Also (no activity planned) 60.-1-63,

60.-1-69, 60.-1-70, 60.-2:26.71.
Date: October 20, 2020 TM# 60-2-27. 60.-2-29.1 and 60.-2-29.2

Project Name:;  Garrison Golf Club PDD/ Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival (GGC & HVSF, respectively)

Street Address: 2015 US Route 9, Garrison, NY 10524

Fee Amount: Received:
Bond Amount: Received:
Applicant: =Eewwwts Planners
Name Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival Name Kellard Sessions Consulting (J Johannessen)
Address 143 Main Street, Address 500 Main Street
Cold Spring, NY 10516 Armonk, NY 10504

Telephone _(781) 424-7568 Telephone _(914) 273-2323
Design Professional: Surveyor: & Civil Engineers
Name Nelson Byrd Woltz Landscape Architects Name Badey & Walson, Surveying & Engineering, P.C.
Address 214 West 28th Street, Suite 900 Address 3063 Roue 9

New York, NY 10001 Cold Spring, NY 10515
Telephone (212) 260-2270 or (347) 778-0485 Telephone _(845) 265-8217 x 214 or (914} 804-1926

Property Owner (imesetiran-smersupmiy-vopmmieemere): Traffic Engineers

Name Garrison Properties LLC Name Kimley-Horn of New York, PC (J. Canning, PE)
Address P.0.B. 34, 2015 US Route 9 Address 1 North Lexington Avenue

Garrison NY 10524 White Plains, NY 10601
Telephone _ (845) 424-3604 Telephone (914) 368 9200




Primarily 60.-1-59.2, 60.-1-59.3, Also (no activity planned) 60.-1-63,
TM# 60.-1-69, 60.-1-70, 60.-2-26.71, 80.-2-27. 60.-2-29.1 and 60.-2-29.2

Pro J ect Name: Garrison Gelf Club PDDY Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

Pl'Oj ect Description' Modifications to the Garrison Gelf Club Planned Development District to provide for: a permanent home for

the Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival including two theaters, an cutdoor pavilion and additional housing for artists and visitors; a smaller

9 hole vs. 18 hole, golf course and a single family residential structure, while maintaining existing banquet /restaurant facility.

ZONING INFORMATION

175-7 Zoning District: RC Rural Conservation

Recreational, Arts and Educational Uses in addition to existing restaurant and banquet facilities.

175-10 Proposed Use:

Proposed Accessory Use(s): Maintenance facilities, Administrative offices

175-7 Overlay Districts on the property: Yes or No
175-13 Floodplain Overlay District — NFIP Map (FPO) NO
175-18.1 Mobile Home Overlay District (MHQ) No©
175-14 Cold Spring Reservoir Water Shed Overlay ~-------—---—--—- (WSQ) NO
175-15 Scenic Protection Overlay (8PO) YES
175-16 Aquifer Overlay District {AQQO) YES
175-18 Open Space Conservation Overlay District (0OSO) YES
175-35 Within 100 foot buffer of Wetlands or Watercourse ----—----- JES
175-36 Steep Terrain YES
175-36 Ridge Line Protection NO
175-37Protection Agricultural et NO



Primarily 60.-1-59.2, 60.-1-59.3, Also (no activity planned) 60.-1-63,
TM# 60.-1-69, 60.-1-70, B0.-2-26.71, 60.-2-27. 60.-2-29.1 and 60.-2-28.2

Project Name:

Garrison Golf Club PDD/ Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

175-11 Density and Dimensional Regulations

Zoning District RC Required | Existing| Proposed| Complies| Variance
Minimum front yard setback
Measured from the travel way Town Road| 80 feet >400 | >400 Yes No

Measured from the travel way County/State| 60 feet >220 >220 Yes No
Minimum side yard setback 30 feet — 20' TBD* TBD*
Minimum side yard setback (2) 30 feet —— 17.9 No Pre-Existing
Minimum side yard setback (3) 30 feet —_— 30 TBD* | TBD*
Minimum rear yard setback 50 feet 17.9 76.8 TBD* TBD*
Maximum impervious surface coverage 10% 8.26 11.13 Yes No
Maximum height 40 feet <40’ <40’ Yes No
Maximum footprint non-residential structures 6.000sq.ft | 18,000 18,000 No Pre-existing

* Comliance/Necessity is dependent upon results of ;Petition tojamend PqD

SUBMISSION:

13 copies with one electronic file in .pdf format of the following;

1. Pre-Application meeting decision and comments
2. Application
3. Proof of Ownership
4. Site Plan
5.
Statement.
6.

An agricultural data statement as defined in §175-74, if required by §175-37C.

A long-form Environmental Assessment Form or Draft Environmental Impact

7. The Site Plan application fee, as established by the Town Board and any required
escrow deposit for review costs, as required by the Planning Board.

8. FEE:
0. Escrow:

Received:

Received:




500’ ADJOINERS LIST
60.-1-59.2, 60.-1-59.3, 60.-1-63,
60.-1-69, 60.-1-70, 60.-2-26.71
6.-2-27, 60.-2-29.1, 60.-2-29.2
Garrison Properties, LLC

60.-1-59.11

Levy Charles Simon
225 E57™ St Apt 9F
New York, NY 10022

60.-1-65

Garrison Golf Club LLC
PO Box 348

Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-71

Taymor, Juiie

874 Broadway Ste 1005
New York, NY 10003

60.-2-25.1
O’Rourke James

2 Overbrook Dr
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-25.3

Emray Land Corporation
238 Snake Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-18

Ben Adi Zsach

18 Belie Ln
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-89

Tudor, Rodney A
PO Box 423
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-90

Tudor, Rodney A
PO Box 423
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-26.62

Scali, Vincent

15 Ledge Rock Ct
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-62

City of New York DEP
71 Smith Ave
Kingston, NY 12401

60.-1-66

Tripp Alexander
135 Snake Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-72

White Russell S

PO Box 85

Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-25.4

K.J.A. Land Company Inc
2 Overlook Dr

Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-87

Bellman, Paul

808 Broadway Apt PHD
New York, NY 10003

60.-2-19

Tudor, Derek J

33 Lovell Ln
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-15

Lilourne, DavidR D

PO Box 189

Cold Spring, NY 10524

60.-2-14

Moran, Margaret E
PQ Box 157
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-26.61
Labriola, Arthur

30 Greencliff Ln
Garrison, NY 10524

Source: Town of Philinstown 2020 Final Assessment Roll

60.-1-64

Garrison Golf Club LLC
PO Box 348

Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-68

Taymor, lulie

874 Broadway Ste 1005
New York, NY 10003

60.-1-73

Taymor, Julie

874 Broadway Ste 1005
New York, NY 10003

60.-2-25.2

O’Rourke, Raymond J
238 Snake Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-17

Bellman, Paul

808 Broadway Apt PHD
New York, NY 10003

60.-2-88

Singieton Kenneth P
PO Box 148
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-16

Lilburne, David RD

PO Box 189

Cold Spring, NY 10524

60.-2-26.8

Pirraglia Anthony
14 Ledge Rock Ct
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-26.5

Leardi, Steven

39 Greencliff Ln
Garrison, NY 10524



60.-2-26.4
McCullough Thomas
30 Greencliff Ln
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-28

City of New York DEP
71 Smith Ave
Kingston, NY 12401

60.-2-40

Southard Karen

PO Box 580
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-32

Southard Karen

PO Box 580
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-35

Wallis Stephen

150 Philipse Brook Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-38

Southard Karen

PO Box 580
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-70
Wunderlich John

89 Frazier Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-71.3

Friars of the Atonement

PO Box 300
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-73

United Cerebral Palsy Assn

40 Jon Barrett Rd
Patterson, NY 12563

500’ ADIOINERS LIST
Garrison Properties, LLC

60.-2-26.3

Brief Andrew

31 Greencliff Ln
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-53

Coleman Mary Ann
83 Oak Hollow
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-39

Southard Karen

PO Box 580
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-31

Northup Edmund D
200 Philipse Brook Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-36

Wallis Stephen

150 Philipse Brook Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-68

Balkan lodi

118 Philipse Brook Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-71.1

Friars of the Atonement

PO Box 300
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-61

DiSalvo Catherine
PO Box 254
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-74

Fisher Samuel

22 Coteman Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-13

Zeiderman Lloyd
170 Avery Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-52

Reed William B

673 Old Albany Post Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-33

Pielmeier John

39 Foxglove Ln
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-34

Faigen Nancy

158 Philipse Brook Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-37

Graff Pascal

5 Foxglove Ln
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-69
Wunderlich John

89 Frazier Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-71.2

Friars of the Atonement
PO Box 300

Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-60

Garrison Golf Club LLC
PO Box 348

Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-75

Erickson loel

18 Coleman Rd
Garrison, NY 10524



60.-2-76

Harris Alian E

27 Coleman Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-81

Rankel Carl

1994 Albany Post Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-84

County Line Equities LLC
480 Furnace Dock Rd
Cortlandt Manor, NY 10567

61.-3-27

Freeman Robert

29 Travis Corners Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

61.-3-53

Minardi Frank W
34 Kona Way
sarrison, NY 10524

60.-1-54

Cen Huds. Gas & Elec
284 South Ave
Poughkeepsie, NY 12601

71.-3-1

Bouchard Todd

48 Parrott 5t

Cold Spring, NY 10516

60.-1-58

Savva Helen

PO Box 63
Garrison, NY 10524

500’ ADJOINERS LIST
Garrison Properties, LLC

60.-2-77

The Bank of New Yark Mellon
4425 Ponce de Leon

Coral Gables, FL 33146

60.-2-82

Olmsted Edward
1992 Route 9
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-85

County Line Equities LLC
480 Furnace Dock Rd
Cortlandt Manor, NY 10567

61.-3-26

Stafford Francis O C
23 Travis Corners Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-52

Dickerhof Jakob K
16 Travis Corners Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

72.-2-1

Nytko Frederick E
1944 Rt 9

Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-57.-2

So. Highland Methodist
48 Parrot 5t

Cold Spring, NY 10516

71.-2-81

Armstrong Amanda

1911 Albany Post Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

Source: Town of Philipstown 2020 Final Assessment Roll

60.-2-80

The Bank of New York Mellon
4425 Ponce de Leon

Coral Gables, FL 33146

60.-2-83

Lombardo Louis
1988 Rt 9

Garrison, NY 10524

61.-3-29

Guthrie Catherine W
27 Travis Corners Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-2-78
Cunningham T1 Il
10 Coieman Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-53

Dickerhof Jakob K
16 Travis Corners Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-55

Barrie John L

1940 Route 9
Garrison, NY 10524

60.-1-56

Sears Tashi

1941 Rt 9

Garrison, NY 10524

71.-2-82

Cottrell Nancy L

PO Box 263
Garrison, NY 10524



71.-2-83

Clarke Eileen P
1925Rt9

Garrison, NY 10524

71.-2-86

Ross Arthur H

43 Snake Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

71.-2-87

Townsend Mary C
40 Daffodil Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

71.-2-97

Filardo Vincent

70 Snake Hili Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

500’ ADJOINERS LIST
Garrison Properties, LLC

71.-2-84

Rapalje Carolyn A
37 Snake Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

71.-2-76

Gereau Haddon Sezelle A
33 baffodil Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

71.-2-92

Garrison Golf Club LLC
PO Box 348

Garrison, NY 10524

Source: Town of Philipstown 2020 Final Assessment Roll

71.-2-85

Ross Carolyn P

43 Snake Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524

71.-2-88

Penner Melvyn S

75 Snake Hill Rd

Cold Spring, NY 10516

71.-2-96

Gibson, Stacey H

70 Snake Hill Rd
Garrison, NY 10524



TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
CODE ADMINISTRATOR

233 MAIN STREET
P.O. BOX 155
COLD SPRING, NY 10516

Greg Wonnar, Code Raforcement Officer
(B43) 2655202

(845) 265-3928

(843} 255-2687 FAX

DATEQCT0h Or 22,2020

TO: Eaérg ¢ Werson

Vevi 3 .
agglﬁ i =

Cold ©Pimg NY 1057L

REF:  (atpise Propuass, LLC
2015 8y
Gargean N 10524
TAX MAP# Lo ~1-5h 2 _

IN RESPONSE TO YOUR REQUEST FOR “NO VIOLATION LETTER” ON ABOVE MENTIONED
PROPERTY PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT AFTER REVIEWING PROPERTY RECORDS THERE
WERE NO VIOLATION NOTED,

SINCERELY

Yo
GREN WUNNER
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR



TGWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
CODE ADMINISTRATOR

230 BEATN ETHERT
RO, nOx 138
COLD 8CRING, NY 10316

Gireg Wipmmer, Codle Enforcenuent Offiver
{845) 2685202

{B43) 265-392¢

{845) 263-2687 FAX

DATE: Qc‘mj;ggg 42,7000

TO: Ude (& Waregn
é‘m!q g d‘én%-*',ng_ £ g0
L3 RAr9g
Colé Spring, NY 1951k

REF: a¥ ro s, LLL
RTINS SR 9
Gaft sen, NY 1657 H
TAX MAP# Lo, ~1~57.3

IN RESPONSE TO YOUR REQUEST FOR “NO VIOLATION LETTER” ON ABOVE MENTIONED
FROPERTY PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT AFTER REVIEWING PROPERTY RECORDS THERE
WERE NO VIOLATION NOTED.

SINCERELY

S AR L
GREG WUNNER
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR



PARTS 1 AND 2 OF THE
FULL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM (EAF)
FOR
GARRISON GOLF CLUB PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AND
HUDSON VALLEY SHAKESPEARE FESTIVAL

October 2020

Garrison Golf Club LLC
P.0. Box 348
2015 U.S. Route 9
Garrison, New York 10524

And
Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

143 Main Street
Cold Spring, New York 10516

Prepared By:

KELLARD SESSIONS CONSULTING
500 MAIN STREET
ARMONK, NEW YORK 10504
(914) 273-2323
WWW.KELSES.COM




TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 PART 1 OF THE FULL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM (EAF)

2.0 PART 2 OF THE FULL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM (EAF)

APPENDICIES

APPENDIX A PROJECT LOCATION MAP

APPENDIX B ON-SITE SOIL TABLE

APPENDIX C GARRISON GOLF CLUB PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

2005 SEQRA FINDINGS STATEMENT COMPARISON TABLE




PART 1 OF THE FULL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM (EAF)

RELLARD
SESSIONS




Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project spensor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.

Complete Part | based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to
update or fully develop that information.

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow. If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section (3 requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information
contained in Part lis accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
Garrison Golf Club Planned Development District {GGCPDD)/Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival (HVSF}

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):
2015 US Ri. 9, Garrison, NY - GGCPDD is located on the west side of U.S. Route 9 in the immediate vicinity of Philipse Brook Road and Snake Hill Road

Brief Description of Proposed Action {include purpose or need):

accommedations: continuation of the existing restaurant use and reception hall; cutdoor pavilion; box office and welcome center; picnic tawns and gardens; administrative offices; improvements to the
Snake Hill Road driveway and associated on-site bridgefeulvert; recanfiguration of internal driveways; installation of additional parking; and construction of a single-family residence. The Garrison Golf Club

is proposed to be reduced in size frem 18 to 8-holes and the proposed action includes the relocation cf the golf pro-shop. cart barn, and golf course parking. The propesed action alse includes a 4-lot

subdivision in order to separate and convey different parcels and uses.

Garrison Praperties LLC and the Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival (HVSF) are proposing an amendment to the presently permitted Garrison Gelf Club Planned Development District (GGCPDD) and the
Rural Consarvation District (RC) to allow the HVSF to relocate its facllity from the Boscobel House and Gardens (also in Philipstawn), to the Garrson Golf Club. HYSF's leng-term plan, which is propased to

be completed in two (2) phases, includes in no pariicular order, the installation of a permanent theater tent; construction of a back of house building; canstruction of a year-round theater; artist and overnight

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone: (a45) 424-3604
Garrison Golf Club LLC -Mail:
E-Mail: chipallemann@thegarmison.com
Address: 5515 () 5. Route 9
City/PO: P.O. Box 348, Garrison State: New Yark Zip Code: 10524
Project Contact (if not same as sponseor; give name and title/role): Telephone: (7g1) 424 7568
- . . t I' T
Kate Liberman, Managing Director, Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festiva E-Mail: Kiberman@hvehakespaare.org
Address:
143 Main Street
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Cold Spring New York 10518
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: (345) 424-3604
Garrisonh Golf Club LLC (as owner and co-applicant) A E-Mail: chipallemann@thegarrison.com
Address:
2015 U.S_Route 8
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
YE p.0. Box 348, Garrison New York P 10524

Page 1 of 13



B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial
assistance. }

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)
a. City Counsel, Town Board, lYesEINo | Amendment to the GGCPDD & Rural October 2020
or Village Board of Trustees Conservation District
b. City, Town or Village #MYesCINo | philipstown Planning Board - Subdivision, October 2020
Planning Board or Commission Site Plan Approval, Special Use Permit
¢. City, Town or CIYesk/INo
Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies IYes[_INo | Town of Philipstown - Conservation Board - TBD
Wetland Permit
e. County agencies pAYesCONe | PCDH (Septic), PCDHF (Highway Work Permit)y  [TBD
Putnam County Planning Board - GML 238m & n
f. Regional agencies EAYes[ JNo  |NYCDEP - Aqueduct Crossing Review TBD
g. State agencies EYes[INo  |NYSDOT - Highway Work Permit TBD
NYSDEC - SPDES General Permit {Stormwater)
h. Federal agencies CYes@INo
i. Coastal Resources.
i. Ts the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront arca of a Designated Inland Waterway? K Yes[INo
ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? O Yes#No
iii, Ts the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? [ Yesh@iNo

C. Planning and Zoning

C.1. Planning and zoning actions.

Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the [JYes#No
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?

o If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.

» If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

C.2. Adopted land use plans.

a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site KYesCINo
where the proposed action would be located?
If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed actien OyeskNo

would be located?

b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway; A YesTONo
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)
If Yes, identify the plan(s):
The subject property is located within the Garrison Golf Club Planned Development District; the Town of Philipstown Open Space Conservation
Overlay District; the Town of Philipstown Scenic Protection Overlay District, and the Town of Philipstown Aquifer Overlay District

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan,  BYesINo
or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s):
The subject property is located within the Town of Philipstown Open Space Conservation Qverlay District and is listed on the Town's Open Space
Index

Page 2 of 13



C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. A Yes[ONo
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) incliding any applicable overlay district?
Garrison Golf Ciub Planned Development District {GGCPDD) and the Rural Conservation District (RC)

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? M Yes[INo
c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the preposed action? AvesCONe
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site? Amendment to the GGCPDD and RC District's to allow uses not presently permitted

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? Garrison Union Free School District

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
Putnam County Sheriff's Department and NYS Police

¢. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
Garrison Volunteer Ambulance Corps and Philipstown Volunteer Ambulance Corps

d. What parks serve the project site?

Philipstown Park - 1239 Route 9D and Philipstown Community Center - 107 Glenclyffe Drive
Clarence Fahnestock State Park; Hudson Highlands State Park

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all

compenents)? Amend the underlying zoning district to allow uses that will accommodate the relocation and expansion of the HVSF
from the Boscobel to the Garrison Galf Club; the golf club will be reconfigured from an 18-hoie o a S-hole course.

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? : 200.3 actes «p)| physical improvements are proposed
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 37.1 acres on Tax Lots 60.1-59.2 and 60.-1-50.3
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned which total +/- 142 acres
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 298.5 acres

c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? nggjf‘;"ew use and modricatian of ex1sting O YeskAANo

i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expan%?lon and 1 glgltlfy the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,

square feet)? % Units:
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? MYes[INo
If Yes,

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)
Four {4) parcels are proposed and uses include performing arts and ancillary uses; golf; and residential
ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? OyesANo
iii. Number of lots proposed? 4
iv. Minimurmn and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum _+-27 acres  Maximum _+/-92 acres

. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? A Yes[INo
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: months

il. If Yes: *Phase 1 completion by 2024
o  Total number of phases anticipated 2
»  Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) May month _2021 year
¢  Anticipated completion date of final phase Dec month _2031vyear
e Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may

determine timing or duration of future phases:

Phase 1: Install permanent theater tent; back of house building; artist accommodations; Snake Hill Rd. driveway improvements/bridge replacement;
parking; convert golf course from 18 to 9 holes; relocate golf pro shop, cart barn, and goif parking.

Phase 2: Construct year-round theater venue; private residence; overnight accommodations; additional parking

Page 3 of 13



f. Does the project include new residential uses? Hves[INo
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family {four or more)

Initial Phase 0 ] 0 0
At completion

of all phases 2 0 0 0
g. Does the proposed acticn include new non-residential construction {including expansions)? P ves[INo
If Yes,

i. Total number of structures +- 31

ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: TBD height; TBD width; and TBD length
ifi. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: _ TBD square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any OyespNo

liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

If Yes,

i. Purpose of the impoundment:
ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: [ Ground water [ ] Surface water streams [_|Other specify:

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: ' million gallons; surface area: acres
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structare (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations

a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? [JyespANo
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes:
i ‘What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
e  Volume (specify tons or cubic yards):
s (Qver what duration of time?
i#i. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? yes[INo
If yes. describe.

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? acres
vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet
viii. Will the excavation require blasting? [(Iyes[INo

ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment M Yes[ INo
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes:

i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description): Potential repair or replacement of an existing culvert at the site access driveway off Snake Hill Road, which is in poor condition; this
NYSDEC Class B (TS) stream is a tributary to the Philips Brook. Other site related activities may take place with the Town of

Philipstown regulated wétland buffer

Page 4 of 13




ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:
At the present time, the project sponser envisions that a repair to, or replacement of, the existing culvert associated with the Snake
Hill Road access drive will be necessary due fo its present width and condition. The applicant will retain a structural engineer to more fully
evaluate the condition of the culvert. If replacement or repair is needed, disturbance to the bed and banks of the stream may be requirgd.
Additional information will be provided during the approval process.

fii. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? Y esONo
If Yes, describe: TBD - Culvert replacement may disturb bottom sediments; however, the new culvert has not yet been designed

iv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? [ Yesk/No
If Yes:

e acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:
o  expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:
s purpose of proposed removal {e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access).

¢  proposed method of plant removal:
s  if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):
v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:

¢. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? MYes[No
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: 15,661 gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? [dYesNo
If Yes:
¢  Name of district or service area:
e Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? OYes[INe
o [s the project site in the existing district? CIyesINo
» [s expansion of the district needed? Oves[INo
¢ Do existing lines serve the project site? ClyesCINo
#ii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? Oyes[No
If Yes:

o Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

s Source(s) of supply for the district:

iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site? O Yes[ONo
If, Yes:

¢  Applicant/sponsor for new district:

¢ Date application submiited ot anticipated:

¢ Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:
v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:

Existing and proposed on-site potable wafer wells

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or privale), what is the maximum pumping capacity: »5 gallong/minute.
d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? B Yes[No
If Yes:

i Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: 15661 gallons/day

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and
approximate volumes or proportions of each):
Sanitary wastewater

fii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? OYes/No
If Yes:
e  Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:
s Name of district:

o  Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? dyesi_INo
e Is the project site in the existing district? OYes[INo
s Is expansion of the district needed? Oves[ONo

Page 5 of 13



» Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? OYes[No

e Wil a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? Oves[No
If Yes:

¢ Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

iv. Will a new wastewater {sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? OyesANo
If Yes:
¢  Applicant/sponsor for new district:
s Date application submitted or anticipated:
. What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge”?
v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurtace disposal plans):
Use of existing and proposed sanitary sewage disposal systems (septic _

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:
Nene propased

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point Aves[Ne
sources (1.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source {i.e. sheet flow) during construction or pest construction?

If Yes:

i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?
125,017 Square feet or _ 2.87 acres (impervious surface) _Note that the main parcel is +/- 142 acres; however, the entire PDD
8,725.068Square feet or _200.3 acres (parcel size) is +/- 200.3 acres
ii. Describe types of new point sources. Construction of new buildings, structures, driveways, and parking areas

ifi. Where will the stormwater runoff be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures. adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
A Full Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be prepared in compliance with Town and NYSDEC requirements; new impervious

surfaces will be conveyed and managed within approved on-site stormwater management facilities

s Ifto surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:

s Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? [dYeskANo
iv. Does the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? B Yes[INo
f. Does the propesed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel OYespANo

combustion te inci t1 eratigns?

If Yes. identi iy _waﬁygicl;% ContrucRan i fe%%%re%ﬁfggsesrﬁsw% & uggtsl%ﬂﬁng the period of construction but only in compliance with
. s _en ify: Town requirements-approved hours of construction cperation . .
i. Mobile sources during project operations {e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant. crushers)

fii. Statiopary sources during operations {e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit,  [JYespANo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?
If Yes:
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet yes[ONo
ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:
. Tons/year (short tons} of Carbon Dioxide (COy)

. Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N,Q)

. Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons {PFCs)

. Tons/year (short tons} of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF)

. Tons/year {short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)
. Tons/year {short tons} of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

Page 6 of 13



h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, IyestANo
landfills, composting facilities)?
If Yes:
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring):

1. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as [IvesANo
quarry or landfill operations?

If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

j. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial FYes{INo
new demand for transportation facilities or services?
If Yes:

i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply):  []Morning A Evening HWeekend
A Randomly between hours of Bpm to  11pm

if. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day and type {(e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

On average +/- 5 daily truck trips are anticipated; the majority of truck trips are made by box trucks, however, tractor trailers do deliver to the site

iii, Parking spaces:  Existing 173 Proposed 471 Net increase/decrease +298

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? Myes[INo
v. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:
Upgrade the existing site driveway intersection with Snake Hill Road and medification/refocation to internal driveways

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within ¥z mile of the proposed site? [JYespANo

vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric A Yes[INo
or other alternative fueled vehicles?

viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing MYes[INo
pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action {for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand Hves[INo
for energy?
If Yes:

i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

TED

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project {(e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local wiility, or
other):
NYSEG cumently supplies electricity to the subject property; this service will be expanded to support the new use

iti. Will the proposed action require 2 new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? OYespANo

1. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply. The applicant will abide by all Town naise regulations during construction

i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:
e Monday - Friday: 7am-sunsel s  Monday - Friday: Tam-11pm
e  Saturday: 7am-12pm : . Saturday: 7am-11pm
s  Sunday: Nene *  Sunday: 7am-11pm
¢ Holidays: None . Holidays: 7am-11pm

Page 7 of 13




m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction, OYesANo
operation, or both?
If yes:
i. Provide details including sources. time of day and duration:
Live theatrical performances will take place within the proposed tent theater and year-round indoor theater; receptions will continue to occur within the

existing banquet hall; a noise study will be conducted to further evaluate noise and to evaluate the anticipated noise compared to ambient noise leveis

ii. Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? OvesNo
Describe:
n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? A Yes[ONe
If yes:

i Describe source(s), location(s}, height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:
Outdoor lighting will be installed for safety and security purposes; a lighting plan will be developed during the site plan approval process

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? OyeskdNo
Describe:
o. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? [JYesANo

If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:

p. Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleumn (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons) A Yes[No
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?
[f Yes:
i. Product(s) to be stored #2 heating oil

ii. Volume(s) _10,560 gal per unit time year (c.g., month, year)
iii. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

Existing on-site buildings are heated with fuel gil; the above volume represents the actual amount used in calendar year 2017

g. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, [] Yes PANo
insecticides} during construction or operation?
If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):
The existing golf course utilizes pesticides as part of ongoing golf course mainienance. As the goif course will be reduced from

18-holes to 9-holes, the use of these products will continue, but will be substantially reduced. The golf course superintendent is a NYS

certified applicator and follows Integrated Pest Management Practices.

. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? ¥ Yes [No

r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal B Yes ONo
of solid waste {excluding hazardous materials)?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste{s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
e  Construction: 0.7 Ibs per capita tons per day (unit of time)
s  Operation : 24 tons per month (unit of time})

if. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
+ Construction: To the extent possible construction materials and demolition material will be recycled

e Operation: _ Glass, tin, plastics and cardboard will be recycled

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
e  Construction: Construction debris will be transported off-site by the contractor to an approved facility

¢  Operation: _ Waste will be transported by a private hauler to an approved waste facility

Page 8 of 13



s. Does the proposed action include construction or medification of a solid waste management facility? [ Yes A No
If Yes:
i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or
other disposal activities):
ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:

. Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
- Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
iii. Tf landfill, anticipated site life: years

t. Will the proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous [JYespNo
waste?

If Yes:
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

iii. Specily amount to be handled or generated tons/month
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents:

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? OvyesCINo
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent 1o a hazardous waste facility:

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a, Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
J Uban [0 Industrial M Commercial Residential (suburban) Rural (non-farm)
Forest [ Agriculture [J Aquatic [0 Other (specify): Existing 18-hols golf course, restaurant, bar and banquet hali
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:
The subject property is currently developed with an 18-hole golf course atong with a restaurant, bar, and banguet hall

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion {Acres +/-)
s Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces 8.26 11.13 +2.87
» Forested 49.97 48.38 -1.59

¢  Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-

agricultural, including abandoned agricultural) 1163 & e

e Agricultural . 0 0
(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.)

e  Surface water features

. 4.03 403 0
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.)
e Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) 1.45 1.45 0
e Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) 0.45 06 -0.39
o Other
Describe: Lawn/porous pavement 66.25 48.6 -17.65

*As all physical improvements are proposed on Tax Lots 60.1-59.2 and 60.-1-59.3 which total +/- 142 acres
Page 9 of 13



c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? Myes[INo
i If Yes: explain: The subject property contains an 18-hole golf course which is open to the public

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed b Yes[INo
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?
If Yes,
i. Identify Facilities:
The Walter Hoving Home is located at 40 Walter Hoving Road in Garrison

¢. Does the project site contain an existing dam? OYestANo
If Yes:
i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
¢ Dam height: feet
¢ Dam length: feet
o Surface area: acres
¢ Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet

ii. Dam'’s existing hazard classification:
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, CIYeshANo
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:
i. Has the facility been formally closed? Oyes[] No

e If yes, cile sources/documentation:

if. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

ifi. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:

2. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin [JyesINo
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?
If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities cccurred:

h. Potential contamination history. Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any [veshA No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?
If Yes:
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site Oyes[INo
Remediation database? Check all that apply:
[ Yes — Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s):
[ Yes — Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s):

[] Neither database

iL. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

iii. Ts the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? O vestINo
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. If yes to (i), (i1} or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

Page 10 of 13



v, Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses? Oves[INo

s [f yes, DEC site ID number:

e Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or casement):

¢  Descrnibe any use limitations:

e  Describe any engincering controls:

«  Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? [TIves[No
¢ Explain: -

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? > feet
b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? [I¥eskANo
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? %
c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Given the property size, the on-site %
soil types vary significantly; see b
constraints map %
d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: >6 feet
e. Drainage status of project sitc soils:p] Well Drained: 89 % of site
Moderately Well Drained: 0 % of site
Poorly Drained 11 % of site
f. Approximate propertion of proposed action site with slopes: 4 0-10%: 38 % of'site
10-15%: 15 % of site
15% or greater: 47 % of site
g- Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? CveskANo

If Yes, describe:

h. Surface water features.

i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, Myes[INo
ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? MYes[INe
If Yes to either { or ii, continue. If No, skip to E.2.1.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, M yes[INo

state or local agency?
iv. For cach identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

e  Streams: Name 862-52.1 Classification B(TS)
® Lakesor Ponds: Name Unnamed on-site pond _ Classification N/A - 4.03 acres
®  Wetlands: Name Federal Waters, Federal Waters, Federal Waters,... Approximate Size 1.45 acres
*  Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC) N/A
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS waler quality-impaired CvyesANo
waterbodies?

[T yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? OYespANo
J. Is the project site in the 100-year Floodplain? Yes[No
k. Is the project site in the 500-year Floodplain? OYespANo
1. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? M Yes[INo
If Yes:

i. Name of aguifer: Principal Aquifer

Page 11 of 13




m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:

whitetail deer grouse red tail hawk
turkey raccoon songbirds
gray squirred crow other typical species __
n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? OyesNo
If Yes:
i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):
ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation: -
iii. Extent of commumity/habitat:
e Currently: ___ acres
e Following completion of project as proposed: __ acres
¢  Gain or loss (indicate + or -): _ acres
0. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as M Yes[INo

endangcred or threatened, or does it contain any arcas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

If Yes:
i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

Northern Long-eared Bat, Bald Eagle

p- Docs the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare. or as a species of OyesNo

special concern?

If Yes:
i. Species and listing:

g. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? Oy esp/INo

If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to JYesp/INo

Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 3047
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number:

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? OYeskINo
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?
ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):
c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National OYesANo
Natural Landmark? ‘
If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark: ] Biological Community [ Geological Feature
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:
d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? OYesk/No

If Yes:
i. CEA name:
if. Basis for designation:
ifi. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13




e. ‘Docs the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous te, a building, archaeological site, or district M vYesCONo
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places?

If Yes:

i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource: MArchaeological Site M Historic Building or District ) _
ii. Name: Eligible property:Brookmeade, Eligible property:South Highland United Methodist Church and Parsonage: Route 9 Corridor Screening

iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:
Methodist church, parsonage and cemetery meet criteria for listing per the NYSSHPO

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for M ves[INo

archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPQ) archasological site inventory?
g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? vespANo
If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):
ii. Basis for identification:

h. Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal. state, or local Myes[ONo
scenic or aesthetic resource?

If Yes:
i. Identify resource: Bear Mountain-Beacon Highway (US Route 9D) and the Appalachian Trail

if, Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.): Scenic Byway and National Scenic Trail, respectively
ifi, Distance between project and resource: __ 1 and 2 miles, respectively miles.

i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers [ YesbANo
Program 6 NYCRR 6667
If Yes:
i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:
ii. 1s the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 6667 OYes[JNo

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them.

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name Jan K. Johannessen, AICP [ate October 22, 2020

Signature Title Principal, Kellard Sessions Consulting

y‘m A %Wm

PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13




EAF Mapper Summary Report

Thursday, October 1, 2020 2:07 PM

%
: & [
= 3 i
P (™
[ ]
: %
3
g
'.é'
Q
S
v,
2
=
E-’a q‘-'_
&l‘ .“'
- N

3 amehe

Lannin, USGS, inkermap INCREMENTP, MRCany

b 4
Ji*)apan, METI, Esti China {Hang Kong, Esri
Karea, Esri (Thailand, MGCC, (g OpenStreathiap contri butc'nrs,. angt the GiS User Comm urity

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental
assessment form (EAF). Mot all questions asked in the EAF are
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order
to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a
substitule for agency determinations.

nmtmi_ cﬂ‘[uﬁtunl r{

AN SRTLE

"

'f‘.i;.._. 1

; . ke ' g r
\ Tepomla - ) .‘,ir
Lk iy Y +

Bﬁ%@} gRochesier

. ” i Pras st
A FDL" o . - ‘ A e
L Clevdmd ’ N

} Fotnzeliinia ~ -
oPitabwgh - "

Emé?'?’ﬂ'ﬁﬁ

*u,
-
J

[

: _Bhiladelphja .
RCan, Esri Japan. METIEsn Chuna (Hong Kongi - Esri

stﬁp@ﬁmsﬁ?%%_pE@r:‘rfﬁby;g;iﬁ%#e GlS User Comm unity

B.i.i [Coastal or Waterfront Area]
B.i.ii [Local Waterfront Revitalization Area]
C.2.b. [Special Planning District)

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site -
Potential Contamination History]

E.1.h.i {DEC Spills or Remediation Site -
Listed]

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site -
Environmental Site Remediation Database]

E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000' of DEC Remediation
Site]

E.2.g [Unigue Geologic Features]
E.2.h.i [Surface Water Features]

E.2.h.ii [Surface Water Features]
E.2.h.iii [Surface Water Features]

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Stream
Name]

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Stream
Classification]

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Wetlands
Name]

E.2.h.v [Impaired Water Bodies]
E.2.i. [Floodway]

E.2,j. [100 Year Floodptain]
E.2.k. [500 Year Floodpiain]

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report

Yes
No

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbaok.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

No

No
Yes
Yes

Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and
waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

862-52.1

B(TS)
Federal Waters

No
No
Yes
No



E.2.1. [Aguifers] Yes

E.2.l. [Aquifer Names) Principal Aquifer

E.2.n. '[Natural Communities] No

E.2.0. [Endéngéred or Threatened Species] Yes

E.2.0. [Endangered or Threatened Species - Northern Long-eared Bat, Bald Eagle

Name] )

E.2.p. {Rare Plants or Animals] No

E.3.a. [Agricultural District] No

E.3.c. [National Natural Landmark] No

E.3.d [Critical Envircnmental Area] No

E.3.e. [National or State Register of Historic  Yes - Digital mapping data for archaeological site boundaries are not
Places or State Eligible Sites) available. Refer to EAF Workbook.

E.3.e.ii [National or State Register of Historic Eligible property:Brookmeade, Eligible property:South Highland United
Places or Sta‘_ce Eligible Site_s - Name] Methodist Church and Parsonage

E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] Yes

E.3.i. [Designated River Corridor] No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



PART 2 OF THE FULL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM (EAF)

KRELIARID
SESSIONS




Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could
be affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency's reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that
can be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question. When Part 2 is completed, the
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmenta) areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding

with this assessment.

Tips for completing Part 2:
* Review all of the information provided in Part 1.

s  Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.

s  Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.

* Ifyou answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
e If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.

*  Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.

»  Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency

checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
*  The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.

*  If you are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general

question and consult the workbook.

*  When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the “whole action”.
¢  Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
* __ Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

1. Impact on Land

Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of, CINo MIYES
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1)
If “Yes", answer questions a -j. If “No”’, mave on to Section 2.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s} impact impact may
may occur eccur
a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is E2d &
less than 3 feet.
b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f
c. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or E2a O
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.
d. The proposed action may invelve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons | D2a O
of natural material.
¢. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year Dle O
or in multiple phases,
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2q ]
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).
g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. Bli O
h. Other impacts: O O
Page 1 of 10 RESET FORM




2. Impact on Geological Features
The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit

access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes, INO [JYES
minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.g)
If “Yes ", answer questions a - c¢. If “No ", move on to Section 3.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may eccur occur
a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: E2g o o
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c O o
registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature:
¢. Other impacts: m] a
3. TImpacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water (Ono YES
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - L. If “No ", move on to Section 4.
Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, D1h 7| ]
b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a | D2P 0
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.
¢. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a 7| |
from a wetland or water body.
d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or E2h O (%]
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.
e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, | D2a, D2h & O
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.
f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2c "} O
of water from surface water.
g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge | D2d 7| 0
of wastewater to surface water(s).
h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e O
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies.
i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or E2h O
downstream of the site of the proposed action.
i- The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, E2h O
around any water body.
k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, Dla, D2d O "%
wastcwater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10

RESET FORM




L. Other impacts: ] |l
4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or DNO YES
may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.
(See Part 1.D.2.a, D.2.¢c,D.2.d,D.2.p,D.2.q, D.2.t)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No ", move on to Section 5.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand | D2¢ O
on supplies from existing water supply wells.
b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c | |
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source:
¢. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and | Dla, D2¢ Il
Sewer Services.
d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E21
¢. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | D2¢, E1f, O
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated. Elg, Elh
f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E2I 74| O
over ground water or an aquifer.
g. The proposed action may invoive the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, 7| O
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources. E2l, D2c
h. Other impacts: O O
5. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding. ViNO 1vYEs
(See Part 1. E.2)
If "Yes” answer questions a - g. If “No", move on to Section 6.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i ] a
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j u] O
c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k o u]
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, D2e a m
patterns.
¢. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding, D2b, E2i, o o
E2j, B2k
f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair, | Ele o o
or upgrade?

Page 3 of 10

RESET FORM




g. Other impacts: o -
6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. NO DYES
(See Part 1. D.2.f, D,2,h, D.2.g)
If “Yes ", answer questions a - f. If “No ", move on to Section 7.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:
i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO,) D2g o m}
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide {(N,0O} D2g O O
1ii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perflucrocarbons (PFCs) D2g d =
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SF;) D2g g g
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of D2g
hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h o d
b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g o o
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants,
c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions D2f, D2g o u]
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 lbs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU's per hour.
d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”, D2g o O
above,
e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1 | D2s O O
ton of refuse per hour.
f. Other impacts: o O
7. Impact on Plants and Animals
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.) [nNo M YES
If “Yes”, answer questions a -j. If “No", move on to Section 8.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur occur
a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E2o 7] O
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
govemnment, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site,
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by EZo 7| 0
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.
¢. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any | E2p %] a
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p 7] O
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10

RESET FORM




¢. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural E3¢ 73] |
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.
f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any E2n i O
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source:
g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or
S . . . . - E2m %} (]
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.
h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest, Elb (%) O
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | D2g %] (|
herbicides or pesticides.
j. Other impacts: O O
8. Impact on Agricultural Resources
The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.) NO I:]YES
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, move on to Section 9.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may eccur oceur
a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the E2c, E3b o o
NYS Land Classification System.
b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land Ela, Elb o o
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).
c. The propesed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b m] |
active agricultural land.
d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a O O
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.
e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land Ela, Elb o ]
management systern.
f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased developrnent C2c, C3, o 0
potential or pressure on farmland. D2¢, D2d
g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland C2c o O
Protection Plan.
h. Other impacts: 0 0
Page 5 of 10 RESET FORM




9. [Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.1.a, E.1.b, E.3.h.)
If “Yes ", answer questions a - g. If “No ", go to Section 10.

o

WIYES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state. or local | E3h O 7|
scenic or aesthetic resource.
b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b % O
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.
¢. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) O i
ii. Year round O (%]
d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h
action is: E2q
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work ’ O 7]
i1. Recreational or tourism based activities Elc O 7]
¢. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h 7 (|
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.
f. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed Dila, Ela, 7| O
project: DIf, Dig
0-1/2 mile
Y -3 mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile
g. Other impacts: O O

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological
resource. (Part 1. E3.¢, f and g.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 11.

[ Ino

[v]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur gccur

a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3e O A

to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on or has been

nominated by the NYS Board of Historic Preservation for inclusion on the State or

National Register of Historic Places.
b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3f O v

to, an arca designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic

Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.
c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3g %] O

to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.

Source:

Page 6 of 10

RESET FORM




d.

Other impacis:

e. [fany of the above (a-d) are apswered wyeg™, continue with the following questions
to help support conclusions in Part 3:

i. The proposed action may result in the destruction of alteration of all of part
of the site oF property.

ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or
integrity-

iii. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which
are out of character with the site or property, of may alter its setting.

11. Impacton Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities ora NO DYES

reduction of an opent gpace Tesource as designated 1 any adopted

municipal open space plan.

(See Part 1. Cc2cElc, E.2.9.)

“Yes'', answer questions a - €.

0 to Section 12.

r &

If “No”

Relevant Moderate
Part1 to large
Question(s) impact may

a. The ptoposed action may result in an irppairment of natural functions, OF “ecosystem
services’s provided by an undevetoped are, including but not limited to stormwater
storage, nutrient cyeling, wildlife habitat.

b. The proposed action may result in the loss of 2 current or future recreational TeSOUICE:

¢. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational Tesouwrce in ap area
with few such TESOUrces.

4. The proposed action may result in loss of an arcd now used informally by the
comroupity as an open space resource.

12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within oF adjacentto @ critical
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1.E3.d)

“Yes", answer questions @ - ¢ If “No’,

Moderate
to large

Relevant
part 1
Question(s)

a. The proposed action may resultina reduction in the quantity of the resource 0t

characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

b. The proposed action May result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or
characteristic which was ihe pasis for designation of the CEA.

e

c. Other impacts:

page 7 of 10



13. Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.
(See Part 1. D.2.j)
If “Yes ", answer questions @ - g. If "No”, go to Section 14.

[ Ino

[v]vEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. DZj 7| O
b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or | D2j O
more vehicles.
¢. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j v O
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2;j O
e. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. 02j O
f. Other impacts:The applicant will complete a traffic impact analysis to determine if any O O
improvements to the existing condition are required to mitigate impacts (if any)

14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.

{See Part 1. D.2.k)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No™, go to Section 15.

[wo

[v]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s} impact impact may
may oceur occur

a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k O
b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission | D1 f, O

or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to servea | Dlq, D2k

commercial or industrial use.
¢. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k O
d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square Dig O

feet of building area when completed.
e, Other Impacts:

O

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.

{See Part 1. D.2.m., n,, and 0.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f. If “No", go to Section 16.

[[no

[v]YEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may eccur occur

a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m O
regulation.

b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, E1d [l
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.

¢. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than cne hour per day. D2o (!

Page 8 of 10

RESET FORM




d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n O

e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n, Ela O
area conditions. .

f. Other impacts: d O

16. Impact on Human Health
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure NO DYES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.D.2.q., E.1. d. f. g. and h.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - m. If "No", go to Section 17.

Relevant No,or Moderate
Part] small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
miay cccur occur

a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day Eld o o
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.

b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg,Elh o a

c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | Elg, Elh o o
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.

d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the Elg, Elh O o
property (e.g., casement or deed restriction).

e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place Elg, Elh O o
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.

f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t m] O
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.

g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2q, Elf s O
management facility.

h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of selid or hazardous waste. D2g, E1f o O

i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s ] O
solid waste.

j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | E1f, Elg m] O
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh

k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill Elf Elg =i 0
site to adjacent off site structures.

1. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, Elf, o m]
project site. D2r

m, Other impacts:

Page 9 of 10 RESET FORM




17. Consistency with Community Plans
The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.
(See Part 1. C.1,C.2. and C.3.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If "Ne ", go to Section 18.

[vino

[ ]vEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur occur
a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2,03,Dla o g
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattem(s). Ela Elb
b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village c2 O a
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.
c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2,C2,C3 o C
d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use | C2.C2 o )
plans.
e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3.Dle, o D
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. Dl1d, D1f,
D1d, Elb
f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development C4, D2c, D2d = o
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j
g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or C2a 0 o
commercial development not included in the proposed action)
o O

h. Other:

18. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character.
(See Part 1. C.2,C.3,D.2,E.3)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No", proceed to Part 3.

[v]No

[ Jyes

Relevant Nao, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur occur
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas | E3¢, E3f, E3¢ o o
of historic importance to the community.
b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services {e.g. C4 B -
schools, police and fire)
¢. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where | C2, C3, DIf o o
there is a shortage of such housing. Dlg, Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized | C2, E3 | O
or designated public resources.
e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 G |
character.
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. €2,C3 D o
Ela, Elb
E2g, E2h
= a

g. Other impacts:

PRINT FULL FORM

Page 10 of 10

RESET FULL FORM




APPENDIX A

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

KELLARD
SESSIONS




™
N
2000 Q 1000 2000 4000
1" = 2000 e

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

: GARRISON GOLF CLUB AND HUDSON VALLEY
SHAKESPEARE FESTIVAL

=
OCTOBER 2020
TOWN QF PHILIPSTOWN
PUTNAM COUNTY, NEW YORK




APPENDIX B

ON-SITE SOIL TABLE

KELLARD
SESSIONS




ON-SITE SOIL TABLE
Soil Hydrologic . Area Percent
Type Siil Gro!t]lp Soijems (acres) of site
ChB B CHARLTON loam , 2-8%, slopes 0.2 0.00135831
ChC B CHARLTON loam, 8-15% slopes 0.8 0.6%
ChD B CHARLTON loam, 15-25% slopes 5.9 4.2%
ChE B CHARLTON loam, 25-35% slopes 5.5 3.9%
CIC B CHARLTON loam, 8-15% slopes, very stony 1.2 0.9%
CID B CHARLTON loam, 15-25% slopes, very stony 4.8 3.4%
CIF B CHARLTON loam 35-45% slopes, very stony 4.6 3.3%
CsD B CHATFIELD-HOLLIS complex, hilly, very rocky 0.9 0.6%
Fr B/D FREDON slit loam 0.8 0.6%
HnB A HINCKLEY gravelly loamy sand, 3-8% slopes 3.5 2.5%
HnC A HINCKLEY gravelly loamy sand, 8-15% slopes 1.5 1.0%
HnD A HINCKLEY gravelly loamy sand, 15-25% slopes 29 2.1%
PnB C PAXTON fine sandy loam, 2-8% slopes 24.8 17.4%
PnC C PAXTON fine sandy loam, 8-15% slopes 9.8 6.9%
PnD (05 PAXTON fine sandy loam, 15-25% slopes 37.2 26.2%
Pt - Pits, gravel 1.9 1.3%
RhA A RIVERHEAD loam, 0-3% slopes 3.5 2.5%
RhB A RIVERHEAD loam, 3-8% slopes 3.3 2.3%
RhD A RIVERHEAD loam, 15-25% slopes 3.0 21%
RhE A RIVERHEAD loam, 25-50% siopes 3.1 2.2%
Sh C/D SUN loam 0.9 0.6%
Ub B UDORTHENTS smoothed 1.3 0.9%
Uc A/D UDORTHENTS wet substratum 6.1 4.3%
Uf Ungrouped |URBAN LAND 4.7 3.3%
WdB C/D WOODBRIDGE loam 3-8% 4.9 3.4%
WdC C/D WOODBRIDGE loam 8-15% 1.3 0.9%
W - WATER 3.6 2.5%
TOTALS 142.0 100.0%
Notes:

The above table includes portions of the overall PDD on which land distruabce is proposed, specifically Tax
Lot 60.-1-59.2 and 60.-1-59.3.
Source: USDA Soils Survey for Westchester & Putnam Counties, NY




APPENDIX C
GARRISON GOLF CLUB PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

2005 SEQRA FINDINGS STATEMENT COMPARISON TABLE




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

GARRISON GOLF CLUB PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
2005 SEQRA FINDINGS STATEMENT COMPARISON TABLE
{Note that the below sections and order follow that contained within the 2005 Findings Statement)

1.0

Introduction

2005 Findings Statement

2020 Proposed Action

Introduction

The Proposed Action is for the amendment of a
Planned Development District (PDD} for
improvements to the Garrison Golf Club located
in Garrison, New York, Putnam County. The
Applicant, Garrison Properties, LLC., requests
that the Town of Philipstown designate
approximately 200 acres, which includes the
Garrison Golf Course, as a PDD pursuant to
Chapter 175, Article Xli of the Philipstown Code.

The proposed site is in a R-80 zone, which is a
Single-Family Residence District requiring
80,000 sgquare feet per dwelling unit. The
Garrison Golf Club’s current operation is an
allowable use in the R-80 Zoning District
dependent on obtaining a Special Use Permit
from the Zoning Board of Appeals. The
proposed site design includes improvements
such as catering/meeting facilities and lodging
which are not permissible uses in a R-80 Zone.
To complete the proposed improvements, the
Applicant applied for a Planned Development
District under the Town Code, Section 175,
Article XII.

The Proposed Planned Development District
{PDD} is located on 200.3 acres of the 298.5
acres owned primarily by Garrison Properties,
LLC. Vestry of St. Philips Church owns 0.406
acres of the 200.3 acres and public roads occupy
1.166 acres of the proposed PDD. The remaining
land of Garrison Properties, LLC, which is
approximately 98 acres, is not included in the
PDD or the Proposed Project for it is separated
from the included lands by public roads, lands
of the City of New York, and other private lands.

The proposed PDD is designed to permit the
following actions on the Garrison Golf Club site:

Introduction

In addition to the uses already permitted in the
GGCPDD/RC, the uses for the Hudson Vailey
Shakespeare Festival's {HVSF) new home and the
repurposing of the existing golf operations are
requested to be added to the GGCPDD and RC
District. HVSF will also be asking that the Core
Area referenced in the GGCPDD Findings
Statement be deleted or, in the alternative, be
expanded to include the entirety of the Gifted
Area.

HVSF's long-term plan, which is proposed to be
completed in two {2) phases, includes:

= The installation of a permanent theater
tent for approximately 530 patrons, with
accompanying front- and back-of-house
facilities;

= Construction of an indoor theater with
seating for approximately 225 patrons,
along with rehearsal space;

= Continuation of the
restaurant/event use;

* Implementation of the already approved
hotel use;

= Artist housing;

= An outdoor pavilion available for both
HVSF use and community events;

u  Box office and welcome center;

=  Picnic lawns;

»  Gardens;

=  Production and rehearsal facilities;

= Administrative headquarters;

= Additional parking spaces for
shuttle vans and buses;

= [mprovements to the Snake Hill Road
driveway and associated on-site
bridge/culvert;

existing

cars,

Page 1 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

i a golf club, a
destination restaurant, an inn with up to 40
rooms, a spa with associated retail sales, and
two single family dwellings.

The Applicant has set most of the proposed
improvements for the Club to occur in an 11-
acre “Core Area” of the site. The boundaries of

hanguet/meeting fa{ﬂ-.t:,f a|

this area are located in the central portion 0f|

the site, south of Philipse Brook Road.

The Applicant prepared a Draft Environmental
Impact Statement (DEIS) pursuant to the
requirements of 6 NYCRR Part 617, the New
York State Environmental Quality Review Act
(SEQRA). The proposal was designed to provide
a study of the environmental impacts of a

Planned Development District (PDD) that would |

permit improvements on the Garrison Golf Club
site, which are not currently permitted by the
existing zoning. The subjects discussed in the
DEIS were required as part of the Final Scoping
Document that was adopted by the Philipstown
Town Board on January 24, 2001. Following
review and comment by the lead agency and
the public, the DEIS was accepted as complete
on December 29, 2004. A Public Hearing for the
proposed PDD and the DEIS was held on March
7, 2005. The FEIS for the project was accepted
by the lead agency on August 29, 2005.

The property would be serviced by the following
utilities: public utilities, electric, telephone, and
cable. There are on-site wells for water supply
and Subsurface sewage treatment will occur
on-site. When completed and fully operational,

| the maximum total water demand on the
proposed site will be 37,672 gallons per day
(GPO). Previous well tests concluded that the
onsite wells can fulfil the anticipated water
demand; but the proposed plan includes on-site
water storage. According to completed soils
investigation, there is sufficient room on the
site to hold and treat the sewage effluent.

The proposed amendment to the Planned

| Development District, which will occur in the

October 2020

= Reconfiguration of internal driveways:

The proposed action also includes a 4-lot
subdivision to allow the conveyance of land and
tosperate uses, as follows:

Lot 1 — £26.0 acres — Challenge Parcel
= lot2-—153.1acres~ HVSF

Lot 3 — +£26.7 acres — Private Residence
* lot4-136.2 acres — Garrison Golf Club

The Garrison Golf Club is proposed to be reduced
in size from 18 to 9-holes and the propesed
action includes the relocation of the golf pro-
=huap, cart barn, and golf course parking.

Page 2 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020
“Core Area” of the proposed site, will have the
following features:
= A Golf Club with 18 holes {only a small
part is of it is within the Core Area,
namely the 1st & 10th tees and the 9th
and 18 holes} and appurtenances
including a driving range, practice
green, shower, and locker rooms;
= A banquet facility for 232 persons;
= A 72-seat restaurant;
= A 25-seat bar;
=  Ahealth spa and related facilities for
20 clients;
= 36 overnight guest rooms;
= Offices for operation of the facility;
= Maintenance buildings and yard and
a new cart barn;
= Parking for 211 cars;
The following features will occur outside the
“Core Area” of the proposed site:
= 4 new overnight guest rooms in the
existing Manager's Quarters;
®  Parking for 130 cars in a remote parking
area near the Maintenance Areg;
2.0 Description of Action
2005 Findings Statement 2020 Proposed Action
2.1 | Site Access Site Access

The Garrison Golf Club’s main entrance is
located north of the Travis Corners Road
intersection with U.S. Route 9. A second public
access road is located on Snake Hill Road
approximately 500 feet west of U.S. Route 9,
For Secondary/Emergency access into the Golf
Club, an access is located on Philipse Brook
Road, at the northwesterly corner of the main
parcel,

The applicant proposed to maintain the existing
access points off U.S. Route 9 and Snake Hill Road.
The proposed action will include improvements
to the Snake Hill Road driveway intersection
along with the repair or repiacement of the
existing on-site bridge as it is in poor condition
and will need to be upgraded for the intended
use. There are three (3} access points along Snake
Hill Road; the two (2} that cross the Catskill
Agqueduct in the vicinity of the golf club
maintenance facility were not mentioned in the
2005 Findings Statement; however, the southern
drive will be improved to serve the relocated golf
pro shop, cart barn, and associated parking.

Page 3 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

2.2

Site Layout

The Proposed Planned Development District is
located on 200.3 acres of 298.5 owned primarily
by Garrison Properties, LLC. As mentioned in the
introduction, the land involved with the
proposed development is partially owned by
the Vestry of St. Philips Church (0.4606 acres)
and utilized as public roadways (1.66 acres).
The parcel owned by the Vestry of St. Philips
contains a private cemetery and the grave of
Laura Spencer Porter Pope. The land was
conveyed to the Vestry in order to maintain the
grave and the applicant’s plans and use of the
property are designed to respect those rights.
The proposed PDD provides for the continued
use of St. Philip’s land as a private cemetery and
no other use.

The following parcels included in the Proposed
PDD and are the subject of the Environmental
Impact Statement are:

60.-1-539.2 124,912 acres  Garrison Properties LLC
60.-1-59.3 17.131 acres Garrison Properties LLC
60.-1-63 1.228 acres Garrison Properties LLC
60.-1-69 8.866 acres Gartison Properties LLC
60.-1-70 0.103 acres Garrison Properties LLC
60.-2-26.71 29.782 acres Garrison Properties LLC
60.-2-27 0.406 acres St. Philips Church
60.-2-29.1 7.027 acres Garrison Properties LLC
60.-2-29.2 9.669 acres Garrison Preperties LLC
Public Roads  1.166 acres Public Roads

The proposed improvements are limited in size,
scale, and location.

Site Layout

The site layout will remain essentially the same
and will largely be within the subdivided 53 +/-
acre Gifted Area. While the size and scale of
development within the Gifted Area is larger than
presently found, the development will be well
positioned and toterated within the Gifted Area
and will not present a feeling that the location
has been overwhelmed by size and scale of
developmen.

When the amendments to the GGCPDD and RC
District and all other relevant approvals are
granted, Phase 1 of the project wili begin
immediately and is expected to be complete by
2024; it is expected that Phase 2 will be
completed by December of 2031. Please refer to
the submitted phasing plans for further
information.

Page 4 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

2.3

Construction

After the amendment of the PDD, and approval
of the PDD and issuance of all required permits,
the construction of the proposed plan is to
commence and continue for an 18-month
period.

No mere than five acres of un-stabilized
disturbance to the site will accur at any given
time and the phases of construction will not
occur concurrently but are not sequential.

The Drainage Report and Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the proposed plan
includes a detailed Eresion Control Plan: The
SWPPP was designed to current NYSDEC
guidelines and includes the implementation of
Best Management Practices throughout
canstruction. The  Project Site  Plan
improvements include the construction of a
closed drainage system ending in a detention
basin to control storm water and eliminate
uncontrolled runoff, which has previously
damaged the wooded areas north of the
existing clubhouse.

The proposed construction will utilize the
following excavation and grading equipment:
trucks, excavators, backhoes, and bulldozers.
This equipment will be stored on-site during the
construction process. The equipment that is
owned by the Club is to be housed at the
maintenance area. Other materials and
equipment will be stored at the staging area of
the proposed site ¢construction. This area is to
be located on approximately half of the existing
main parking lot. The remote parking area will
be wused for additional parking during
construction as needed. The proposed
construction activities shall not cause ¢losures
or decreased operations at the site.

Construction

When the amendments to the GGCPDD and RC
District and all other relevant approvals are
granted, Phase 1 of the project will begin
immediately and is expected to be complete by
2024; it is expected that Phase 2 will be
completed by December of 2031. Please refer to
the submitted phasing pians for further
information.

Additionally, depending on the status of the
approvals requested in these applications, a
“Special Event” approval for HVSF's 2022 and
2023 seasons will be necessitated and applied
for.

The remainder of the statements set forth in the
2005 Findings Statement column will remain the
same as the same will be set forth in the
forthcoming Stormwater Poliution Prevention
Plan (SWPPP) that will be prepared for the
project,

Page 5 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

Operation

The following lists the operations of the
improved Garrison Golf Club and its amenities:

= The Club will be operated as a small
inn with resort-like amenities, not a
membership club.

= The proposed hotel/inn will be open
365 days a year and will function 24
hours a day.

= Golf Season:

o Rounds begin at 7am and end
at dusk.

o Between 60 and 80 golf rounds
are expected during the week
and 80 to 100 rounds during
the weekends.

o No tournaments will be
scheduled but special events
can include golf outings limited
to 80 persons.

= Spa will be open seven days a week
from 6am to 6pm.

* 19" Hole restaurant will serve light
lunches and “bar trade” as well as
served breakfast to overnight guests,

®* Main building restaurant will serve
lunch {25 meals during the week and 60
meals during weekend hours} and
dinner (25 to 30 during the week and 80
toc 100 on weekends) to golfers,
overnight guests, and diners.

= Restaurant-and-bar business is
estimated to end at approximately 10
PM. “Hours and days of operation will
be adjusted depending upon demand.”

= Bangquet facilities will be available year-
round but the majority of events are
expected to be scheduled during
weekend hours.

® About 80 banquets are estimated
annuaily.

» Facilities can accommodate 232
persons but events are expected to

Operation

In addition to the operations described in the
2005 SEQRA Findings Statement and as set forth
in the materials submitted by the applicant, HVSF
plans and hopes to not just replicate the
experience its patrons have enjoyed at Boscobel,
instead, it seeks to enhance the open air theater
performances with welcoming picnic lawns with
majestic views, create better box office and
concession access and services and, eventually,
with the indoor theater, provide an artistic,
educational and cultural experience the

community can avail itself of and enjoy all year |

round.

The Garrison Golf Club is in operation from mid-
April through December, has been experiencing a
reduction in participation (current average is
16,000 rounds/year down from 26,000
round/year in 2001). The club has a current
parking capacity of 155 vehicles and expects its
future production to be reduced to between
7,500 — 8,000 rounds/year when the course is
converted to 9-holes.

Page 6 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

have approximately 140 guests.

* Ewering banguet events are to end
between 11pm and midnight.

*=  Winter operations will be reduced for
the golf course when it will be ciosed,
and maintenance needs will be less
demanding.

Approval from the Town Board must occur for

| special events at the Garrison Golf Club on a

case-by-case basis {i.e. music festivals).

October 2020

Maintenance

Full- and part-time staff dedicated to
maintaining the buildings and grounds of the
site will complete most of the site maintenance.
Golf carts are rented on an annual basis and will
be removed for maintenance during off-season
and returned at the beginning of the golf
season. In the future, it is planned that electric
golf carts will be utilized at the proposed site.
Routine maintenance of equipment housed by
maintenance staff will continue to be carried
out by staff in the present maintenance
building.

On-site  maintenance includes mowing,
gardening, plowing, road and cart path repair
and sprinkler system maintenance.
Bioretention areas will be maintained as
required by the permit. Typical maintenance
and repairs will not significantly increase from
the proposed action. Major repairs will be
contracted out to local contractors’ or dealers’
repair personnel,

Maintenance

The same and even greater level of maintenance
will be provided by the owners given it shared
maintenance staff. Both the theater going
patrons and golf customers will expect that the
total experience will be one that will be pleasing
i all respects, starting with the appearance and
malntenance of all aspects of the property.

Page 7 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020
3.0 Approvals
2005 Findings Statement 2020 Proposed Action
Approvals Approvals

The Applicant is requesting amendment of the
Planned Development District pursuant to
Town Code Sections 175-61.

Town of Philipstown
= Town Board - Completion of SEQR
= Planning Board - Subdivision/Site Plan
=  Approval, Town Freshwater Wetland
Permit

Putnam County
= Planning Board — Referral
= Department of Health-Approval of
Sanitary and Water Supply Facilities

New York State
= Department of Environmental
Conservation (NYSDEC)-Stream
Disturbance Permit

It is expected that the proposed action, will
require various approvals from a variety of
agencies, including:

Town of Philipstown

= Town Board - Zoning Amendment

=  Planning Board - Subdivision, Site Plan,
and Special Use Permit

= Town of Philipstown Conservation Board
— Wetland Permit

=  Town of  Philipstown Building
Department - Building Permit/SWPPP

Putnam County
= Department of Health

Subdivision; water; sewage)

= Department of Highways and Facilities-
Highway Work Permit

=  Planning Board - Referral

{Realty

New York City
= New York City Department of

Environmental Protection — Aqueduct
Crossing Review

New York State
= New York State Department of
Transportation (NYSDOT) — Highway
Work Permit
= New York State Department of
Environmental Conservation {SPDES
Genera| Permit for  Stormwater

Discharges)

Page 8 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020
4.0 Statement of Facts and Basis for Conclusions
2005 Findings Statement 2020 Proposed Action
4.1 | Geology Impacts and Mitigation Geology Impacts and Mitigation
The improvements of the Garrison Golf Club | No impact on Geology is anticipated at this time;
and its amenities will require limited cuts and | no mitigation is needed.
fills. The blasting of rock or rock removal is not
anticipated to occur.
The bedrock of the “Core Area” is greater than
60 inches, except the portion of the Urban Land
soil classification where the bedrock depth is
greater than 10 inches. Overall, because of the
bedrock  characteristics, the proposed
construction will not create an impact to the
subsurface geology. No mitigation needed.
4.1 | Soils Impacts Soils Impacts
As noted in the DEIS, the soil limitations range | No change in this requirement anticipated or
from slight to severe as same may impact required.
construction activities. Therefore, the specific
characteristics and development capacities of
the soils and subsurface material must be
identified on-site before construction activities
commence.
4.1 | Sewage Handling Impacts Sewage Handing Impacts

According to the DEIS, there are four septic
systems known to be located on the site. These
systems service the following: the main
building, the Manager's Quarters, the
maintenance area, and the restrooms
constructed in the vicinity of the 6" Tee. The
present system servicing the main building has
indicated signs of failure and, for this reason,
the Applicant has installed a new septic system
along the 1% fairway under a septic repair
permit. The new system is currently in use but
will not be hooked to the additional lodging
propased until the water supply system is
updated,

It is anticipated that upon completion of all
phases {by December 2031), that the entire
facility, including the 9-hole golf club, will
generate +15,611 gallons per day (gpd). As this
represents an increase from what was originally
anticipated and approved in 2005, additional on-
site wastewater treatment facilities will likely be
required.

Page 9 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

The Applicant plans to utilize the two systems
at the maintenance building and near the 6%
Tee. The existing septic system located at the
Manager's Quarters will be monitored and
replaced as needed. The approximate
treatment capability of the newly designed
system for the main building is 12,800 GPQ of
sewage effluent.

The site is expected to generate 12,672 GPQ of
sanitary waste. This figure includes overnight
occupancy.

4.1

Soils Mitigation

Soil erosion and sediment control measures,
both temporary and permanent measures, will
be supplied to reduce impacts to minimize to
surrounding land and waterbodies. As quoted
in the DEIS, the mitigation measures are as
follows:

= All exposed soils will be mulched and
seeded immediately upon completion
of construction activities. By minimizing
the period during which soils are
exposed, the potential for erosion will
be reduced.

®  Apgravel subbase bedding will be placed
on internal roads and parking areas as
soon as practicabie to prevent dust and
erosion.

= Utilization of temporary erosion control
devices such as silt fence and inlet
protection devices, as well as
permanent measures such as the
stormwater pond and other design
elements of the stormwater
management system will assure that
sediment does not enter wetlands and
brooks.

= TJemporary sedimentation basins will
be constructed to collect and retain
stormwater runoff.

*  Silt fences along the toe of slopes at the

Soils Mitigation

The same temporary and permanent soil erosion |
and sediment control measures, as were |
employed in 2005, will be applied to minimize
impacts to surrounding land and waterbodies. An
updated SWPPP will be developed to address the
proposed action. The updated SWPPP will also
incorporate appropriate changes from the 2005
regulations presently contained in New York
State Standards and Specifications for Erosion
and Sediment Control (Blue Book), July 2016, and
the New York State Stormwater Management
Design Manual, January 2015,

= Al exposed soiis will be muiched and
seeded immediately upon completion of
construction activities. By minimizing the
period during which soils are exposed,
the potential for erosion will be reduced.

= A gravel subbase bedding will be pfaced
on internal roads and parking areas as
soon as practicable to prevent dust and
erosion.

= Utilization of temporary erosion control
devices such as silt fence and inlet
protection devices, as well as permanent
measures such as the stormwater pond
and other design elements of the
stormwater management system will
assure that sediment does not enter
wetlands and brooks

Page 10 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

perimeter of the construction areas and
around soil stockpiles will be installed.
To minimize the potential for erosion
during and after construction, an
Erosion Control Plan has been prepared
as required by the State Pollution
Discharge Elimination System {SPDES)
General Permit. The Plan was prepared
in accordance with New York State
Guidelines for Urban FErosion and
Sediment Control and is included as
part of the Stormwater Poliution
Prevention Plan included in Appendix B.
To further limit the potential for
erosion, improvements to the site will
take place in a sequenced approach,
minimizing the amount of soil exposed
at any one time.

Non-construction areas on the site will
be disturbed only minimaily, if at ail. All
graded areas not utilized in the long-
term for buildings or pavement will be
permanently seeded and landscaped.
Topsoil stockpiled during construction
will be wused for pgrass surface
restoration and landscaping areas.

Any grading or excavation that may need to be
performed will not present any significant
erosion problems.

Temporary sedimentation basins will be
constructed to collect and retain
stormwater runoff.

Silt fencing along the top of slopes at the
perimeter of the construction areas and
around soil stockpiles will be installed.
To minimize the potential for erosion
during and after construction, an Erosion
Control Plan will be prepared as required
by the State Pollution Discharge
Elimination System (SPDES) General
Permit. The Plan will be prepared in
accordance with New York State
Guidelines for Urban Erosion and
Sediment Controi.

To further limit the potential for erosion,
improvements to the site will take place
in a sequenced approach, minimizing the
amount of soil exposed at any one time.
Non-construction areas on the site will
be disturbed only minimally, if at all. All
graded areas not utilized in the long-term
for buildings or pavement will be
permanently seeded and landscaped.
Topsoil stockpiled during construction
will be used for grass surface restoration
and landscaping areas,

Any grading and excavation that may
need to be performed will be preceded
by the installation of appropriate erosion
and sediment control measures. A
Notice of Intent will be filed along with
the SWPPP, as required During
construction, regular inspections will be
conducted as required, and following
construction the ground will be stabilized
and any permanent erosion control
measures will be installed.

4.1

Sewage Mitigation

Sewage Mitigation

The new system designed for the main building | All systems will be designed to handle all sewage
was built to handle 12,800 GPO of sewage | effluent in accordance with the current

Page 11 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

effluent and is in compliance with the current
regulations of the Putnam County Department
of Health.

regulations of the Putnam County Department of
Heaith.

4.1

Topography Impacts

Topographical impacts are expected to be
minimal. Cuts and fills are te be limited and
balanced across the site. Balancing will reduce
the need for import or export of soils.

Topography Impacts

While there will be grading and excavation on the
site, the applicant has selected locations for
proposed improvements designed to aveid any
major changes in the topography. The site
engineers will continue their efforts to minimize
the need to import or export soils as they did in
2005

Topography Mitigation

Best Management Practices (BMP’s), which
includes Erosion Control measures, wiil be
utilized throughout the duration of the
proposed construction. The Erosion Control
Plan is designed to minimize the erosion
impacts from construction activities, including
excessive impacts on steep slopes. The Erosion
Plan is therefore a mitigation plan for the
potential impacts of construction to the
topography of the site.

Topography Mitigation

Best Management Practices (BMP’s), which
includes Erosion Control measures, will be
utilized throughout the duration of the proposed
construction. The Erosion Control Plan is
designed to minimize the erosion impacts from
construction activities, including excessive
impacts on steep slopes. The Erosion Plan is
therefore a mitigation plan for the potential
impacts of construction to the topography of the
site. While there will be grading and excavation
on the site, the applicant has selected locations
for proposed improvements designed to avoid
any major changes in the topography. The site
engineers will continue their efforts to minimize
the need to import or export soils as they did in
2005,

4.2

Water Resources Impacts

Based on the Draft and Final EIS, the proposed
improvements for the Garrison Golf Course will
not pose a negative impact on the water
needed for irrigation on site. The completed
improvements at the Golf Club will however
increase the demand for domestic water usage
on site. Even though it is not expected to reduce
the water availability in surrounding areas, the
scenario is possible. The water demands of the
proposed action are not expected to adversely
impact the groundwater.

Water Resources Impacts

The proposed action will decrease the water
needed for irrigation on site because the golf
course is proposed to be reduced from 18 to 9
holes. The water demands of the proposed action
are not expected to adversely impact the
groundwater and there has been no adverse
impact by the irrigation of the 18-hole golf course
since 2005.

It is anticipated that upon completion of all
phases (by December 2031}, that the entire
facility, including the 9-hole golf club, will

Page 12 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

The maximum water consumption per day for
the Proposed Action is 37,672 GPD. The average
daily groundwater recharge is 65,095 GPD,
which is well above the anticipated water
consumption for the Proposed Action.
Recharge data of 46,973 GPD during a 30-year
drought condition was also included in the DEIS
in 2005 to solidify that the water consumption
for the proposed improvements will not cause
a significant impact.

The proposed site drains north towards the
Philipse Broock. A formal drainage system
ending in a detention basin at the outfall to
Philipse Brook was installed under the 2005
approval. It collects and transports stormwater
from existing parking area and around the main
building to the detention basin, where it is
treated before entering Philipse Brook.

Approximate fire flow estimations were not
included in the overall estimated water supply
demand. Currently, a 30,000-gallon
underground storage tank is being utilized for
fire flow water supply and, to service the

sprinkler systems in each building, the
Proposed Plan includes the proposed
installation of &  45,000-gallon  semi-

underground water storage tank.

demand £15,611 gallons of water per day (gpd).
It is anticipated that additional private potable
water wells will be required for several of the
new or relocated uses, including the private
residence,

Approximate fire flow estimations are not
included in the overall estimated water supply
demand. A 30,000-gallon underground storage
tank is available for fire flow water supply and to
service the sprinkler systems in each building, as
well as a 45,000-gallon semi-underground water
storage tank.

Wetlands and Watercourses Impacts

An estimated 13.0 acres on site are to be
disturbed by the proposed improvements on
the Garrison Golf Course. These improvements
are anticipated to increase the impervious
surfaces located on the site, which in turn may
potentially increase stormwater runoff, erosion
and sedimentation. Another result of the
Proposed Action is that the stormwater
drainage pathway will lead into the Philipse
Brook and without a competent system design;
the runoff could damage the Philipse Brook due
to the discharge of sediment from eroded
material into the Brook.

Wetlands and Watercourses Impacts

On-site wetlands and watercourse have been
delineated by Kellard Sessions Consulting and
survey located by Badey & Watson; wetlands
were delineated and mapped in areas of the
property proposed to be disturbed. Direct
disturbance to wetlands and watercourse will be
limited to the repair or replacement of the access
driveway off of Snake Hill Road, as the existing
culvert/bridge is in poor condition. Wetland
buffer disturbance will be fimited to upgrades
associated with the Snake Hill Road access
driveway, the relocation of internal driveways,
the construction of on-site parking, and
improvements to the Snake Hill Road driveway to
serve the relocated golf pro shop.

Page 13 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

Water Resource Mitigation

The mitigation proposed by the Apgplicant for
water resources includes on-site water
treatment and storage. Storage is estimatad at
4,000 gallons for domestic use and will provide
excess water in times of high domestic demand.
The extra 4,000 gallons is in addition to the
30,000- gallon tank currently on site used for
fire flow water and the 45,000-gallon tank
proposed to supply the sprinkler systems
located in each building on site.

The proposed site plan includes a drainage
system for the “Core Area.” The drainage
system includes stormwater treatment through
the use of bio-retention pools or “rain gardens.”
As noted in Section 2.3 Construction and
Maintenance, a  Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) was created by the
Applicant according to NYSDEC guidelines and
submitted. This plan does not include
attenuation of peak runoff however as the
proposed site is in the vicinity of the Hudson
River and the intention of the storm water pian
is to relieve onsite waters downstream before
the peak discharge of the Philipse Brook
watershed reaches the site. The SWPPP is
currently being reviewed by the NYSDEC and
will be implemented upon the Department’s
approval.

The stormwater system is designed to reduce
silt-loaded runoff into the Philipse Brook.
Temporary and non-temporary measures will
be utilized during and after construction to
ensure minimal erosion on the proposed site. A
disturbance within 100 feet of the Philipse
Brook will occur and will include the
disturbance of 13,500 square feet of the stream
buffer. This disturbance is caused by the
installation of a micro-detention pond and an
energy dissipator, which are both vital
necessities in the protection of the Philipse
Brook. The energy dissipater is used to slow the

Water Resource Mitigation

The mitigation approved in 2005 provided for
water resources to include on-site water
treatment and storage. Storage was estimated in
2005 at 4,000 gallons for domestic use and
provided for excess water in times of high
domestic demand. The 4,000 gallons is in
addition to the 45,000- gallon tank currently on
site used for fire flow water and the existing
30,000-gallon tank. There are two easements on
the property that are held by the Garrison Fire
Company. The easements are for dry hydrants
from which the fire company can draw water
through a purnper truck. While the proposed
action is expected to increase the domestic water
demand, given the size of the property, no
adverse impacts are anticipated on the aquifer
and the applicant will comply with all applicable

Putnam County Department of Heaith
requirements.
The existing drainage system includes

stormwater treatment through the use of bio-
retention pools or “rain gardens.” A Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan {SWPPP) will be
prepared and submitted for review.

No disturbance within 100 feet of the Philipse
Brook wilt accur

Page 14 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Vailey Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

stormwater down as it enters the Brook and the
micro detention basin, which is actually
required by the NYSDEC, is used to catch, hold
and treat the stormwater quality volume.

Wetlands and Watercourses Mitigation

The mitigation proposed for this section is
included in the Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan submitted by the Applicant.
The mitigation allows for both permanent and
non-permanent erosicn control measures
during and after the proposed construction. A
closed drainage system is part of the Plan,
which is designed to capture and displace
stormwater runoff in a direction away from the
“Core Area.”

Wetlands and Watercourses Mitigation

The mitigation proposed for this section will be
included in the Stormwater Pollution Prevention
Plan which will be submitted. The mitigation will
allow for both permanent and non-permanent
erosion control measures during and after the
proposed construction. A wetland buffer
mitigation plan will also be prepared and
submitted for review.

4.3

Land Use, Zoning and Public Policy

2005 Findings Statement

2020 Proposed Action

Land Use Impacts

The proposed improvements to the Garrison
Golf Club remain in accordance with the
present usage of the property while continuing
to encourage a rural setting. The Proposed
Action is designed to update the current facility
as well as increase the amenities of the site for
usage by the surrounding community. Open
space and the maintenance of neighborhood
character are highlighted in the design of the
Proposed Plan as well as the increased
economic benefits to the community without
negatively impacting the education system of
the Town or increasing municipal costs to the
Town residents. The Plan will also create new
jobs for the local economy. The layout of the
improved property deters from residential
development and sprawl while increasing the
assessed value of the property from the
proposed commercial development. The
Garrison Golf Club is open to the public and
advocates “community cohesion by providing a
venue that will pull together different segments
of the community.”

Land Use Impacts

The proposed action will remain in accordance
with the present usage of the property along with
the cultural, educational and community benefit
uses envisioned by the proposed amendments,
while continuing to encourage a rural setting. The
proposed amendments are designed to increase
and enhance the amenities of the site for usage
by the surrounding community. Open space and
preservation of neighborhood character are
highlighted in the project design and the project
is expected to result in economic benefits to the
community without significantly negatively
impacting the education system of the Town or
increasing municipal costs to the Town residents.
The proposed amendments will result in the
creation of new jobs for the local economy. The
layout of the improved property deters from
residential development and sprawl. The HVSF
and the Garrison Golf Club will be open to the
public and advocate "community cohesion by
providing a venue that will pull together different
segments and interests of and within the
community.”

Page 15 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

The Proposed Plan is designed being mindful of
the Town's characteristics and design, its
population and future traffic goals. The intent
of this plan is not to negatively impact the site
in regard to noise, light - pollution or
environmental hazards.

The proposed improvements are created to
enhance open space and, for this reason, the
Applicant has proposed limited cuts in second
growth forest and has scheduled no cuts in the
mature growth forest.

Most of the Proposed Action is to be
constructed in the “Core Area” of the site and
since this area is presently disturbed from

development, no significant impacts are
expected from  the proposed site
improvements.

The Proposed Plan is designed being mindful of
the Town’s characteristics and design, its
population, and present and future traffic goals.
The intent of this plan is not to negatively impact
the site regarding noise, light pollution or
environmental hazards.

The proposed improvements are created to
respect and enhance open space and every effort
will be made to be environmentally sensitive and
responsive to every environmental issue raised
during the review process.

New structures are to be constructed in the
Gifted Area and any possible adverse
environmental impacts of significance can be
appropriately mitigated.

Land Use Mitigation

The Proposed Action is structured to maintain
the scenic atmosphere along the public roads
including U.S. Route 9, minus the minimal
exception of the remote parking area located
on Snake Hill Road. The impact of this parking
area will be mitigated by installation of a visual
buffer. Buffers will also be constructed between
the residential and commercial uses on the site.

Land Use Mitigaticn

The development within the Gifted Area is
structured to maintain the scenic atmosphere
along the public roads including U.S. Route 9,
including the relocated golf pro shop and parking
area located on Snake Hill Road. The impact of
this relocation and all other parking areas will be
mitigated by installation of visual buffers. Buffers
will also be constructed between the residential
and commercial uses on the site.

Zoning Impacts

The follow is a list of meodifications to the
current zaning in order to include the PDD area:

Article VI, Schedule A will be modified within
the PDD area as follows:

®  One single residential dwelling unit will
be permitted. It must be located on
that portion of the PDD that lies east of
the Catskill Agqueduct and south of
Philipse Brook Road. Said residential
dwelling unit may be a detached, free
standing unit or it may be incorporated

Zoning Impacts

In addition to the proposed new or expanded
uses as requested, provision must also be made
for additions and expansions to the already
permitted uses in the underlying zoning districts.
The applicant will work earnestly and
collaboratively with the Town Board and Planning
Board and the Town'’s professional consultants to
craft the proposed Local Law to reflect the
amendments that will be presented for a vote at
a public hearing.

Page 16 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

a5 part of another building in which

other approved uses are sited. Single-
family residential uses normally
allowed under Paragraph 1 shall not be
allowed at any cther location within the
PDD.

The “as of right” use of a “customary
home occupation” allowed under
Paragraph 2 will continue to be
permitted in the single residential unit.
Permitted uses under Paragraphs 3, 4,
5, 6, 7, and 11 shall not be permitted
within the PDD, except for vegetabie
and herb gardens used to supply the
approved food service establishments
within the PDD. Special Uses otherwise
available under Paragraphs 8, 8, 12, 13,
15, and 16 shall not be permitted in the
PDD.

Municipal uses as listed in Paragraph 10
will continue to be permitted “as of
right” throughout the PDD.

A Golf Club with appurtenant facilities
such as health and fitness facilities,
swimming pools, tennis courts and
similar fitness related uses will be
permitted under the auspices of the
PDD and without the Special Use Permit
required under Paragraph 14, except
that Golf Club activities either west of
the Catskill Aqueduct or north of
Philipse Brook Road may only be
developed and used far the actual golf
course {tees, fairways, greens, etc.} and
other facilities and appurtenant
features that may be necessary to
facilitate the operation of the golf
course. “Appurtenant facilities” that
may be necessary include such items as
rain shelters, rest rooms, informational
kiosks and similar conveniences for
golfers. This paragraph is not to be
construed to mean that a major facility
such as a maintenance building or
clubhouse may be located in these
areas. This paragraph shall not be
construed to prevent the erection of

Page 17 of 27

October 2020



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival
October 2020

temporary faclities necessary 1o
accommodate the needs of a golf
outing.

*  Major facilities of the PDD, other than
the golf course, must be iocated on the
lands east of the Catskill Aqueduct and
south of Philipse Brook Road. This area
is commonly known as the Main Parcel
or Parcel A of the Garrison Golf Club
lands. Hereinafter, this area will be
referred to as Parcel A. The actual golf
course may also be located on Parcel A.

"  Most of the major facilities and uses
permitted under the auspices of the
PDD, including most of the major golf
club facilities must be located within
the “Core Area.” The “Core Area” is an
area within the PDD and within Parcel
A. The “Core Area” contains 10.670
acres and is shown on the plan set and
is described. in greater detail in Section
X of the application package. The
existing maintenance buildings and
yard are located outside the “Core
Area” and will continue to be utilized.
The Manager’s Cottage, which will be
discussed later in this statement, is

‘ located within Parcel A, but outside the

“Core Area”. Itis an existing residential
unit located on the westerly side of, and

| 600 feet along the present Snake Hill
Road entrance to, Parcel A. ‘

The Golf Club facilities that must be located
within the “Core Area” include the following:

= A 19th Hole Bar and Grill with related
dining and grill facilities.

* A pro shop with day lockers, starter’s
office, bathrooms, and a retail sales
area.

" QOther retail sales facilities normally
associated with other permitted uses
on the site will be permitted under the
auspices of the PDD. To the extent
necessary, Faragraph 17 will be
considered amended to allow the |

Page 18 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival
October 2020

operation of the pro shop and other
related retail sales units within the
“Core Area” of the PDD.

Business offices supporting other uses
permitted on the site will be permitted
under the auspices of the PDD. To the
extent necessary, Paragraph 18 will be

considered amended to allow theI

operation of the business office within
the “Core Area” of the PDD.

A spa will be permitted under the
auspices of the PDD. To the extent
necessary, Paragraph 14 will be
considered amended to allow the
operation of the Spa within the “Core
Area” of the PDD without a Special Use
Permit.

Paragraphs 19, 23A and 24 through 46 ‘

will not change. The uses authorized
under these paragraphs will not be
permitted in the PDD.

The restaurant and banguet

facility will be available forI

business meetings, seminars, and
similar functions. To the extent
necessary, Paragraph 20 will be
considered amended to allow the
facilities within the “Core Area” to
be made available for meetings,
seminars, and similar functions.

Overnight lodging will be
permitted under the auspices of
the PDD. The Manager's Cottage
will be adapted to make 4 rooms

available for overnight guests.I

This use will occur within Parcel A,
but outside the “Core Area”. To
the extent necessary, Paragraph
21 will be considered amended to
allow the operation of the
overnight accommodations in the
Manager's Cottage and within
Parcel A. Overnight lodging will be
limited to a total of 40 rooms
including those located within the

Manager's Cottage. Any rooms, |

Page 19 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

beyond the 4 that will be provided
in the Manager’s Cottage must be
located within the “Core Area”.
Additional rooms located within
the “Core Area” may be located
within a building used for other
permitted uses or may be located
in a freestanding building or
buildings suitable for the use.

2 A grill associated with the golf
course and a destination
restaurant and a banquet facility
will be permitted under the
auspices of the PDD. To the extent
necessary, paragraphs 22 and 23
will be considered amended to
allow the operation of the grill,
restaurant and banguet facility
within the “Core Area” of the PDD.

o A partially buried structure
housing a 45,000-gallon fire
suppression tank and control
room.

Zoning Mitigation

The proposed improvements on the Garrison
Golf Club can only occur in the Town of
Philipstown under the Planned Development
section, Article XII of the Philipstown Code.
According to the DEIS, “the approval of a plan
under the PDD is itseif a mitigation measure
that prevents unwanted variations from the
approved plan.

Zoning Mitigation

The approval of the proposed improvements
within the GGCPDOD and RC Districts will be, as
was set forth in the 2005 DEIS, in “itself a
mitigation measure that prevents unwanted
variations from the approved plan.”

Comprehensive Plan Impacts

As noted in the Proposed Plan, the “Core Area”
has previously been developed. Therefore, in

regards to the Comprehensive Plan, the
proposed improvements will not pose
significant impacts. The Plan is therefore

designed to update the existing Golf Club,
increase local recreational alternatives, and
preserve the natural features of the Town for
residents to enjoy.

Comprehensive Plan Impacts

The proposed amendments are designed to
redesign the existing Golf Club, increase local
cultural, educational and recreational
experiences pleading to positive economic
development as well as the enhancement and
the preservation of the natural features of the
Town for residents to enjoy. The proposed
amendments are faithful to  essential
components of the current Draft Comprehensive
Plan, as the new home of the HVSF will conserve

Page 20 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

the Town's rural, historic character by
encouraging a use that fits the character of the
community and continues to reflect the purpose
and intent of the GGCPDD /RC by avoiding the
large impact on the community that residential
development would have had in the place of the
GGCPDD and for RC in 2005 and is faithful to the
essential objectives of the draft 2018
Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan Mitigation

No mitigation is proposed since the proposed
improvements fall in line with the proposed
Comprehensive Plan,

Comprehensive Plan Mitigation

No mitigation is proposed since the proposed
amendments are compatible with the present
and Draft Comprehensive Plans.

4.4

Vehicular Traffic and Roadways

2005 Findings Statement

2020 Proposed Action

Traffic Impacts

Detailed capacity analyses were conducted for
the following intersections and scenarios and
reported in the DEIS for the Proposed Action:

= .5 Route 9 and Snake Hill Road/Travis
Corners Road

= .S Route ¢ and Garrison Golf Club
Access

= U.S Route 9 and Coleman Road

= Snake Hill Road and Garrison Golf Club
Access

= NYS Route 9D and Snake Hill Road

=  With Redevelopment of Garrison Golf
Club {Proposed Action)

* With Brookmeade ({Residential Zone
Rezoned for Commercial Use)

Depending on which scenario, Existing Traffic
Volumes, Year 2005 Build Traffic Volumes, or
Year 2005 No Build Traffic Volumes were used
to calculate the level of service for the existing
intersections or vicinity roads. The Levels of
Service (LOS) for the calculated intersections
and roads surrounding the Proposed Action
ranged from LOS “B” or better to LOS “F" or
better.

Traffic Impacts

Other than the golf course, the existing uses on
the property will remain relatively unchanged
under the proposed plan (it is proposed to reduce
the maximum capacity of the existing banquet
facility from 232 to 200). Under the current
proposal, the proposed number of rooms for
artist and guest accommodations will be
increased slightly over the previous hotel
approval, however, the majority of artists will be
working for HVSF (performers, stage design,
costumes, etc.,} and, therefore, will be working,
not driving, during the periods of greatest traffic
activity at the site (effectively, there will be no
change in traffic associated with the increase in
the number of hotel rooms from what was
previously approved). Therefore, from a traffic
perspective, the outdoor and indoor theatres,
their accompanying back of house and
concessions structures, and the outdoor pavilion
are the only major new facilities planned for the
property. The proposed use of these facilities
and anticipated schedule is discussed below.

The HVSF ocutdoor theatre venue is anticipated to
operate 6 days a week from fune to October with
performances typically at 7:30 p.m. on weekday

Page 21 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival
October 2020

evenings, at 2:00 p.m. and 7:30 p.m. on Saturdays
and at 2:00 p.m. on Sundays. in the fall months,
HVSF anticipates having some daytime school
matinees at 11 a.m. on weekdays. The indcor
theatre will operate year-round with the
performances anticipated to occur on weekday
evenings, and on Saturday and Sunday
afterncons and evenings. Simultaneous events
at the indoor and outdoor theaters are
contemplated and have been accounted for in
the traffic projections.

The outdoor pavilion will serve as a pre-event
space for the indoor and outdoor theaters and,
therefore, will not generate any additional traffic
on days when there are programed activities at
those facilities. The outdoor pavilion will be
available for community events but, as indicated
above, any traffic generated by these events will
not occur at the same time that traffic will be
generated by either of the theaters.

The applicant is in the process of preparing a
traffic impact study and is proposing that a
quantitative analysis be conducted at the
following intersections, which are the same
intersection studied in 2005:

=  USRoute 9 & Coleman Road

= US Route 9 & Site Driveway

= US Route 9 & Travis Corners Road/Snake
Hill Road

* Snake Hill Road & Site Driveway

= NYS Route 9D & Snake Hill Road

Based on a review of the existing traffic volumes
on the area roadways and the anticipated
scheduling of events at the HVSF, the applicant
proposes to analyze of the following peak hours:

=  Friday Peak PM Event Hour
=  Saturday Midday Peak Hour
= Saturday PM Event Hour

A preliminary trip generation analysis was
conducted to confirm the peak hours and
intersections to be studied. This analysis

Page 22 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

evaluated the trip generations for simultaneous,
fully-attended events at the 530-seat outdoor
theater and the 225-seat indoor theater on a
Friday evening, as weli as back-to-back Saturday
afternoon and evening performances for both
venues. The projected event traffic vofumes were
compared to historical traffic volumes on Route 9
to assess when the combination of both would
produce the highest traffic volumes. This analysis
revealed that event traffic is most likely to impact
area traffic operating conditions in the period
between matinee and evening outdoor
performances (specifically, Saturdays between
June and October from 4:30 to 5:30 p.m.) when it
is estimated that a total of up to 295 vehicles will
be arriving or departing. Lesser impacts are
expected prior to weekday evening
performances {in particular, Friday evening from
5:00 to 6:00 p.m.} and eariier on Saturday and
Sunday afternoons, when the project is projected
to add approximately half of the above level of
traffic activity to the surrounding roadways (up to
145 vehicles per hour). During the remaining
hours, either project traffic will be significantly
less or traffic passing on the roadways serving the
site will be significantly less (at least a third lower
than peak-hour volumes).

Traffic Mitigation

According to the Traffic Report conducted by
lohn Collins Engineering, which is summarized
in the DEIS, the traffic generated by the
proposed improvements to the Garrison Golf
Club would not adversely affect the roadway
system surrounding the Golf Club. The report of
the DEIS states that the Levels of Service for the
Future Build and Future No Build options would
be similar and therefore the Proposed Plan
does not pose negative impacts to the roadway
system. Improvements to the local roadway
system, including sight distance improvements,
will be discussed during the Highway Work
Permit Process.

Traffic Mitigation

The scope of the traffic impact study will be
reviewed with the Planning Board and its
consultants and the report will be submitted for
review upon its completion.

Page 23 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shokespeare Festival

October 2020

4.5

Community Services

2005 Findings Statement

2020 Proposed Action

Police Protection

New York State Police

The police at the Cortlandt Station have
acknowledged that the proposed
improvements will not have a negative impact
on the services provided by the New York Police
for they have enough resources to handle the
present conditions of Philipstown as well as the
anticipated demand created from the proposed
improvements.

Putnam County Sheriff's Department

The Putham County Sheriff's Department
admitted a need for more law enforcement
services. This need is not specially associated
with the Proposed Action but more of a
cumulative need from the overall growth in
Putnam County.

Police Protection

No change in this impact is anticipated that
cannot be adequately mitigated.

Fire Protection

The utilization of the existing 30,000-gallon tank
for fire flow water and the installation of the
proposed sprinkler system in each building will
increase fire protection of the property site

Fire Protection

The utilization of the existing 30,000-gallon tank
for fire flow water and the installation of sprinkler
systems in each new structure as required will
increase fire protection of the property site.

Medical Facilities/Ambulance Service

The Proposed Action is anticipated to increase
life risk situations that may occur on the site.
The cause of this increase is the result of the
proposed increase in number of overnight
accommaodations, Since there are two medical
facilities located in the area of the Garrison Golf
Club and there are a number of ambulance
services in the vicinity, no mitigation is
proposed.

Medical Facilities/Ambulance Service

The proposed action is anticipated to increase life
risk situations that may occur on the site. The
cause of this increase is the result of the
proposed increase in number of visitors to the
site for the various uses, existing and proposed.
Since there are two medical facilities located in
the area of the GCCPDD/RC and there are a
number of ambulance services |n the vicinity, no
mitigation is proposed.

Page 24 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

Solid Waste

The Proposed Plan is expected to generate
minimal debris. The debris accumulated will be
disposed of at an approved landfill. As a result
of the Proposed Action, solid waste from the
site will increase from the additional proposed
accommodations. No mitigation is proposed for
the increase in solid waste from the proposed
improvements will not significantly impact
existing landfills or the solid waste collection of
the Town.

Solid Waste

No mitigation is proposed for the increase in solid
waste from the proposed improvements will not
significantly impact existing landfills or the solid
waste collection of the Town as HVSF is already
operating at the Boscobel site. No mitigation is
proposed for the increase in solid waste from the
proposed improvements will not significantly
impact existing landfills or the solid waste
collection of the Town as HVSF is already
operating at the Boscobel site.

4.6

Taxes (Fiscal Analysis)

2005 Findings

2020 Proposed Action

Taxes (Fiscal Analysis)

Upon the completion of the Proposed Action,
the following will occur:

= The assessed value of the property will
be $9,726.300, which is an increase of
$3,867,500.

= The total tax revenue will be $220,126,
which is an estimated increase of
$87,530.

= The taxes will be paid to a variety of
jurisdictions.

The approximate monetary amount affiliated
with the Golf Club improvements has not been
calculated but according to the assumption of
the Applicant the expense of the improvements
is not expected to be significant.

No additional mitigation is expected for there is
an excess of funds for each taxing district.

Taxes (Fiscal Analysis

The present assessed value of the property is
$4,535,900; the total tax revenue is $199,267.75.
HVSF is a tax exempt organization but certain
scenarios are being explored wherein the
event/restaurant/bar/hotel  operations  will
continue to be tax revenue generating
operations so as to minimize as best as possible
any diminution in real property tax revenues to
be felt by the Town and School Districts. HVSF will
be creating a for-profit subsidiary to operate the
restaurant and weddingfevent business. We
expect that this for-profit will pay a portion of
property taxes. In addition, there is the potential
for increased sales tax revenue for Putnam
County and the Town as a result of expanded
restaurant operations.

Page 25 of 27




Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

4.7

Visual Quality and Neighborhood Character

2005 Findings Statement

2020 Proposed Action

Visual Quality/Neighborhood Character

The majority of the proposed improvements
are scheduled to occur in the “Core Area”,
which is located in the center portion of the
site. Besides the remote parking area, which
will be visible from Snake Hill Road, the
proposed improvements will be located in the
“Core Area” and are therefore not visible from
outside the Golf Club. The impact of the remote
parking area will be mitigated through the
planting of a buffer.

Landscaping will occur that includes the
replacement of some tree canopy with plant
cover. This action as well as additional
landscaping techniques will not open views into
the Garrison Golf Club.

No significant changes in the existing grading
are proposed. The Applicant is looking to
accomplish the proposed improvement while
preserving open space and improving visual
quality of the site.

The protection of ridgelines and viewsheds,
especially of the Hudson River, are an important
aspect of the Proposed Plan. The creation of a
visually pleasing site, both onsite and from the
roadside will be completed through landscaping
and will include natural buffers. Landscaping
will be conducted with the use of native species.

Visual Quality/Neighborhood Character

The majority of the proposed improvements are
scheduled to occur in the Gifted Area, which is
located predominantly in the center portion of
the site. Besides the remote parking and golf pro

shop area, which will be visible from Snake Hill I

Road, the proposed improvements will be
located in the Gifted Area and are therefore not
visible from outside the existing GCCPDD/RC. The
impact of the remote parking and artists’
residences areas will be mitigated through the
planting of a buffer.

tandscaping will occur that includes the
replacement of some tree canopy with plant
cover. This action as well as additional
{andscaping techniques will not open views into
the Garrison Golf Club and Gifted Area.

While significant changes in the existing grading
will be necessary. HVSF is looking to accomplish
the proposed improvements while preserving
open space and improving visual quality of the
site.

The protection of ridgelines and viewsheds,
especially of the Hudson River, remain of
paramount commitment to HVSF. The creation of
a visually pleasing site, both onsite and from the
roadside, neighbaring properties and from the
West side of the Hudson River will be completed
through landscaping and will include natural
buffers. Landscaping will be conducted with the
use of native species.

Page 26 of 27



Garrison Golf Club & Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival

October 2020

4.8

Description of the Project Alternatives Considered in the DEIS

2005 Findings

2020 Proposed Action

No Action

The No Action alternative states basically that
the property would remain in its existing state.
There would be no physical development site
impacts and all benefits that were expected
from the build option will not occur. If the
proposed improvements are not granted, the
drainage pattern on the site will not change,
additional revenue and employment will not be
produced and additional traffic will not be
generated.

“This alternative is not consistent with the
Applicant’s objectives of pursuing a modern,
more viable Golf Club.”

Disposition of the Property in the Event Entire
Project Fails

Failure of the Proposed Action would allow for
the property to be developed under the current
R-80 zoning law. If failure were to occur, the
Golf Club would likely depreciate to
undeveloped land. A portion of the site could be
developed as a residential subdivision even
though the Applicant wished to have the site
remain as open space and “would likely sell or
gift the property to the State or a conservancy
such as the Open Space Institute.”

No Action

A No Action alternative would mean basically
that the GCCPDD/RC would remain in its existing
state. There would be no further physical
development site impacts and all benefits for the
Town and local community that could be
expected from the build option will not occur. If
the proposed improvements are net granted, the
drainage pattern on the site will not change,
additional revenue and employment will not be
produced and additional traffic will not be
generated.

This alternative is not consistent with HVSF's
objective of seeking a permanent home in the
Town of Philipstown.

Disposition of the Property in the Event Entire
Project Fails

Failure of the HVSF use would require Supreme
Court approval for the sale of all or substantially
all of its property and would be heavily
scrutinized by that Court. Additianally, Mr. Davis
is planning on a reverter clause if HVSF should
fail, which would cause title to the Gift Area to
revert to him or to some other non-profit entity
of his designation.

Page 27 of 27



RECORD & RETURN TO:
(Name, Address, & Zip)

BRI AEEHAB Y RECORDING AND ENDORSEMENT PAGE

(THIS PAGE TORMS PART OF TIIE INSTRUMENT)

TYPE OR PRINT IN BLACEKE INX ONLY

Wen . Hamirn
! Wakmeod S -
I

delphion P4 17702

GRANTOR/MORTGAGOR -

q ut_c C%Lf) |

QW n G”“v/w Lee

GEANTLYE/MORTGAGLE |

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE

INSTRUMENT TYPE: DEED V// HMORTGAGE

SAT ASHT OTHER

4 OF
RECORDING FEES PAGES

Efz_oh

1

RCD FEE

STAT CHG 5.00

REC HMGMT 5.00
Led

CROSS REF

CERT/COPY Lo
o0

TOTAL S—K-

DEED TRANSFER TAX
CONSIDERATION § 3,0/ 850 50

TOWHSHIP

RECETVED

l_ZOI a60.%° 56-.-00
REAL ESTATE
3460 1 rea ()
11re $25.00

TRANSFER 1AX

!
!
|
|
|
|
|
i
| PUTHAM  COUNTY
|

RESERVE FOR TIME STAMP

‘.,3-1.‘},'
RS U

g il g
W

PUTNAM COUNTY CLERR'S OFFICE

RECORDED OH %m&a_ém_

AND EXAMINED.

JOSEPH L. PELOSO, J
PUTNAM COUNTY CLER

1

MORTGAGE TAX

t

MORTGAGE AMOUNT

TOTAL TAX

SERIAL HUMBER

AFFIDAVIT FILED

HORTGAGE TAX DISTRICTS:
TOWH OF CARMEL

TOWH OF KENT

TOWH OF PATTERSON

TOWH OF PHILIPSTOWN
TOWI! OF FUTHAM VALLEY
TOWH OF SOUTHEAST
UHAPPORTIOHED

HMORTGAGE TYPES:
COMMERCIAL/VACANT LAND

1 - 2 FAMILY

UNDER 10,000

CREDIT UNIOH/PERSONAL MTG
3 - 6 UNITS

EXEMPT

t"l':lﬁ!:l}

-



Standard N.Y.B.T.UL Form 80U2: Bargaln & salr devd BKulmlia]uBBE aaa Juuu: PURLISHERS

with eoverunt agalnst gruntor's asts—Tnd. ur Carp. :uh'u;le sheet

CONSULT YOQUR LAWYER BEFORE SIGNING THIS INSTRUMENT — THIS INSTRUMENT SHOULD BE USED BY LAWYERS ONLY

THIS INDENTURE, made the |4 ™ day of June , nineteen hundred and ninety-nine

BETWEEN  GARRISON GOLF DLC CORP., a Delaware corporation having an address at
c/o Coudert Brothers
1114 Avenue of the Americas
NY, NY 10036
Attention: Jobhn Galluccio, Esq.

party of the first part, and Garrison Golf Club LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

having an address at
c/o Shaw Pittman Potts & Trowbridge
2300 N Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20039
Attention: John Engel, Esq.

parly of the second part,

WTTNESSETH, that the party of the first part, in consideration of Ten Dollars and other valusble consideration
paid by the party of the second part, does hereby grant and release unto the party of the second part, the heirs
or successors and assigns of the party of the second part forever,

ALL that certain plot. piece or parcel of land. with the buildings and improvements thereon erected, situate.
lying and being in the same premises as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and

made a part hereof. T/?Ml\.ﬁ'!*“ﬂu—-n‘v

BEING and intended to be the same property couveyed to the party of the flrst part
by deed made by Urban Life Company U.5.A. dated September 16, 1992 recorded in
Liber 1170 at Page 135.

This conveyance has been made with the unanimous consent in writing of all of the
stockholders of the party of the first part.

TOGETHER with all right, title and interest, if any. of the party of the frst part in and to any streets and
roads abutting the above described premises to the center lines thereof; TOGETHER with the appurtenances
and all the estate and rights of the party of the first part in and to said premises; TO HAVE AND TO HOLD
the premises herein granted unto the party of the second part. the heirs or successors and assigns of the party of
the second part [orever,

AND the party of the first part covenants hat the party of the first part has not done or suffered anything whereby
the said premises have been encumbered in any way whatever, except as aforesaid.

AND the party of the first part, in compliance with Section 13 of the Lien Law, covenants that the party of the first
part will receive the consideration far this conveyance and will held the right to receive such consideration as a
trust fund to be applied first for the purpose of paying the cost of the improvement and will apply the same first to
the payment of the cost of the improvement before nsing any part of the total of the same for any other purpase.
The word “party” ghall he construed as if it read “parties” whenever the sense of this indenture so requires.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the party of the first part has duly executed this deed the day and year first above

written.

IN PRESENCE 0F: Garrison Golf ULC Corp.
1

by: o o i

Iresident
~aueSHt NISh muRA



TrrLe No.

Kih 13060032

EW YORK, COUNTY O $5:

Ou the
personally came

day of 19 , before me

to me known to be the individual  described in and who
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that
executed the same.

STATE OF NEW YORK. COUNTY OF AlE &) yoex. -

On the June 19 99, before me
personaily came T}Lkesht Mshimura
to me known, who, being by me ﬁl¥ worn, did depose and

h N 1
tid e 0, BB

that  he is the 14

of Garrison Golf TLC Corp.
, the eorporation described
m and which executed the foregomg mstrummt,

the geal of anu-l

Barguin and ale BDeed
WitH CovENANT ACAI GCRaNTOE'S ACTS

~NHA- - o v S

Garrison Golf ULC Corp.

TO

Garrison Golf Club LLC

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF 5

On the
personally came

day of 19 , befare me

to me known to be the individual described in and who
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that
executed the same.

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF (1]
On the day of 19 , before me
personally came

e su ing witness to the foregoing instrument, with

whom | am personally acquainted, who, bein
sworn, did deposc and say that  he resides at

he knows

by me duly

that

to be the individual
described in and whe executed the foregoing instrument;
that  he. said subscribing witness, was present and saw
execute the same; and that he, said witness,

at the same time subscribed h [ parme. “m&usn.

Fro " oran Title tns. Co. of NY
) - :ast Post Rpad
Vihile Plains, New Yok 10601

e

SECTION "Qﬁ
BLock 1 =2
wrsi 2 by 2L N2\ >

County of Putnam

. R CONE Town of Philipstown

RETURN BY MAIL TO:

Klehr, Harrison, Harvey, Branzburg &
Ellers LLP

1401 Walnut Street
Philadelphia, PA

Attn: Steven Kaye, Esq.

Zp No. 19102

Rexerve this space for use of Recording Qifice.




BX1L73P60033

Schedule GG-A
PARCEL GG-A - Tax Parcel 60.-1-59.2

BEGINNING at the point on the northerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners
Road). where the same is intersected by the line dividing the lands now being described. on the
west irom lands formerly of Fratoni and now or formerly of Hines. on the east. which point
occupies coordinate position

N 503549.51 (y)
E 615336.64 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, westerly along the northerly line of Snake Hill Road
{formerly Travis Corners Road) and in part along the road face of a stone wall the following

Courses.

S 61°34'35" W 159.35 feet
S77°13'35" W 58.37 feet
S71°2237"W 59.38 feet
S 61°0830" W 2283 feet
S 52°0935" W 31.60 feet
S45°17'32" W 86.77 feet

to a point which occupies coordinate position

N 503350.34 (y)
E 614976.68 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone, which point is the Point of Beginning of
Hydrant Access Easemnent No. 1 described in Schedule HA attached hereto. Thence continuing
westerly along the northerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road) and in part

along the road face of a stone wall the following courses:

S 45°44'54" W 48.31 feet
S18921'50" W 22.00 feet
S 26°07'22" W 192.08 feet
S 33°04'46" W 168.22 feet
S41°38'50" W 146.13 feet
S33°23'24" W 283.64 feet
S 47°54'30" W 103.00 feet and
S 72°15'05" W 107.47 feet



BK1%73P60034

Schedule GG-A, continued

to the easterly line of lands formerly of Salome and now or formerly of Gibson. Thence along
the said Gibson lands the following courses:

N 3073627" W 331.71 feet to a pipe
N 35933"27" W 161.51 feet to a pipe
N 10°0327" W 200.00 feet and

S 24°04'37" W 241.26 feet

to a point marked by an iron pipe. Thence along other lands formerly of Urban Life Company
U.S.A. and now or formerly of Parkin

N 38°901'52" W 430.00 feet and
S 65°34'56" W 306.03 feet

to a point on the easterly line of lands of the City of New York (Catskill Aqueduct). Thence
along said Catskill Aqueduct lands, first the following courses:

N 19°01'10" W 380.00 feet
S 78°01'10" E  87.50 feet and
N 19°01'10" W 1659.55 feet

then northerly on a tangent curve to the right, the central angle of which is 43°30'00", the radius
of which is 100.00 feet for 75.92 feet and then

N 24°28'50" E 378.63 feet

to a point on the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road, which point occupies coordinate position

N 505427.88 (y)
E 61292745 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone. Thence along the southerly line of Philipse
Brook Road and in part along the road face of a stone wall the following courses:

N 88°50'20" E 129.10 feet
N 66°07'39" E 202.13 feet
S 88°07'36" E 77.22 feet
S 73°30'35" E 180.69 feet
S 79°1734"E 64.33 feet
S 63°46'20"E 33.82 feet
S 87°05'48" E 57.00 feet

b



BX1L73PGO03S

Schedule GG-A, continued

N 89°4920" E 36.27 feet
N 79°4828" E 67.83 feet
N 77°45'40" E 53.19 feet and
N 78°01'16" E  80.00 feet

Thence along other lands now or formerly of Urban Life Company U.S.A. the following courses:

S 11°58'44™ E 100.00 feet

S 15°21'43" W 306.83 feet

S 54°43'39" E 277.99 feet

N 44930'00" E 170.37 feet

N 59°30'00" E 103.21 feet

N 39°46'29" E 994.74 feet and
Due East 279.50 feet

to a point on the westerly line of U.S. Route 9 (Albany Post Road). Thence southerly along the
westerly line of U. S Route 9 (Albany Post Road) the following courses:

S 00°0528" W 352.26 feet
S 16°20'38" E 558.71 feet and
S 14°53'09" E 336.58 feet

to a point which occupies coordinate position

N 504639.21 (y)
E 615409.32 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone, which point is the Point of Beginning of
Hydrant Access Easement No. 2 described in Schedule HA attached hereto. Thence continuing

southerly along the westerly line of U.S. Route 9

§ 00°42'35" E 137.00 feet to a monument and
S 00°04'24" E 180.51 feet

to a point at the line of lands formerly of Palumbo and now or formerly of DiSalvo. Thence
along the said DiSalvo lands and along lands formerly of Fratoni and now or formerly of Hines
and in part near the center of a stone wall the following courses:

N 74°00'10" W 193.74 feet to a pipe
S 07°1620" E 440.64 feet
S 08°07'07" E 203.16 feet



BK1L73PG0036
Schedule GG-A, continued

S06°5621"E 67.69 feat
5 06°15'14" E 108.55 feet and
S30°11'50"E 14.22 feet

to the northerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road) and the point or place of
beginning. containing 124.912 acres more or less.



BXI1LT73P60037

Schedule GG-E
PARCEL GG-E - Tax Parce! 60.-1-69

BEGINNING at a point on the southerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Philipse Brook
Road). where it is met by the line dividing the lands herein described, on the east. from lands
now or formerly of Farman, on the west, which point occupies coordinate position

N 505168.31 (v)
E 612105.32 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning along the southerly line of Snake Hill Road
{formerly Philipse Brook Road.)

N 56°01'50" E  48.04 feet and
N 45°59'20" E 123.11 feet

to the westerly end of a curve connecting the southerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly
Philipse Brock Road) with the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road).
Thence easterly on a tangent curve to the right, the central angle of which is 90°00'00", the radius
of which is 100.00 feet for 157.08 feet to the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis
Comers Road). Thence, along the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners

Road)

S 44°00'40" E 244.14 feet and
S 18°01'00" E 163.40 feet

to the northeasterly corner of a pumphouse lot. Thence along the said pumphouse lot the
following courses:

S 71°59'00" W 75.00 feet
S 18°01'00" E  60.00 feet and
N 71°59'00" E  75.00 feet

to another point on the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road).
Thence along the said westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road)

S 18°01'00" E 1127.89 feet

to the northerly line of lands formerly of the City of New York (Catskill Aqueduct), and now or
formerly of Frederick Osborn. Thence along the said Osborn lands



BX1473PG0038

Schedule GG-E, continued

S 7202820" W 296.27 feet

to a stone wall and a point marked by a monument at the line of lands now or formerly of
Osborn. Thence northerly along the said Osborn lands and along the aforementioned lands now

or formerly of Farman and in part along the center of a stone wall

N 13°45'10" W 1392.42 feet and
N 70°16'40" W 259.01 feet

to the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road and the point or place of beginning, containing
8.866 acres more or less.



BK11:73P60039

Schedule GG-F
PARCEL GG-F - Tax Parcel 60.-2-29.2

a

BEGINNING at the point on the northerly line of Philipse Brook Road where it is met by the
line dividing the lands herein described. on the west, from other lands now or formerly of Urban
Life Company U.S.A.. on the east, which point occupies coordinate position

N 505525.45 (y)
E 613339.88 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System East Zone, and which point is distant
N 76°35'12" W 100.02 feet

as measured westerly along the said northerly line of Philipse Brook Road from another point
thereon where it is met by the line dividing the said other lands now or formerly of Urban Life
Company U.S.A., on the west, from lands now or formerly of McFarland, on the east, which
reference point occupics coordinate position

N 505502.25 (y)
E 613437.17 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning westerly along the northerly line of Philipse Brook
Road the following courses:

N 78°14'39" W 103.44 feet
N 20°36'40" W 15.50 feet and
§69°2320" W 110.55 feet

to a point at the line of lands now or formerly of the City of New York (Catskill Aqueduct).
Thence northerly along the said Catskill Aqueduct lands and in part along the easterly face of a
stone wall the following, first

N 33°2520" W 337.11 feet and
N 33°25'10" W 229.61 feet

then on a tangent curve to the right, the central angle of which s 25°48'00", the radius of which
is 100.00 feet for 45.03 feet, then

NO7°37'10" W 151.45 feet



BKI1LT73P600040

Schedule GG-F, continued

then on a tangent curve to the right, the central angle of which is 25°48'30". the radius of which
is 100.00 feet for 45.04 feet, then

N I8°1120" E 224.15 feet

then on a tangent curve to the left, the central angle of which is 31°08'30". the radius of which is
300.00 feet for 163.06 feet, then

N 12°57'10" W 204.38 feet

then on a tangent curve to the right, the central angle of which is 13°55'00", the radius of which
is 900.00 feet for 218.60 feet, and then

N 00°57'S0" E  95.49 feet

to a point in the center of a stone wall marking the southerly line of lands formerly of Benjamin
and now shown on that certain map entitled, "Hayfield Associates...," which was filed in the
Putnam County Clerk's Office on September 23, 1976 as Map No. 1533. Thence along the said
southerly line of the lands shown on Filed Map No. 1533 and the center of the said stone wall the

following courses:

§ 70°02'01" E 169.98 feet
S 70°33'38" E 134.42 feet and
562°32'51"E 27.02 feet

to a point at the line of lands formerly of Openhavska, formerly of Penny and now or formerly of
Southard. Thence along the said Southard lands and the center of a stone wall

S 19°07'28" E 163.04 feet and
8§ 19°43'48" E 35.3! feet

to a point. Thence along other fands now or formerly of Urban Life Company U.S.A.. the
following courses:

S05°21'52" W 878.23 feet
S 19°58'59" E 351.14 feet and
S$ 56°56'09" E 154.98 feet

to the northerly line of Philipse Brook Road and the point or place of beginning, containing
9.669 acres mare or less



BXILT73PCO0L]

Schedule GG-G
PARCEL GG-G - Tax Parcel 60.-2-26.71

BEGINNING at a point on the northerly line of Snake Hill Road (Formerly Philipse Brook
Road) where it is met by the line dividing the tands herein described on the east from lands
formerly of The Walter Hoving Home, Inc. and now or formerly of K.J.A. Land Company, Inc.
on the west, which point occupies coordinate position

N 505112.72 (y)
E 611928.07 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning along the said K.J.A. Land Co., Inc. lands, the
following courses:

N 31°33'05" W 517.41 feet
N 65°33'53" W 30.29 feet and
N 66°48'58" W 153.65 feet

to a point at the line of lands now or formerly of McEvoy, Kastilahn and Tudor. Thence along
the said McEvoy, Kastilahn and Tudor lands

N 12°56'10" E 949.96 feet

to a point on the southerly line of Lot No. 6 shown on that certain "Subdivision Plat of Garrison
Golf Club - Section 1...," which was filed in the Putnam County Clerk’s Office on October 29,
1990 as Map No. 2488. Thence along the southerly and southeasterly lines of Lot No. 6 and Lot
No. 5 on said Filed Map No. 2488 the following courses:

§ 74°29'18" E 150.00 feet
N 62°00'00" E 442.23 feet and
N 72°00'00" E 390.00 feet

to a point in the line of lands now or formerly of the City of New York (Catskill Aqueduct) and
the westerly face of a stone wall. Thence along the said Catskill Aqueduct lands and generally
along the west face of a stone wall the following, first southerly on a non-tangent curve to the
left, the center of which bears N81°20'00"E, the central angle of which is 04°17'] 0", the radius of
which is 1100.00 feet for'82.29 feet, then

§ 12°57'10" E 204.38 feet



BX 1L 73P600L2

Schedule GG-G, continued

and then on a tangent curve fo the right, the central angle of which is 31°08'30", the radius of
which is 100.00 feet for 54.3$ feet to a point which point occupies coordinate position

N 50630691 (v)
E 61266388 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone. Thence through the parcel now being described
S 37°2521" W 360.08 feet

to a point on the line of lands now or formerly of the Vestry of St.. Philip's Church. Thence
along and around the said St.. Philip’s Church lands on a non-tangent curve to the left, the center
of which bears. 537°25'21"W, the central angle of which is 360°00'00", the radius of which is
75.00 feet for 471.24 feet to the point kst described. Thence back through the parcel now being

described
N 37°2521"E 360.08 feet

to the most previously described point on the westerly line of the lands of the Catskill Aqueduct.
Thence along the said Catskill Aqueduct lands and generally along the west face of a stone wall

the following, first
S 18°1120" W 224.15 feet

then on a tangent curve to the left, the central angie of which is 25°48'30", the radius of which is
300.00 feet for 135.13 feet, then the following courses:

S 25°39'50" W 286.53 feet

S 33°25'10" E 200.00 feet

N 56°34'50" E 150.00 feet

S 33°25'10" E  99.32 feet

N 56°34'50" E  15.00 feet

S 33°25'10" E  50.00 feet and
S 56°34'50" W 15.00 feet

then southerly on a non-tangent curve to the right, the center of which bears S56°34'50"W, the
central angie of which is $7°54'00", the radius of which is 100.00 feet for 101.05 feet and then

S 24°28'50" W 62.00 feet

to a point. Thence still along lands of the Catskill Aqueduct



BKI1L73P600L3
Schedule GG-G, continued

S 88°50°20" W 173.00 feet
to a point which point occupies coordinate position

N 505536.88 (y)
E 61258595 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone, which point is the point of beginning of the
right-of-way heretofore granted to the Vestry of St. Philip's Church described in Schedute GG-R
artached hereto. Thence still along lands of the Catskill Aqueduct:

N 49°04'30" W 62.87 feet and
S 60°55'50" W 349.62

to a point on the northerly line of Philipse Brook Road. Thence westerly along the said northerly
line of Philipse Brook Road and continuing along the northerly line of Snake Hill Road
(formerly Philipse Brook Road), the following courses:

$ 22°03'40" E  20.00 feet
540°54'45" W 152.14 feet
S$33°05'16" W 31.49 feet

S 48°19'46" W 23.50 feet

S 54°29'25" W 133.25 feet and
S 58°30'16" W 81.46 feet

to the point or place of beginning, containing 29.782 acres more or less.



PUTNAM COUNTY RECORDING AND ENDORSEMENT PAGE
(THIS PAGE FORMS PART OF THE INSTRUMENT)

RECORD & RETURN TO:

(Name, Address, & Zip) TYPE OR PRINT IN BLACK INK ONLY

GRANTOR/IORTCAGOR
= Yihr, Barsin inban Like Company
Walmat S b.$A
g 4ol o
o 0
= R a L GRANTEE/HMORTCGAGLE R
= DO MOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE
INSTRUMENT TYPE: DEED ‘/HORTGI\GE SAT ASHT OTHER
¥ or I
RECORDING FEES pAGES  |! RESERVE FOR TIME STAMP
a
RCD FEE 920
(¥=)
STAT CHG 5.00 w0
REC MGMT 5.00 ==
D i [
CROSS REF .9 ~o
CERT/COPY .98 A
- e
B Yo
[519) R
TOTAL 52-
DEED TRANSFER TAX
consipErRATION $) & 70 149,50 FUTHAM COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE

RECEIVED

TOWHSHT P g{; Z‘, e A
RECORDED o1 9&“‘!2 22 1999

| |
| oo | TP-584 (X )
5, £82.%° | s6.00 vrser {475 pace AUD EXAMINED.
| REAL ESTATE |
| |
| 3461 | E&A { )
e | $25.00
| TRANSFER TAX | F
! PUTKAM  COUNTY | PUTNARM COUNTY CLER
[ [
MORTGAGE TAX MORTGAGE TAX DISTRICTS:
’ o TOWH OF CARKEL
AGE AMOUNT TOWH OF KENT
HORTGRS ) TOWH OF PATTERSOH
TAX TOWH OF PHILIPSTOWH
R TOWH OF PUTHAM VALLEY
TOWN OF SOUTHEAST
SERIAL WUMBER UNAPPORTIONED
HORTGAGE TYPES:
AFFIDAVIT FILED ( COMMERCIAL/VACANT LAID

1 - 2 FAMILY

UNDER $10,000

CREDIT UNION/FERSONAL MTG
3 - & UNITS

EXEMPT

=Tmono>

9835—




é} PES ha

BB AL 3RE 0B s B runiiens

CONSULT YOUR LAWYER BEFORE SIGNING THIS INSTRUMENT — THIS INSTRUMENT S5HOULD BE USED BY LAWYERS ONLY

Standard-N,Y.B. 7.0, Form 3043 o f aule devd,
whh eorenant wgdnst granter's scts—End, or Com. : single sheet

THIS INDENTURE, made the 4™ dayof  June . nineteen hundred and ninety-nine

BETWEEN UBEBAN LIFE COMPANY U.S.A., a Delaware corporation having an address at
c/o Coudert Brothers
1114 Avenue of the Americas
NY, NY 10036
Attention: John Galluecio, Esq.

party of the first part, and ~ G3rTison Golf Club LLC, = Delaware limited liability company

having an address at
c/o Shaw Pittman Potts & Trowbridge
2300 N Street, N.W.
Washington, D,C. 20039
Attention: John Engel, Esq.

party of the second part,

WITNESSETH, that the party of the first part, in consideration of Ten Dollars and other valuable consideration
paid by the party of the second part, does hereby grant and release unto the party of the sscond part, the heirs
or successors and assigns of the party of the second part forever,

ALEL thet certain -pldL, -pigeer of el of land. with the huildings and jmprovements thereon erected, sjtuate.
lying and being inpthe' pgame mges as set forth 1in I'iiltl'u'.!:n:li:PA attached hereto an

made a part heredf.' ‘:;—d PRSI
- Y |

BEING and intended to be the same property conveyed to the party of the first part
by deed made by Urban Life Co., Ltd. dated Jume 27, 1990 recorded in Liber 1097

at Page 105.

This conveyance has been made with the unanimous consent in writing of all of the
stockholders of the party of the first part,

Qounses i fud 52 el 51 L |
J o L [
Ll LAY RE ]
WHIBE bETIE im0, 6 g
Chv 20008 KHIKA

TOGETHER with all right, title and interest, if any. of the party of the first part in and to any streets and
roads abutting the above described premises to the center lines thereof: TOGETHER with the appurtenances
and all the estate and rights of the party of the first part in and to said premises; TO HAVE AND TO HOLD
the premises herein granted unto the party of the second part. the heirs or successors and assigns of the party of
the second part farever.

AND the party of the first part covenants that the party of the first part has not done or suffered anylhing whereby
the said premises have been encumbered in any way whatever, except as aforesaid.

AND the perly of the first part. in compliance with Section 13 of the Lien Law, covenants that the party of the first
part will receive the consideration for this conveyance and will hold the right to receive such consi!eration as a
trust fund to be applied first for the purpose of paying the cost of the improvement and will apply the same first to
the payment of the: cost of the improvement before using any part of the total of the same for any other purpose.
The word “party” ghall be construed as if it read “parties™ whenever the sense of this indenture 5o requires.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the party of the first part has duly executed this deed the day and vear first above
writlen.

IN PRESENCE OF: Urban Life Company U.S.A.

|
Byudﬁﬁm

Pkfs':cle'\‘i'
Tasu Vishimaan



BK1L73P600L6

ADDITIONAL TAX PARCEL NUMBERS

1. Section 60, Block 1, Lot 65

2 Section 72, Block 2, Lot 92



BRILT3PGO0LT

Schedule UL-A
Parcel UL-A - Tax Parcel 60.-1-59.3

BEGINNING at the point formed by the intersection of the southerly line of Philipse Brook
Road and the westerly line of U.S. Route 9, as widened in 1996 by appropriation, which point
occupies coordinate position

N 506,359.16 (y)
E 615,138.09 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, southerly along the westerly line of U.S. Route 9

$05°03'12" E 107.47 feet
§11°29'92" E 9599 feet and
S 00°05'28" W 305.14 feet

to a point at the line of lands now or formerly of Garrison Golf ULC Corp. Thence along the
said Garrison Golf ULC Corp. lands, the following courses:

Due West 279,50 feet

S 39°46'29" W 994,74 feet

S §9°30'00" W 103.21 feet

S 44°30'00" W 170.37 feet

N 54°43'39" W 277.99 feet

N 15°21'43" E 306.83 feet and
N 11°58'44" W 100.00 feet

to another point on the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road. Thence easterly along the
southerly line of Philipse Brook Road and in part along the road face of a stone wall, the

following courses:

N 78°01'16" E 36.10 feet
N 68°18'44" E 36.57 feet
N 63°16'43" E 30.77 feet
N 46°52'08" E 72.59 feet
N 55°01'43" E 20.79 feet
N 54°56'23" E 62.25 feet
N 52°34'34" E 53.68 feet
N 57°23'00" E 113.81 feet
N 54°13'43" E 132.85 feet
N 41°38'15" E 83.11 feet



BXI1LT73PC00L8 |

Schedule UL-A, continued
Parcel UL-A - Tax Parcel 60.-1-59.3

N 33°34'56" E 76.86 feet
N 36°01'18" E 105.80 feet
N 36°52'06" E 284.94 feet
N 38°05'32" E 143.70 feet
N 59°49'34" E 65.22 feet
N 67°40'41" E 24.38 feet
N 80°28'13" E 46.99 feet
S 88°33'16" E 60.12 feet
N 83°07'54" E 58.63 feet
S 81°08'33" E 133.86 feet and
S 75°58'50" E  3.20 feet

to the point or place of beginning, containing 17.131 acres, more or less.



BXI1L73P60049

-Schedule UL-B
Parcel UL-B - Tax Parcel 60.-1-64

BEGINNING at a point on the easterly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road)
where it is met by the westerly projection of the southerly boundary of property of the City of
New York (Catskill Aqueduct) and in line with a stone wall marking the southerly line of lands
formerly of the City of New York and now or formerly of Osbom, as projected easterly across
Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road), which point occupies coordinate position

N 503,479.69 (v)
E 613,106.77 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, easterly along the said projection and continuing
along the southerly line of the said Catskill Aqueduct lands

S 79°06'34" E 60.30 feet

to a point on the westerly line of the said Catskill Aqueduct iands. Thence southerly along the
westerly line of the said Catskill Aqueduct lands

S 19°01'10" E 1,044.14 feet

to a point on the northeasterly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road), which
point occupies coordinate position

N 502,481.16 (y)
E 613,506.25 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone. Thence northwesterly and northerly along the
northeasterly and easterly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road), the following

courses,;

N 32°2928" W 184.45 feet

N 32°10'48" W 221.80 feet

N 30°43'41" W 49.20 feet

N 26°47'07" W 82.50 feet

N 14°41'50" W 208.64 feet

N 12°55'00" W 277.12 feet and
N 04°19'04" W 67.57 feet

to the point or place of beginning, containing 1.856 acres, more or less



BK I L 73PG0050

Schedule UL-C
Parcel UL-C - Tax Parcel 60.-1-63

BEGINNING at a point on the easterly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road),
where it is intersected by the northwesterly line of lands of The City of New York (Catskill
Aqueduct), which point ts distant 362.68 feet southeasterly as measured along the northeasterly
line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road) from the point formed by its intersection
with the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road and which point of beginning occupies coordinate

position

N 505,132.89 (y)
E 612,575.71 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, northwesterly along the northeasterly line of Snake
Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road), the following courses:

N 32°18'07" W 105.46 feet
N 49°56'57" W 128.61 feet and
N 56°11'22" W 128.61 feet

to the said point formed by its intersection with the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road.
Thence along the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road

N 67°56'20" E 109.56 feet

to a point at the southerly line of Parcel QC-2 described in Schedule QC-2 hereto. Thence along
the southerly line of said Parcel QC-2 described in Schedule QC-2

S 83°49'5D" E 275.50 feet

to another point on the northwesterly line of the said Catskill Aqueduct. Thence southwesterly
along the northwesterly line of the said Catskill Aqueduct lands, the following, first

S 24°28'50" W 243.63 feet

and then on a tangent curve to the left, the centra! angle of which is 6°48'56", the radius of which
is 300.00 feet for 35.69 feet to the point or place of beginning, containing 1.111 acres, more or

less.



BK1L73P60051

Schedule UL-D
Parcel UL-D - Tax Parcel 60.-1-65

BEGINNING at the point on the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners
Road) where it is intersected by the line dividing the lands herein described, on the south, from
lands formerly of The City of New York and now or formerly of Osborn, on the north, which

point is distant

S 44°00'40" E 244.14 feet and
S 18°01'00" E 1,699.83 feet

measured southerly along the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road)

and
N 78°01'10" W 7.48 feet

measured westerly along the southerly line of the said lands formerly of the City of New York
and now or formerly of Osborn, from the southerly end of the curve with a radius of 100.00 feet
and a length of 157.08 feet that connects the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis
Corners Road) with the southerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Philipse Brook Road), and

which point of beginning occupies coordinate position

N 503,487.74 (y)
E 613,063.16 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning southerly along the westerly line of Snake Hill Road
(formerly Travis Corners Road) and the road face of a stone wall the following courses:

S 02°21'03" E 63.51 feet

S 10°45'54" E 155.48 feet

S 14°25'30" E 356.71 feet

S 23°04'28" E 89.09 feet

S 35°57'47" E 21.86 feet

S 31°42'38" E 245.64 feet and
§32°15'40" E 120.53 feet

to a point at the line of lands formerly of Townsend and the northerly line of Parcel UL-H
described in Schedule UL-H, hereto, as the said line was established by the agreement between
Townsend and NRC Corp. recorded in the Putnam County Clerk’s Liber 686 of deeds at page



BK1L73P60052

Schedule UL-D, continued

370. Thence along the said agreement line and the northerly line of Parcel UL-H described in
Schedule UL-H hereto, the following courses:

S 87°12'50" W 531.83 feet
S 68°31'50" W 260.53 feet and
S 68°53'40" W 418.9] feet

to a point at the line of lands now or formerly of the Garrison Union Free School District, the
“School Forest.” Thence along the said “School Forest” lands

N 19°32'12" W 1,056.02 feet

to a point at the line of other lands now or formerly of the Garrison Union Free School District,
the “School Forest.” Thence along the said other “School Forest” lands and along lands now or
formerly of Osbom and the centerline of a stone wall, the following courses:

N 65°07'03" E 417.75 feet
N 64°28'49" E 236.15 feet
N 65°35'56" E 146.12 feet
S 79°37'56™ E 89.66 feet and
S 78°01'10" E 350.18 feet

to the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road) and the point or place of
beginning, containing 28.296 acres, more or less



BK1L73P60053

Schedule UL-F
Parcel UL-F - Tax Parcel 60.-2-29.1

BEGINNING at a point on t':h:;northerly line of Philipse Brook Road, where it is met by the line
dividing the lands herein described on the west from land now or formerly of McFarland on the

east, which point occupies coordinate position

N 505,502.25 (y)
E 613,437.17 (x)

of the New York Coordinate Systemn, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, westerly along the northetly line of Philipse Brook
Road

N 76°35'12" W 100.02 feet

to a point at the line of lands now or formerly of the Garrison Golf ULC Corp. Thence
northwesterly and northerly along the easterly line of the said Garrison Golf ULC Corp. lands,

the following courses:

N 56°56'09" W 154.98 feet
N 19°58'59" W 351.14 feet and
N 05°21'52" E 878.23 feet

to a point at the line of lands formerly of Openhavska, formerly of Penny and now or formerly
of Southard. Thence along the said Southard lands and along lands now or formerly of the
Openhavska Estate and the center of a stone wall, the following courses:

S 19°43'48" E 75.00 feet

S 03°52'26" E 25.61 feet

S 33°48'56" E 25.29 feet

S 20°21'43" E 232.67 feet

S 18°26'00" E 252.47 feet

S 30°26'17" E 15.16 feet

S 18°47'12" E 57.04 feet

S 12°54'31" E 31.59 feet and
S 18°44'58" E 124.77 feet

to a point at the line of lands formerly of McFarland and now or formerly of Northup. Thence
along the said Northup, the following courses:

S$ 21°40°02" E 178.61 feet



BK1L73P60054

Schedule UL-F, continued

§ 15°26'42" E 84.89 feet and
S 19°49'36" W 290.74 feet

to the point or place of beginning, containing 7.027 acres, more or less.



BX 1 E73FG0059

Schedule UL-H
Parcel UL-H - Tax Parcel 71.-2-92

BEGINNING at the point formed by the intersection of the southerly line of Snake Hill Road
(formerly Travis Comers Road) and the westerly line of lands of the City of New York (Catskill
Aqueduct) which point occupies coordinate position

N 502,323.86 ()
E 613,560.48 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning southerly along the westerly line of the said Catskill
Aqueduct lands

S 19°01'10" E 866.64 feet

to & point at the line of lands formerly of Frederick Osbom and now or formerly of Duncan.
Thence along the said Duncan lands, the following courses:

S 08°58'40" W 43.00 feet

S 01°18'40" E 19.30 feet

S 53°30'50" W 121.68 feet and
S 20°45'10" W 550.29 feet

to a point at the line of lands now or formerly of the Consolidated Union Free School District
No. 4 of the Towns of Philipstown and Putnam Valley, Putnam County, New York (Garrison
School Forest). Thence along the said Garrison School Forest lands

N 89°45'40" W 1,760.23 feet

to a point. Thence along the lands of the said Garrison School Forest lands and along the center
of a stone wall, the following courses:

N 19°28'20" W 21.04 feet
N 11°26'00" W 157.55 feet
N 12°29'00" W 71.91 feet
N 16°13'10" W 49.34 feet
N 12°45'10" W 12,05 feet
N 19°40'10" W 63.73 feet
N 20°13'10" W 33.85 feet
N 18°52'50" W 45.08 feet



BX 14 73P60056

Schedule UL-H, continued

N 19°01'50" W 161.61 fest .

N 19°00'20" W 46.94 feet

N 22°54'00" W 28.77 feet

N 18°33'40" W 277.13 feet

N 19°20'30" W 126.80 feet and
N 16°4020" W 24.20 feet

to a point marked by the intersection of two stone walls and lands formerly of Osborn and now
or formerly of the said Garrison School Forest. Thence along the said Garrison School Forest
lands and along Parcel UL-D , described in Schedule UL-D, hereto, the following courses:

N 68°53'40" E 1,288.34 feet
N 68°31'50" E 260.53 feet and
N 87°12'50" E 531.83 feet

to a point on the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road). Thence
southerly along the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comners Road) and mostly
along the road face of a stone wall, the following courses:

S 32°15'40" E 14731 feet

S 34°55'10" E 53.59 feet

S 39°26'20" E 21.99 feet

S 56°58'30" E 10.63 feet and
S 83°5('50" E 3.43 feet

to the point or place of beginning, comtaining 69.598 acres, more or less.



TITLE No.

BK1473P60057

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF

day of

£5!

On the
personally came

19 . before me

to me known to be the individual described in and who
exeested the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that
execuled the same.

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY of NEW fori -
On the // L3 day of June 1999 , before me
personally came "lLakesh; Nishimura.

to me known, who, being by me d

ay that  he resides at No. 0%
C‘J(ol-on on s0m, pY

l}}al heis the Prasident

o an Li ompa; U.S.A.

urb fe Company , the sorporation deacribed
in and which executed the foregoi_ng instrument ; -that—he

sworn, did depose and
K Moon acf Dr. )

Margain and fbale Wesd

Wrra CoveNant

SN

NTOR'S ACTS

U

Urban Life Company U.5.A.

TO

Garrison Golf
| Wy division of
First American Tie fns. Co. of NY

188 East Post Road
White Plaing, New York 10603

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY Of

On the
personally came

day of 19 , before me

to me known to be the individual described in and who
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that
executed the same.

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF s

On the
perscnally came
the subscribing witness to the foregoing instrument, with
whom | am personasily acquainted, who, bein by me duly
sworn, did depose and say that  he resides at%o.

day of 19

, before me

that he knows

to be the individual
described in and who executed the foregoing instrument;
that  he, said subscribing witness, was present and saw
execate the same; and that he, said witness,

at the same time subscribed h  name as witness thereto.

ek aee Lo Bluck 2 20 |
Lee¥ioe ) Bhcl 2G>

sscnon‘ L,ﬁ

BLOck | Y

5

ors €9 3 3 RHAC

COUNTY OR TOWN County of Putnam
Town of Philipstown

RETURN BY MAIL TO:

Klehr, Harrison, Harvey, Branzhurg &
Ellerg LLP
1401 Walnut Street
Philadelphia, PA

Zip No. 19102
Attn: Steven Kaye, Esq.

Reserve this space for use of Recording Office.




K1.73,60058

PUTNAM COUNTY RECORDING AND ENDORSEMENT PAGE
(THIS PAGE FORMS PART OF TIHE INSTRUMENT)

RECORD & RETURN TO:
(Hame, Address, & Z2ip) TYPE OR PRINT IN BLACK IHK ONLY

Wm Basrinn Lf [,,g,,,’,,,'f_'iff)(’;mpm ySA.
1ot Walmnat § .

/JMQWJ PA

DO HOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE

T
Gartoom Golf k- LEC

CHANTLEZDORTGAGLL

19103

INGTRUMENT TYPE: DEED v MORTGAGE SAT __ AsM OTHER ~
L oor |
RECORDING FEES PAGES | D RESERVE FOR TIME STANE
0
PCO TEL /8.0 s
e 2
STAT CHG 560 =
BICHGMT ) 5.00 -
) :
CcRass REF o7 Lo s
o9 = ob
CERT/COPY e - e
-~ B

(8]
TGTAL 2 J;

DFED TRANSFER TAX

COUSIDERATION 5 O FUTHAM COUNTY CLERR'S OFFICE

TOWHSIIT P ﬂ%ﬂ
e RECORDED N M&; t_\gq(:f

FICEIVED
TP-584 { X ]

, O

! {
; ]
| = 1 %5.00
! BFA]l ESTAIE ]
[ 34 |
! 62 I FE&A ( )
v 1 %25.00 . B wdndiil
! TOANSIER TAY } JOSEFH 1 PELOED, .
I rutam coptr | PUTHAM CDUNTY CLE
|
R e ]

T
ORTGAGE TAX HMORTGAGE TAX DISTRICTS
. R Toutl OF CAPNYL

WTGAGE AMOUIIT TOWI OF KENT
o - TOWN OF PATTERSCH
) N )
I TAX TOWN OF FHELIFZTOWN
e TOWN OF PUTHAM VALLILY
TOWI! OF SOUTHEAST

SERIAL HUMDER UNAPTORTIONED

HORTGAGE TYFES: )

¥
AI'FIDAVIT FILED { ) J‘H\ (IZOIJI'IE?'P(}:'I\;\‘II.{‘;’ACF\NI‘ LATHY
¢ UHDER <10,000
G5 I CREDIT CHION/FERSONAL I
)5‘ is £ - 6o UHITS
1 EXFEUFT




T 693 l Sandard ¥ HTU. Forn xou + Quitclaim Decu DATE CODE JULIUS BLUMBERG NG, Law BLANK P BLsHERS
Individual or prntion 1dingle sheets - e
1 CONSULT YOUR LAWYER BEFORE SIGNING THIS INSTRUMENT—THIS INSTRUMENT SHOULD BE USED BY LAWYERS OMLY.
T
THIS INDENTURE, made the 1 day of June . nineteen hundred and pinety-nine
BETWEEN URBAN LIFE COMPANY U.5.A., a Delware corporation having an address at
f c¢fo Coudert Brothers

NY, NY 10036

=
~ 3
=
1114 Avenue of the Americas —
d
Attentfon: John Galluccio, Esg. =

| party of the first part, and Garrison Golf Cludb LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
I having an address at

65003

| c/o Shaw Pittman Potts & Trowbridge
| 2300 N Streec, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20039
| Attention: John Engel, Esq.

party of the second part,

WITNESSETH, that the party of the first part, in consideration of ten dollars paid by the party of the second
part, does hereby remise, release and quitclaim unto the party of the second part, the heirs or successors and
| assigns of the party of the second.part forever,

| ALL that certain plot, piece or parcel of land. with the buildings and improvements thereon erected, situate,

! Iying and being in the same premises as set forth in Exhibit & attached heretc and made
a part hereof, —

i P { VHIVIVF sTows

( BEING and intended to be the same property conveyed to the party of the first part

by deed made by Urban Life Co., Ltd. dated June 27, 1990 recorded in Liber 1097
‘at Page 105.

Thls conveysnce has been made with the unanimous consent in writing of all of the
stockhelders of the party of the first part

|
|

il [N TR R L e} M L]
2 I
= 3i
amts o L

! TOGETHER with all right, title and interest, if any, of the party of the first part in and to any streets and
rrads abutting the above described premises to the center lines thereof: TOGETHER with the appurtenances
and all the estate and rights of the party of the first part in and to said premises; TO HAVE AND TO
HOLD the premises herein granted unto the party cf the second part, the heirs or snecessors and assigns of
the party of the second part forever.

AND the party of the first part, in compliance with Section 13 of the Lien Law. herehy covenants that the party
of the first part will receive the consideration far this conveyance and will hold the right to receive such consid-
eration as a trust fund to be applied first for the purpose of paying the cosi of the improvement an- will apgly
the same first to the payment of the cost of the impravement before using any part of the total of the same fur
any other purpose.

The word "party™ shall be construed as if it read ““parties” whenever the sense of this indenture S0 requires.
IN WITRESS WHEREOF, the party of the first part has duly executed this deed the day and year first above
writter.

|| Ix eRESENCE oF: Urban Life Company U.$.A.

—E——————— 7 !

By:

| PResdewt
| —RKESH 1 NICHIMURA



BXIL73PG0060

Schedule QC-1

QUITCLAIM PARCEL QC-1 - Tax Parcel 60.-1-70

BEGINNING at the point on the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers
Road) where it is met by the line dividing the lands herein desc. ibed on the south from lands now

or formerly Garrison Golf ULC Corp. on the north, which point 1s distant

S 44°00'40" E 244.14 feet and
S 18°01'00" E 163.40 feet

measured southerly along the said westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers
Road) from the southerly end of the curve with a radius of 100.00 feet and a length of 157.08 feet
that connects the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road) with the

-utherly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Philipse Brook Road), and which point of beginning

uccupies coordinate position

N 504,947.28 (y)
E 612,595.27 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, southerly along the westerly line of Snake Hill Road
(formerly Travis Comers Road)

S 18°01'00" E 60.00 feet

to a point at another line of lands now or formerty of Garrison Golf ULC Corp. Thence along the
said Garrison Golf ULC Corp. lands, the following courses:

S 71°59'006" W 75.00 feet
N 18°01'00" W 60.00 feet and
N 71°59'00" E 75.00 feet

to the westerly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road) and the point or place of
beginning, containing 4,500 square feet, more or less.



BK 14 73P6006 ]

Schedule QC-2
QUITCLAIM PARCEL QC-2- Not separately assessed™

BEGINNING at 2 point on the ‘southerly tine of Philipse Brook Road, which point is distant

N 67°56720" E 109.56 feet

measured easterly along the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road from the point formed by its
intersection with the easterly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Corners Road), which

point of beginning occupies coordinate position

N 505,417.50 (%)
E 612,415.58 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, easterly along the southerly line of Philipse Brook
Roed

N 88°50'20" E 290.12 feet

to a point on the northwesterly line of lands of The City of New York (Catskill Aqueduct).
Thence southerly along the said northwesterly line of the said Catskill Aqueduct lands

S 24°28'50" W 38.99 feet

to a point at the northerly line of Parcel UL-C, described in Schedule UL-C hereto. Thence
westerly along the northerly line Parcel UL-C, described Schedule UL-C hereto and along the

center of a stone wall
N 83°49'50" W 275.50 feet

to the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road and the point or place of beginning, containing
5,099 square feet, more or less.

* Note - This parcel is adjacent to lands described in Schedule UL-C, Tax Parcel 60.-1-63. The
tax maps are insufficiently precise to determine whether parcel is included within that tax parcel.



BK'L}73P60062 Exhibit A

Schedule QC-2
QUITCLAIM PARCEL QC-2- Not separately assessed*
(Urban Life Company, U.S.A. to Club Resources, Inc.)
BEGINNING at a point on the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road, which point is distant
N 67°56'20" E 109.56 feet

measured easterly along the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road from the point formed by its
intersection with the easterly line of Snake Hill Road (formerly Travis Comers Road), which
point of beginning occupies coordinate position

N 505,417.50 (y)
E 612,415.58 (x)

of the New York Coordinate System, East Zone.

THENCE from the said point of beginning, easterly along the southerly line of Philipse Brook
Road

N 88°5020" E 290.12 feet

to a point on the northwesterly line of lands of The City of New York (Catskill Aqueduct).
Thence southerly along the said northwesterly line of the said Catskill Aqueduct lands

S 24°28'50" W 38.99 feet
to a point at the northerly line of Parcel UL-C, described in Schedule UL-C hereto. Thence
westerly along the northerly line Parcel UL-C, described Schedule UL-C hereto and along the
center of a stone wall

N 83°49'50" W 275.50 feet
to the southerly line of Philipse Brook Road and the point or place of beginning, containing
5,099 square feet, more or less.

* Note - This parcel is adjacent to lands described in Schedule UL-C, Tax Parcel 60.-1-63. The
tax maps are insufficiently precise to determine whether parcel is included within that tax parcel.



TiTLE No.

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF

On the day of

personally came

E 1

19 , before me

to me known to be the individual described in and whe
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that
executed the same.

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NEi/ /ORK

Onthe /7 day of June 1999 , bhefore me
personally came “fakesli Nishimura_
to me known, who, being by me duly sworn, did|_ depose and

sgy that  he resides at No. 108 Haif Moon Drive,
n_on s0m NY H

that  he is the ves dewmd

of Urban Life Company U.S.A.

, the corporation described
in and which executed the foregoing instrument;

®uitclaim Beed

Wit Comam\;\cu T GRaNTOR's AtTs

0N ov<S

Urban Life Company U.S.A.

TO

Garrison Golf Club LLC

%Y / 2 division of
* nmerican Titte ins. Co. of WY
<t Prst Road
~ins, New York 10603

BK1473PC0063

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF

On the
personally came

day of 19 before me

described in and who
oing instrument, and acknowledged that
e same.

to me known to be the individual
executed the fo
executed

STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF
On the

personaily came

the subscribing witness to the foregoing instrument, with
whom 1 am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly
sworn, did depese and say that  he resides at%'o.

he knows

day of 19 | before me

that

to be the individual
described in and who executed the foregoing instrument:
that  he, said subscribing witness, was present and saw
execite the same; and that he said witness,

at the same time subscribed b name as witness thereto.

SECTION ‘(30

BLOCK

Lor 1o

COUNTY OR TOWN County of Putnam
Town of Philipstown

RETURN BY MAIL TO:

Klehr, Harrison, Harvey, Branzburg &
Ellers LLP

1401 Walnut Street

Philadelphia, PA

Attn: Steven Kaye, Esq. Zip No. 19102

Reserve this space for use of Recording Qffice,




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT TO CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION
OF
GARRISON GOLF CLUB, LLC

It is hereby certified that:
1. The name of the limited liability company is Garrison Golf Club, LLC.

Z. The Cenificate of Formation of Garzison Golf Club, LLC is hereby
amended by striking out anticle “FIRST” in its emirety and substituting in lieu thereof the
following:

FIRST. The name of the limired liability company formed hereby is Garrison Properties
LLC (the “Company).”

Executedon  Z [24 , 2002.

A5

-

Sharon Davis, Managing Member

STATE OF DELAWARE
SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 0%9:00 AM 03/25/2002
020197114 - 3046330




)

Delaware

v The TFirst State

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND COERECT
COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF "GARRISON GOLF CLUB,
LLC", CHANGING ITS NAME FRCOM "GARRISON GOLF CLUB, LLC" TO
"GARRISON PROPERTIES LLC", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE

IWENTY-FIFTE DAY OF MARCH, A.D. 2002, AT 9 O'CLOCK A.M.

!

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State

3046330 8100 AUTHENTICATION: 1688764

020197114 DATE: 03-26-02




Kimley»Horn

of New York, P.C.

MEMORANDUM

To: Ronald Gainer, P.E.
Town of Philipstown Planning Consuitant

From: John Canning, P.E.
Andrea Connell, RSP

Date: October 22, 2020

Subject:  Traffic Study Scope
Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival
Garrison Golf Club Redevelopment
Town of Philipstown, NY

Kimley-Horn of New York, PC (“Kimley-Horn") has been retained by the Hudson Valley Shakespeare
Festival ("HVSF”) to prepare a traffic impact study for the proposed relocation of the HVSF to a portion
of the Garrison Country Club property in the Town of Philipstown. This Memorandum provides a
description of the contemplated Project and a suggested scoping autline for the traffic study for your
review and consideration. It is requested that your office and the Town Planning Board review the
material presented in this memorandum and make appropriate recommendations as to the extent and
scope of the traffic impact study.

Project Description

Chris Davis and The Garrison Country Club (GCC) are seeking to relocate the operations of local non-
profit, Hudson Valley Shakespeare Festival (HVSF) from its current summer home at Boscobel to ab2-
acre portion of their 200-acre GGC site. The HVSF proposes to continue its operations of a 530-seat
outdoor theater venue in addition to the long-term plan of creating a 225-seat indoor venue (to enable
year-round performances). The full build out of the GGC site would also include associated theatre
back of house facilities (backstage, rehearsal, costume venues), concessions and restrooms as well
as an outdoor pavilion for HYSF and community events, on-site guest accommodation {16 units for
artist housing and a small 20-room hotel), and a private residence {single-family home to be used by
the Davis Family). Parking spaces for cars, shuttie vans and buses will be provided for the proposed
facilities.

To enable the development of the proposed facilities, the existing GCC 18-hole golf course will be
reduced to 9-holes with the pro shop and golf cart barn relocated to an area to the south of the existing
golf maintenance facility. The GCC'’s existing banquet, bar and restaurants will remain. Vehicular
access to the GCC is currently provided by three driveways; one driveway on US Route 9 and two
driveways on Snake Hill Road. All driveways will remain but will be improved as may be necessary.

Flains. NY 10601

!';'imIr:v-Hm oM




Page 2

Kimley»Horn

A prior approval for the GCC property in 2005 for rezoning to a Planned Development District (PDD)
allowed a goff club, a banquet/meeting facility for 232 guests, a 72-seat restaurant, 36-hotel rooms, 4
guest rooms, a 20-person spa and a new private residence.

The following table summarizes and compares the 2005 approved uses, the existing uses and the
current proposal for the site.

Table 1 — Development Comparison

tand Use 2005 PDD Exisfing Current Proposal Change
Approval Development

Golf Course 18-holes 18-holes 9-holes - 9 holes
Banquet space 232 seats 242 seats 200 seats -32 seats
Restaurant 72 seats 71 seats 72 seats No change
Bar 25 seats 24 seats 24 seats No change
Spa 20-person N/A N/A No spa
Private residence 2 units 2 units 2 units No change
Eg:;;?g d‘::itclnsr:s' 40 rooms 8 guest rooms'! 65 rooms +25 rooms
Outdoor tent theatre N/A N/A 530 seats New
Indoor theatre N/A N/A 225 seats New
Outdoor Pavilion N/A N/A 150 seats New

Notes: (1). Artists are, typically, HSVF performers and staff.

As shown in the table, other than the golf course, the existing uses on the property will remain relatively
unchanged under the proposed plan (it is proposed to reduce the maximum capacity of the existing
banquet facility from 232 to 200). Under the current proposal, the proposed number of rooms for artist
and guest accommodations will be increased slightly over the previous hotel approval, however, the
majority of artists will be working for HVSF (performers, stage design, costumes, etc.) and, therefore,
will be working, not driving, during the periods of greatest traffic activity at the site (effectively, there will
be no change in traffic associated with the increase in the number of hotel rooms from what was
previously approved). Therefore, from a traffic perspective, the outdoor and indoor theatres, their
accompanying back of house and concessions structures, and the outdoor pavilion are the only major
new facilities planned for the property. The proposed use of these facilities and anticipated schedule
is discussed below.

The HVSF outdoor theatre venue is anticipated to operate 6 days a week from June to QOctober with
performances typically at 7:30 p.m. on weekday evenings, at 2:00 p.m. and 7:30 p.m. on Saturdays
and at 2:00 p.m. on Sundays. In the fall months, HVSF anticipates having some daytime school
matinees at 11 a.m. on weekdays. The indoor theatre will operate intermittently throughout the year
with the performances anticipated to occur on most weekday evenings, and on Saturday and Sunday




Kimley»Horn page 3

afternoons and evenings. Simultaneous events at the indoor and outdoor theaters are contemplated
and have been accounted for in the traffic projections.

The outdoor pavilion will serve as a pre-event space for the indoor and outdoor theaters and, therefore,
will not generate any additional traffic on days when there are programed activities at those facilities.
The outdoor pavilion will be available for community events but, as indicated above, any traffic
generated by these events will not occur at the same time that traffic will be generated by either of the
theaters.

Traffic Study Scope

Based on the proposed redevelopment plan and schedule of events described above, the following
provides a suggested scope for the traffic study to be undertaken for the Project. The scope effectively
mirrors the traffic study that was performed for the 2005 PDD approval. Although the development is
to be constructed in phases, the traffic study will evaluate the full build-out of the Project.

Study Locations
It is recommended that a quantitative analysis will be conducted at the following intersections:

= US Route 9 & Coleman Road

* US Route 9 & Site Driveway

¢ US Route 9 & Travis Corners Road/Snake Hill Road
* Snake Hill Road & Site Driveway

=  NYS Route 9D & Snake Hill Road?2

These are the same intersections that were studied when the PDD was originally approved in 2005,

Study Hours

Based on a review of the existing traffic volumes on the area roadways and the anticipated scheduling
of events at the HVSF, analysis of the following hours is recommended:

s Friday Peak PM Event Hour
¢ Saturday Midday Peak Hour
¢ Saturday PM Event Hour

Traffic Counts

Traffic counts will be conducted at the above intersections for the above time periods. Due to the
current pandemic, the counted traffic volumes will not be representative of typical conditions, were the

* Therefore, there is no need to evaluate the use of the outdoor pavilion by groups other than HVSF
as traffic from these activities will be substantially less than traffic generated by events at either of the
theaters.

2 It is suggested that this intersection may not need to be studied, as the proposed relocation of the
HVSF's outdoor performances from Boscobel to the Garrison wiil actually reduce the volume of traffic
passing through this intersection.

> Plains, NY 1060/ | 914-368-0200

kitnley=hoin.coml




Kimley»Horn Page 4

pandemic not occurring. Therefore, the counts will be compared to historical NYSDOT traffic counts
on US Route 9, NYS Route 9D and Snake Hill Road and adjusted to represent 2020 existing volumes.
The traffic counts conducted for the 2005 PPD approval will also be used to establish typical 2020
levels of traffic activity at the Garrison by adding traffic that can be generated from the existing 8 guest
rooms that have been added since 20053

Traffic Volume Projections

The 2020 existing volumes will be projected to a 2027 design year by an appropriate growth rate to be
provided by the Town and/or NYSDOT. Traffic volumes from any approved developments that would
add significant traffic to the study intersections will be added to the grown volumes to represent the
future No-Build traffic volumes (without the Project). This will include traffic that could be generated by
the addition of the following elements that were approved for the Garrison PDD in 2005:

e 20-person Spa

= 32 additional hotel rooms

* An additional 27 attendees at the aftemoon dinner (bringing the total to the 72 approved max)*

» An additional 107 attendees at the Saturday wedding (bringing the total to the 232 approved
max)®

For future traffic volumes with the proposed amendments to the PDD, traffic will be added for

e The 530-seat outdoor theater
e The 225-seat indoor theater

Traffic will be subtracted for:

* The 32 banquet seats to be removed
* The reduction in the number of golf holes from 18 to 9
* The elimination of the 20-person spa

As discussed above, because the outdoor pavilion will not be available for community events at the
same time that traffic will be generated by either of the theaters, there is no need to evaluate the use
of the outdoor pavilion by groups other than HVSF. Also, a small adjustment for trips associated with
the mix of guest accommodations and artist housing will be applied, if needed.

3 The traffic counts conducted for the 2005 PDD approval included traffic from a 100-person golf
event in the momning, a 45-person dinner in the afternoon and a 125-person wedding on the Saturday.
* 45 guests were at a dinner when the traffic counts were conducted for the 2005-approval traffic
study.

® 125 guests were at a wedding when the traffic counts were conducted for the 2005-approval traffic
study.

Flains, NY 1060

coml

.k}fﬁlé}'&oth.



Kimley»Horn page 5

Traffic to be generated by the proposed theatre components of the development will be estimated
based on the maximum attendance expected for each study hour, 2019 ticket sales data and estimated
vehicle occupancies, as well as the Institute of Transportation Engineers’ (ITE) Trip Generation Manual,
Tenth Edition. The Trip Generation Manual will also be used to identify trips generated by the artist's
housing and hotel components. The ITE manual will also be used to estimate the number of trips to be
eliminated with the reduced number of golf holes, banquet seating and the elimination of the spa.

The Project-generated trips will be assigned to the study intersections and roadways based on available
attendee origin and destination information and on existing travel patterns.

The Project trips will be added to the No-Build volumes resuiting in the Build volumes (with the Project).

Capacity Analysis

A Synchro 10 network will be established, and intersection capacity analyses conducted for the
Existing, future No-Build and future Build volume conditions. The Synchro analysis results for the Build
condition will be compared to the No-Build condition to identify potential impacts related to the added
Project traffic. If necessary, mitigation will be proposed to offset any significant traffic impacts and the
Synchro analysis will be re-executed to confirm that the mitigation will be sufficient.

To support this proposed scope of work, we have prepared initial/preliminary estimates of the number
of trips to be generated by the project and which intersections these trips will pass through. We have
also prepared a preliminary estimate of the current levels of traffic activity on US Route 9 past the site.

Preliminary Trip Generation Estimates

A preliminary trip generation analysis was conducted to confirm the peak hours and intersections to be
studied. This analysis evaluated the trip generations for simultaneous, fully-attended events at the 530-
seat outdoor theater and the 225-seat indoor theater on a Friday evening, as well as back-to-back
Saturday afternoon and evening performances for both venues. The projected event traffic volumes
were compared to historical traffic volumes on Route 9 to assess when the combination of both would
produce the highest traffic volumes.

This analysis reveaied that event traffic is most likely to impact area traffic operating conditions in the
period between matinee and evening outdoor performances (specifically, Saturdays between June and
October from 4:30 to 5:30 p.m.) when it is estimated that a total of up to 295 vehicles will be arriving or
departing. Lesser impacts are expected prior to weekday evening performances (in particular, Friday
evening from 5:00 to 6:00 p.m.} and eariier on Saturday and Sunday afternoons, when the project is
projected to add approximately half of the above level of traffic activity to the surrounding roadways (up
to 145 vehicles per hour). During the remaining hours, either project traffic will be significantly less or
traffic passing on the roadways serving the site will be significantly less (at least a third lower than peak-
hour volumes).

To determine the appropriate intersections to be analyzed, the trip arrival and departure distributions
for the HVSF's current home at Boscobel and for the future home at GCC were identified. This analysis
revealed that during the busiest hours (Saturdays between June and October from 4:30 to 5:30 p.m.)

Nains. NY 108 "914-368-9200

BT
LRIl eYRor oy




Kimley»Horn Pags 5

the project is projected to add at least 85 trips to all of the intersections listed above, except for the
intersection of NYS 9D with Snake Hill Road, which is why those intersections are recommended for

study.

The previously-studied (2005) intersection of NYS 9D with Snake Hill Road is projected to see a 130-
trip reduction, because that section of NYS Route 9D is the primary avenue for access to HSVF's
current activities which will be moved over from Boscobel. For this reason, we suggest that the Town
consider whether there is any probative value to studying this intersection.

For a similar reason, it is suggested that there is no value to adding the intersection of US Route 9 with
NYS 403 to the list of intersections for study (as project traffic at that intersection will only be transposed
from the turning movements to the through movements — through movements have greater capacity).
At the remaining intersections of any notable activity in the area, fewer than 85 vehicles will be added
by the project in the busiest of hours (late Saturday afternoons, June through October) and, because
ambient traffic volumes will be at least 33% lower at this time than during the weekday morning or
afternoon rush hours, the addition of this traffic will not have a significant adverse impact.

$14-368-9200

Heyzhorn. Conts




